STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 3RD, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for March 3, 2015

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 20, 2015
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for February 3, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/13/15 $413,723.01. Accounts payable
checks date 02/20/15 for $865,321.32 and $6,010.56.

1




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

13.

16.

17.

18.

For possible action approval of Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with Carson
City Fire Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire Protection
District and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal ambulance subscription
coverage.

For possible action approval of the Safety Manual as prepared by the Storey County Safety
Committee.

For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. PELLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 616 East Glendale ~ Sparks
b. SW.O.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway TRI
¢, BELECTRIC TECH CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 1910 Mark Court ~ Concord, CA

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION (No Action):  Presentation and discussion by Nevada Department of
Transportation Officials and Comstock Mining, LLC regarding physical conditions, structural
integrity, and other conditions of State Route 342 adjacent to the Lucerne Pit in southern Gold
Hil], Storey County, Nevada.

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Storey County Fire Protection District
agreement with the Nevada Division of Forestry for participation for the Wildland Fire
Protection Program (WFPP).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to
Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work
cards, and providing for other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for brothel
licensing, license applications, and penalties.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Site License Agreement between Storey County
and High Speed Networks for internet access equipment atop the Hillside water tanks.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements




19

of permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District
and providing for other properly related matters.

- DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a cooperative agreement with the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey
County of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance
No. 14-260 and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

20

21.

22

a.

b.

mooan

O e

24

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application
No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by
the planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the
draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.ore.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
EAGLE SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 1350 Geiger Grade ~ Reno (landscaping)
BEAR MOBILE SERVICE & REPAIR, LLC - General / 1525 Sharon Way ~ Reno (mobile equip
repair)
WILD HORSE GALLERY - General / 145 South C Street (retail store) VC
REEL CONSTRUCTION ~ Contractor / 72 East Freeport ~ Sparks (Contractor)
LERO ENTEPRISES, INC. - Contractor / 1043 H Street ~ Sparks (Contractor)
SPENCER MEDIA PARTNERS, LLC - Home Business / 2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill
(Consultant)
DIAMOND CONCRETE CUTTING, LLC - Contractor / 80 Corporate Park Dr ~ Henderson
(Contractor)
ASCENSION POWER ENGINEERING, LLC - Professional / 55 North C Street (elect eng.) VC
MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. ~ Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.) MCC
IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

RICH DQOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

. ADJOURNMENT




NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

* Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

‘In accordance with Federal law and US. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before February 26, 2015; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Departiment, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By %MQ%:OW

Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of minutes for January 20, 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4, Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

re—r—
| N Y B

Agenda [tem No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk-Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Sheriff Gerald
Antinoro, Administrative Officer/Planner Austin Osborne, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, and
Community Services Director Cherie Nevin

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00 AM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 20, 2015

County Manager Pat Whitten requested that items 12, 16, & 18 be heard prior to the Consent Agenda,
and that items 10 & 15 be continued. Item 7 is corrected to reflect the application is for a Liquor
License not Gaming License.

Motion: Approve Agenda for January 20, 2015 with changes Action: Approve Moved by: Vice
Chair Gilman  Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of appointment of Dr. James C McLennan to
serve as County Health Officer per NRS 439.310

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin introduced Dr. James C. McLennan to be considered for
appointment as County Health Officer as required by NRS. Dr. McLennan reviewed his experience
in the medical field.




County Manager Pat Whitten explained that, among other requirements, the County Health Board is
responsible for setting the immunization schedule for schools as required by NRS.

Motion: Approve appointment of Dr. James C. McLennan to serve as County Health Officer per NRS
439310, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey
Vote: Approved by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date
01/02/2015 for $427,484.18. Accounts payable checks date 01/09/2015 for $315,685.05 and $6,637.62.

Mr. Whitten said staff recommends approval of payroll checks dated 1/02/2015 and accounts
payable checks dated 01/09/2015, with the exception of the check payable to Bucket of Blood, Inc.

Motion: Approve payroll checks dated 1/02/2015 for $427,484.18, Action: Approve Moved by:
Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Approved by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve accounts payable checks for $315,685.05 and $6,637. Action: Approve Moved
by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Approved by unanimous
vote (Summary: yes=2) Chair McBride abstained from this vote.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit
No. 2000-222-A-5 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock Mining)
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners a major modification to its mine operating plan so
that the Board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of the existing SUP. The
major modification will allow Comstock Mining’s ore haul trucks to cross over a portion of State
Route 342 between the Lucerne Pit and the ‘east resource area’, an area immediately ecast of the
Lucerne Pit, in southern Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject area and plans are included
in Enclosures A-C.

Senior Planner Austin Osborne explained that Comstock Mining is submitting a major modification
of its mine operation plan for validation by the Board, allowing CMI’s ore haul trucks to cross a
portion of State Route 342, Mr. Osborne read and reviewed conditions that must be met by Comstock
Mining. These conditions include conforming to the operating plan for haul truck crossing, and to
the requirements of NDOT. A truck-off approach of a total of 150 feet must be developed and
maintained. Mud, dirt, and rocks must be removed from the road with minimal disruption to traffic.
A vehicle turnout lane must be developed. Haul trucks will yield to north and southbound traffic at
all times, as directed by flaggers.

A review of the proposed modification was presented by Ken Joy, Construction Manager for CML
Mr. Joy said the intent is to keep 342 open with a by-pass which will be paved and will contain a pull-
out.

Rick Martin, air quality person for CMI, gave an up-date on air sampling that is consistently being
performed with air quality /weather devices deployed in the area. Readings have been obtained for




more than 60 days. All readings have been in the lower-good category. There has been no impact to
the surrounding communities and reports will be available each month.

Motion: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-5, I, Lance
Gilman, validate that the operating plan major modification, in which ore haul trucks will cross over
a portion of State Route 342 between the Lucerne Pit and the “east resources area”, an area
immediately east of the Lucerne Pit, in southern Gold Hill, as described in the submitted plans,
conforms to the conditions of the existing SUP, and accordingly, I authorize county staff to accept the
operating plan major modification and to proceed otherwise in accordance with the applicable
federal, state, and county regulations, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman

Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Approved by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
4. For possible action approval of December 2014 Treasurer Report

5. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report

6. For possible action approval of First Reading of William Hill Race & Sports Book,
Business/Gaming License application

7. For possible action approval of First Reading of Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse,
Business/ Liquor License application

8. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

a. AHERN RENTALS, INC. - General / 1777 Peru Drive (equipment rental) TRI

b. NORTECH, GEOTECHNICAL/CIVIL CONSULTANTS, LTD., -- 300 Western Rd #3 ~ Reno
(eng)
DAN’'S WELDING & MACHINE, LLC - 1320 East Glendale ~ Sparks (welding contractor)
IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC
HIGHLAND FLOORS, INC. - 4050 S, McCarran ~ Reno (flooring contractor)
LIGHTNING PROTECTION SYSTEMS, LLC - 90 Cutler Dr. ~ N. Salt Lake City, UT
(lightning prot.)
CUSTOM LAWN & LANDSCAPE MAINT. INC., -- 5125 Tenaya Creek Ln ~ Reno
(landscaper)
CLAYTON COATINGS, INC. - 8742 East Via de Commercio ~ Scottsdale, AZ (contractor)
DULGAR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - 6301 Bonita Ct ~ Sparks (carpentry contractor)

=R S W

[

LRy

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded
by: Commissioner McGuffey Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

County Manager Pat Whitten:




o Thank you to Richard Elloyan and Paul Cohen from the State of Nevada, Environmental
Health Group, for partnering with the County assisting with the required processes affecting
food services and restaurants at Tahoe Reno Industrial Center. An on-site office will be
located at TRI which should enable effective resolution to food service issues.

* A BDR request was given to Senator Settlemeyer regarding giving false testimony to local
governments. Mr, Whitten has since been advised that this is covered by NRS 241.0353.

¢ Bill drafts in large numbers are coming out and are being monitored.

e Government Sandoval announced another new business coming to Storey County at his
address to the State.

Paul Kvam, Utility Analyst:
¢ Reported on the status of bringing natural gas to the Comstock area. At this time, Southwest
Gas is not interested in bringing gas to the area. Mr. Kvam will continue to explore
alternatives.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:
e Health Center Open House will be held at the Community Center on January 21st, 4 to 7 PM.
e The Senior Center has received and installed the new kitchen equipment. Counter-tops will
complete the project. The old refrigerator is being donated to the Mark Twain Community

Center.
Fire Chief Gary Hames:
o The new ambulances should arrive mid to late February. The engines are expected in late
May, early June.

e Preparation is continuing for the up-coming Nevada State Firefighters Conference to be held
in Virginia City on June 23, 24 and 25.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

e The wastewater plant project is nearing final completion, which should be the first week of
March.
Contingency funds from the USDA grant will be utilized to extend the project up to R Street.

o The 5-Mile Reservoir project is 99% complete. The reservoir has been filled almost to capacity.
This amounts to approximately 8 million gallons of raw water storage.

» The liner has been installed at the Divide Reservoir project, rip-rap is being installed and
should take one week to complete. Filling can begin at completion.

» The 6-Mile Canyon drainage improvement project is in the design phase and should go out to
bid this summer.

» Significant improvements have been made at the McCarren Facility providing temporary
space for the tenants.

Administrative Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne:
¢ Mr. Osborne and Dessie Redmond are working with BLM on a resource management plan as a
cooperating agency from Storey County. Dessie has attended a meeting providing comment
and Mr. Osborne will attend a future meeting providing further comment. All matters that
could potentially affect Storey County are being reviewed.




Master Plan Workshops will be held February 5, 2015 at the Tourism Center and February 19,
2015 in Lockwood.

Mr. Osborne has been working with food truck companies to set up remote sites at TRI. These
are sites not well served by existing restaurants. There are currently three food truck services
- all have been cooperative in establishing locations.

The County is currently in open enrollment period for insurance and is going through the
bidding process. A benefits committee of employees is being asked what is needed and
wanted in services, and also what type of experiences have occurred over the last year. Staff is
working on the plan structure with the insurance broker.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

In response to a recent article in a local paper regarding the New Year's Eve firearms
discharge, the United States Constitution and the State of Nevada allow possession of a
tirearm. Nevada Law allows carrying a firearm in public. The New Year’s Eve incident would
be a violation of law to be in possession of a firearm, if you had a blood/alcohol content of .10
or greater. There is no evidence indicating this occurred. It would also be a violation of
Nevada Law, if a firearm was willfully and maliciously discharged into an occupied structure.
There is no reason to believe this incident was a willful and malicious discharge. It was an
accident. There was not a crime committed, if so it would have been handled.

For persons concerned with firearms, there are a significant number of bills before the
Legislature dealing with firearms in the State. It is recommended that opinions and concerns
be addressed to representatives for consideration in the Legislature.

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action ~ No Public Comment)

Vice Chair Lance Gilman:

Mr, Gilman discussed and reviewed negotiations and meetings held with a new company,
Switch, coming to Storey County. Switch also uses the name SuperNet. Switch is on the
leading edge of the highest technology in the world today. This company is currently located
in Las Vegas. The CEO, Rob Roy, indicates they will be trenching from Las Vegas to Storey
County, locating a significant amount of fiber in the ground. Connections will be made to Los
Angeles and San Francisco.

Switch builds high-tech, incredibly safe buildings. This company stores data, information, and
secrets representing approximately 1,000 of the largest corporations in the world. Each of the
individual companies using Switch, brings one to 25 people to oversee their company’s data.
Storey County will virtually be the host to these 1,000 corporations. Mr. Roy would say that
Storey County will become the new Silicon Valley of the western United States,

TRI is hosting another three additional major data companies.

Switch has begun grading and is building immediately.

Chair called for a recess at 11:18 a.m.; meeting reconvened at 11:30 a.m.

Commissioner McGuffey excused from the rest of the meeting.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Continuation of Residential Construction
Tax for Storey County Schools.




Patty Lam, Business and Office Manager for Storey County School District, explained the Residential
Construction Tax funds will help with road re-paving and replacement of overhead lighting projects.

- County Manager Pat Whitten said this tax is assessed as part of the building permit process and has
been in existence for a long time.

Motion: Approve Continuation of Residential Construction Tax for Storey County Schools Action:
Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

Cherie Nevin stated January is National Radon Action Awareness Month. The University of Nevada
Reno Cooperative Extension program encourages communities to comprehend the dangers of radon
by issuing a proclamation and providing materials.

Susan and Jamie, representatives from UNR extension, gave a presentation regarding the radon
program. Radon is the leading cause of lung cancer among non-smokers. Radon can accumulate in
homes. A 3-day test can determine if a house has a radon problem. 19 houses have tested in Storey
County, with 7 testing positive for radon.

A program will be presented at the Carson City Senior Center on January 27, 2015 at 6 PM. Free
radon test kits will be available at that time. Test kits are also available at the UNR Cooperative
Extension office, by calling 888 RADON10 or on the UNR Cooperative Extension website. EPA
recommends testing every 2 years. Kits are free until February 28%.

There are several types of radon mitigation that can be done to a home. The mitigation system varies
with the type of foundation. Cost varies with the square footage of the house.

Cherie Nevin read the Proclamation.

Motion: To proclaim January 2015 as National Radon Action Month in Storey County, Action:
Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to
Storey County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2014.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher reviewed the nine recommendations on the Audit Report for the period
ending June 30, 2014. Monitoring of expenses to prevent exceeding budgeted amounts is
recommended.

Mr. Gallagher presented explanations for expense accounts that exceed budgeted amounts. Each and
every case is explainable and will be to the Department of Taxation. Mr. Gallagher said with regard
to cash receipts, incidents occurred with revenue being receipted to incorrect accounts. Meetings
have been held with department heads to insure revenues and expenses are in the correct account.




One of the recommendations in the audit is that expenditures over $10,000 be approved by the
County Manager and Comptroller. Currently every capital expenditure over $1,500 requires the
signature of both County Manager and Comptroller. Mr. Gallagher continued with a review of the
recommendations and corresponding explanations.

Vice Chair Gilman said the focus on the auditor’s recommendation is appreciated. It appears progress
has been made on recommendations from last year. Would it be beneficial to respond to the auditors
regarding the areas of recommendation that the County is not in a position to produce. Mr. Gilman
would like feedback from the auditors.

County Manager Pat Whitten said there are some items that will re-occur,

Chair McBride stated that most of the items found in the audit were clerical which are easily
corrected or adjusted.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Ms. Barde said the County is getting bigger and more
complex. Should the County look at a different structure for finances and is an internal audit
function necessary?

Vice Chair Gilman said “line item budgeting” was looked at a year ago. The staff and departments
are learning and going through the transition, with one year of results now being seen. Procedures
have been amended.

Ms. Barde questioned the handling of cash receipts.

Mr. Gallagher said internal audit functions regarding cash and cash handling procedures are
adequate and would have been addressed in the audit if there was a problem. The recording
procedure is what is being looked at. One incidence, even if corrected, is noted in the audit.

Mr. Whitten discussed the functions of the Comptroller’s Office.

Kay Dean, Virginia Highlands Resident: Ms. Dean stated there are many “on-going” issues. Ms.
Dean asked about the auditor's recommendations regarding revenue recorded in expenditure
accounts.

Mr. Gallagher stated if there is an expense item and reimbursement is received for that item, the
expense account can be reduced by the amount of that item or that amount can be put into a revenue
account. It is the auditor’s opinion that income should be in in-kind items and expense items should
be expense items.

Motion: To approve Auditors Recommendations pertaining to Storey County Audit Report for the
period ended June 30, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by: Chair
McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. ROSENDIN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 880 Mabury Road ~ San Jose, CA (electrical
contractor)




PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP - General / 745 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (caterer)

PEED EQUIPMENT CO - Contractor / 1480 Nandina Avenue ~ Perris, CA (heavy equipment)
SCHUFF STEEL COMPANY ~ Contractor / 1841 West Buchanan ~ Phoenix, AZ (steel erector)
QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS, INC. ~ Contractor / 61 Continental Drive ~ Reno (hvac
contractor)

SURFACE PREP & MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 240 Linden Street ~ Reno (asphalt
contractor)

STERLING CRANE, LLC - Contractor / 2211 5% Street ~ Elko (heavy lift services)
ANNING-JOHNSON CO - Contractor / 13250 Temple Avenue ~ City of Industry, CA (metal
deck install)

SUNVELOPE SOLAR, INC. - Contractor / 96 Glen Carran Cir ~ Sparks (solar contractor)
SAFWAY SERVICES, LLC ~ Contractor / PO Box 1991 ~ Milwaukee, WI (scaffolding equip)

. ANSBERRY SIGNCRAFT - General / 10865 Osage Road ~ Reno (signage manufacturer)
HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI

R WY N

7

!—l 7\—4'-_—!- !_l-

County Manager Pat Whitten said Community Development is recommending continuance of Item I.
Harris Industrial Gases.

Motion: Continue Item l. Harris Industrial Gases Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman
Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

County Manager Pat Whitten reviewed the 11 businesses, Items a. through k., recommended for
approval by Community Development. Seven of these businesses are directly related to the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center, and most-likely related to the Tesla project.

Motion: Approve Items a. through k. Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman Seconded by:
Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Is there a plan or a vision for what is being built and
property being acquired by the County and the VCTC?

Chair McBride responded the VCTC, promoting tourism, has to look to relocate as they are not being
allowed to use the property that has been used the last 50 years to put on special events. Every issue
is not discussed at a Commission meeting. These are tourism issues to be discussed with property
and business owners, and event stakeholders. The purchase of the bank building was opportunistic
and there several department heads who would like to relocate to that building.

Mr. McBride explained some of the purchases have been part of plans that have been in existence for
years. As time goes on, some things will change. The County is in the business of preservation and
restoration, protecting the Comstock Historic District.

County Manager Pat Whitten said the County has a long history of acquiring derelict buildings.

Kim Fegert, Gold Hill Historical Society: The Gold Hill Historical Society is hosting the Railroad
Passenger Car Alliance with 100 participants, on January 227, This event will take the group through

8




the Nevada State Railroad Museum, the Lucerne Pit, the Crown Point Mill, and lunch at the Gold Hill
Hotel and in town for the remaining time.

This is the last event that the Gold Hill Historical Society will be conducting. Mr. Fegert is looking
forward to working with everyone in the future on whatever is accomplished.

ADJOURNMENT
The Chair adjourned the meeting at 12:47 PM

Respectfully submitted,

By)@m@m_
Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Approval of minutes for February 3, 2015

2. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting materials: Attached.

6. Fiscal impact: N/A

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required; N/A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
\K Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Beard action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
[ —

Agenda Item No.




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 3RP, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Commissioner McGuffey, County Manager Pat Whitten, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Administrative
Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Tourism
Director Deny Dotson and Special Council Bob Morris.

Absent: Vice-Chairman Gilman

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00 AM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for February 3, 2015

County Manager Pat Whitten requested continuance of items 4, 15, 16, and 18.
Motion: Approve Agenda with continuation of items 4, 15, 16 and 18, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote

(summary: Yes=2)

4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for January 5, 2015 ~ Continued to
February 17, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA




5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 01/15/15 $110,536.56 and $50,338.51, date
01/16/15 $321,152.81. Accounts payable checks date 01/23/15 for $1,616,350.36 and $6,169.28.

6. Restated 2014 Storey County Audit Report

7. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -

a. LOW-TEMP INSULATIONS, INC. - Contractor / 22631 N. 18% Avenue ~ Phoenix (insulated
panels)
CC COMMUNICATIONS - Contractor / PO Box 1390 ~ Fallon (telecommunications)
BI-STATE ELECTRIC CO - Contractor / 1617 Freeport Blvd. ~ Sparks (electrical contractor)
NEVADA FOOD TRUCKS, LLC - General / 5526 Marin Circle ~ Sun Valley (food catering)
BATTERY SYSTEMS, INC. - General / 3410 Peru Drive (battery distribution) TRI
STORMO INVESTMENTS, LLC - General / 14885 La Briana Avenue ~ Reno
SHAMBAUGH & SON, LP - Contractor / 7614 Opportunity Drive ~ Ft. Wayne, IN (fire
sprinkler cont.)
NEVADA STAINED GLASS-FIRE HORSE STUDIOS - Home Business / 132 N. C 5t (art) VC
TECTONICS DESIGN GROUP - Contractor / 10451 Double R Blvd ~ Reno (architects)
INTEGRITY PEST MANAGEMENT - Contractor / 4240 Reno Highway ~ Fallon (pest control)

TrE @rean o

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGuffey
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports including
Quarterly Financial Updates for fiscal year 2014/2015

Chair McBride stated the Quarterly Financial Updates for fiscal year 2014/2015 would not be
heard today.

Tourism Director Deny Dotson:
¢ The Virginia City Tourism 2015 Event Calendar is available. The calendar contains contact
information for parades and events.
e An agreement has been reached to work on Gold Hill Depot to make it available for
events. The Depot should be available by June 15t
e Discussions will be held in the future to review potential ideas and uses for the Black &
Hall building.

Community Services Director Cherie Nevin:
¢ Freeradon test kits are available at the library through February 28%,
¢ The Health Center is up and running. The Community Health Nurse is there on
Wednesdays. The Open House was well attended.
e Planning is underway for free dump days in to be held in Virginia City during May, and
weekends at the Lockwood landfill.




Senior Center, April Enloe:

» The Senior Center is working on a Valentine’s Day fundraiser. Homemade candy is being
made and will be sold for $15 a box. Call the Senior Center at 847-0957 to place an order.
Proceeds have been used to set up an emergency fund for seniors.

¢ New menus at the Senior Center include fresh produce. The new kitchen is great and
functioning beautifully. Thank you to the Silver Barons Motorcycle Club for helping with
moving in the new appliances.

Administrative Director/Senior Planner Austin Osborne:

¢ The County is in the middle of its benefits enrollment program for employee’s health
insurance. The County is conducting an online survey of employees regarding the current
plan and what they would like to see changed. The information from the surveys will be
presented to the insurance carriers during negotiations.

¢ The next Master Plan workshop is Thursday, February 5%, at the Tourism Center. The
public is welcome at this less formal setting. Housing and transportation will be discussed
as well as potential zoning updates.

e A current draft of the Master Plan is available on the County’s website. August, maybe
September, is the target date for completion of the draft.

e As part of the Master Plan and per NRS, we are looking at establishing utility corridors
throughout the County. These are areas in the County where NV Energy could install high
voltage utility transmission lines and not require a Special Use Permit.

¢ Three proposals have been submitted for the Courthouse parking lot and the options are
being reviewed.

Commissioner McGuffey asked if the issue of Painted Rock being re-zoned was going to be
addressed.

Mr. Osborne explained the Planning Commission and the Board had previously approved a
subdivision in Painted Rock. The developer never acted on the project and the approval expired.
The current Master Plan does designate that area for potential development. The issue of
development will be addressed in the new Master Plan process making the area potentially the
housing center that would serve TRI Center. This area would be mixed-use development with
components of residential, commercial and industrial uses.

Mr. Osborne described the recent New Planned Unit Development Zone as any type of large-scale,
subdivision which requires light industrial and commercial components, not just housing.

Mr, Osborne said it is important with the Master Plan to understand what the current plan, as well as
people in the County along with the Board, do not want - which would be to allow housing to occur
in any place in the County without being tied to objectives and goals in the industrial park. Specific
impacts to the region as well as the County need to be included. The housing will need to pay for
itself and be fiscally responsible for the County. The current moratorium is in place to stop any
residential development until the Master Plan is complete.

Mr. Osborne has been attending meetings in adjacent communities. There have been comments from
these neighboring areas that Tesla will cause un-due impacts to the Counties. Mr. Osborne said the
County’s message to these organizations is the County is open to understanding impacts and wants

3




to be responsible in the region. The County is working with many of its regional partners and many
are working with us. Some of these areas are failing to assess existing housing inventory. It is
important that the region’s needs are being assessed appropriately.

A draft of the Master Plan is on the website. The draft addresses the Painted Rock community
including the challenges.

Community Chest, Pam Abercrombie:

Community Chest is presenting A Night to Imagine on April 10t Suzy Boccus will be
performing.

Community Chest has also launched a “family centered strength-based home visiting”
program for the over-burdened, focusing on pre-natal and families of newborns.

Progress is being made on the 5 year plan for library. Once in place, the library will be
eligible for grants,

Thanks to the Commissioners, staff and public for attending the Open house for the Health
Services Hub. It was a great success.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

An agreement between the Dept. of Agriculture and the horse advocacy groups is close to
being reached. This agreement will provide more responsiveness to horse incidents. It is
the hope that issues will be minimized with the use of birth control and diversionary
feeding. Issues requiring immediate attention will be handled by the Sheriff’s Office. The
agreement specifically applies to the horses of the Virginia Range.

The Sheriff’s Office has published its first newsletter - available on the County website.
Contact the Sheriff’s Office to join the newsletter mailing list. The newsletter will be
prepared monthly.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

Agrees with Mr. Osborne’s statements regarding housing and impact on the region due to
the “Tesla affect”. Mr. Whitten discussed the increase in employment due to businesses
coming into the area, not just to TRL

The County is looking into different designs for the parking lot.

A recent jail inspection passed with flying colors. This inspection assesses everything
including training and conditions. There is need for better documentation of training and
an updated ventilation system.

Senate Bill 1 negotiations continue.

Stop by the County’s location at TRI. Space has been given to Tesla and the new company,
Switch, while their plants are being built.

The County’s new website is up and running and is much easier to navigate. The intent is
to upload as many public documents as available. At the current time, access may be
better through Chrome rather than Explorer.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action = No Public Comment)
Commissioner McGuffey:

The Comstock Classics Car Club has been invited by Hot August Nights to participate in
their event. The Hot August Nights group would like to send 300-600 cars to be in the
Virginia City event held one week before Hot August Nights.

4




¢ Commissioner McGuffey will attend a NACO conference in Washington DC at the end of
the month. Mr. McGuffey should be able to meet with the heads of the Department of
Agriculture regarding wild horse issues and will pass along any questions residents have.

Chairman McBride:
¢ Inresponse to concerns expressed by other counties, surrounding counties have benefitted
for years from the payroll of Storey County residents and have nothing to complain about.

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Discussion and direction to staff
regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted
by the Nevada State Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be
deemed by the Chairman or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County.

Pat Whitten explained this is language used by Washoe County and it has been recommended by
the County’s lobbyist. This provides the opportunity to discuss bills if we know in advance of
specific bills that we will be asking for a firm vote of the board. During this Legislative session,
focus will be on items such as NACO's bill to increase home rule from a functional standpoint only.

Mr. Whitten continued that at this time there are no bills to bring to the Board’s attention. Deadline
for BDR's has passed.

Commissioner McGuffey said the Legislature is in the preliminary stage at this point.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 516 Prostitution to change the name to
Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work
cards, and providing for other properly related matters.

Bob Morris requested this item, along with item 13, be continued. Mr. Morris reported that progress
is being made and a comprehensive re-write of the Ordinance has been received. There are a couple
of issues to be resolved.

Painted Rock Resident, Les Cater: Mr. Cater thinks the brothels are fine and doesn’t see why
anyone wants to mess with it.

Motion: Continue to March 3, 2015 at 10:00am in the District Courtroom, Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for
applications for a brothel license, the licensing of brothels, and setting penalty fees.

Motion: Continue to March 3, 2015 at 10:00am in the District Courtroom, Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=2)




13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Second Reading of William Hill Race &
Sports Book, Business/Gaming License application

Sheriff Antinoro said the applicant has passed all back-ground investigation. There are no concerns
and the Sheriff recommends approval of the license.

Storey County Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Requested that the record reflect the physical
address, or addresses, for this license.

Sheriff Antinoro said the applicant will have a kiosk located in the Delta Saloon.

Chair McBride explained that applicant is a sports book operator and in smaller locations a kiosk the
size of a slot-machine is used.

County Manager Whitten indicated the address for the Delta Saloon is 18 So. C Street, Virginia City.

Motion: Approve second reading of William Hill Race & Sports Book, Business/Gaming License
application, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

14, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appointment of Board of Equalization member

County Manager Pat Whitten stated due to a term ending, there is a vacancy on the County Board of
Equalization. It is recommended to appoint Bill Lewis, a Certified Residential Appraiser and resident
of Virginia City Highlands.

Storey County Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Mr. Phillips said there is no resume in the packet
and asked who is being replaced on the Board.

Pat Whitten said Doug Walling is being replaced.

Motion: Approve appointment of Bill Lewis to the Storey County Board of Equalization for a term of
4 years, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning
Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed
I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and commercial uses where found
appropriate by the board with recommendation by the planning commission. Additional
information including, but not limited to, reports and the draft zone text may be obtained from
the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org. Continued to March 3,
2015

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature

6




Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. The subject area is described approximately as portions of Section 31 and 32,
Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian
(MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will
be applied to land located as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99, 004.162.01,
and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources zoning will be applied to land located at APNs
004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and 004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning will be
applied to land located at APNs 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and 005.121.05; and
(d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89, 004.161.90, 004.161.91,
004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004161.95, and 004.161.97, all within the approximate subject
area described above. The purpose of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly
acquired land in Storey County that is consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County
Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe
County as Agriculture, Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure. Additional
information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org. Continued to March 3, 2015

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-023. By Karen James for a reduced rear-yard
setback of five feet from the required 20 feet rear-yard setback for the placement of a proposed
attached garage for a property located at 355 East Mill Street, Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada (APN: 001-266-04).

Senior Planner Austin Osborne presented the item. Resident Karen James has requested a variance in
order to build a garage, attached to the house, on her property at 355 East Mill Street. Staff has
reviewed the site to determine if there is any impact to neighbors. On this property, the house is set
with the back of the house to the side yard which has a required eight foot setback. To meet the
purpose of the code, staff is recommending an eight foot set-back - applicant is requesting a five foot
setback. One public comment was received. The Planning Commission has vetted this item. A
propane tank on the property will be moved or protected in some way from any potential impact
from a vehicle. How this is handled will be determined by the Planning Department.

Commissioner McGuifey asked if this request would affect the neighbor who complained. Mr.
Osborne said the new garage most likely will not be seen from that neighbor’s house. Notices were
sent to neighbors within the prescribed 300" distance.

Pat Whitten asked why the recommendation was expanded from five to eight feet. Mr. Osborne
answered that staff has to take a position and the eight feet meets more the purpose of the code. The
Fire Department is okay with five feet. There does not appear to be any safety or substantial impacts
on neighboring property by going less than eight feet.

Chair McBride does not see a problem with a five foot setback.




Mr. Osborne read the Findings:

6.1.1 That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification; and

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the applicant; and

6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; and

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations; and

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances; and
17.16 Residential when all Conditions of Approval are met; and

6.1.6 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff
Report and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval but not in conformance with the
recommendation by the Planning Commission, I, Jack McGuifey, move to approve with conditions
Variance Number 2014-023 for a reduced rear yard setback for up to five feet from the required 20
feet rear yard setback for the placement of a proposed attached garage for a property located at 355
East Mill Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-266-04) against the
recommendation of the Planning Commission, Action: Approve  Moved by Commissioner
McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit (SUP) 2014-032. By Corrie Zam-
Northan on behalf of the Bucket of Blood Saloon for the installation of a painted mural on the
face of an existing south retaining wall and on the face of an existing west retaining wall for a
location at 8 North C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-084-01). Continued
to February 17, 2015

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Variance 2014-034. By David and Linda Lindsey for a
reduced rear-yard setback of 10 feet from the required 20 feet rear-yard setback for the placement
of a proposed attached garage as part of a proposed single-family residence for a property
located at 260 North O Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APNs: 001-206-18 & 001-
206-15).




Senior Planner Austin Osborne said applicant is requesting a variance for a reduced rear-yard setback
of 10 feet from the required 20 feet rear-yard setback for the building of a garage to be attached to the
back of a proposed residence. Based on the location of the property backing up to a mine tailing, the
chances of someone building adjacent to the property are slim. There is no safety or substantial
impacts to surrounding property in the area. Staff is recommending approval.

Mr. Osborne read the Findings:

6.1.1 That because of special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under
identical zone classification; and

6.1.2 That the granting of the Variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial
property rights of the applicant; and

6.1.3 That the granting of the Variance will not, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; and

6.1.4 The proposed Variance is in compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations; and

6.1.5 The proposed Variance is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.03.140 Variances; and
17.16 Residential when all Conditions of Approval are met; and

6.1.6 The proposed Variance is in compliance with and supports the goals, objectives and
recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the
Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I,
Jack McGuffey, move to approve with conditions Variance Number 2014-034 for a reduced rear yard
setback for up to 10 feet from the required 20 feet rear yard setback for the placement of a proposed
attached garage as part of a proposed residence for a property located at 260 North O Street, Virginia
City, Nevada (APNs: 001-206-18 & 001-206-15), Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
McGuffey Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:
Yes=2)

20. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
a. AHERN RENTALS, INC. - General /1777 Peru Drive (equipment rental) TRI
b. NORTECH, GEOTECHNICAL/CIVIL CONSULTANTS, LTD., -- 300 Western Rd #3 ~
Reno (eng.)
c. DAN’S WELDING & MACHINE, LLC - 1320 East Glendale ~ Sparks (welding contractor)
d. IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI
e. RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

9




f. HIGHLAND FLOORS, INC. - 4050 S. McCarran ~ Reno (flooring contractor)

g. LIGHTNING PROTECTION SYSTEMS, LLC - 90 Cutler Dr. ~ N. Salt Lake City, UT
(lightning prot.)

h. CUSTOM LAWN & LANDSCAPE MAINT. INC., -- 5125 Tenaya Creek Ln ~ Reno
(landscaper)

i. CLAYTON COATINGS, INC. - 8742 East Via de Commercio ~ Scottsdale, AZ (contractor)

j. DULGAR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - 6301 Bonita Ct ~ Sparks (carpentry contractor)

k. HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply)TRI

Mr. Osborne stated the Business License Division is recommending continuance of items D, E and K

Motion: Continue items D, E and K, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGutfey
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Senior Planner Austin Osborne said the Business License Division is recommending approval of
items A, B,C,F, G, H, I, and J.

Motion: Approve A, B,C, F, G, H, I and ], Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner McGuffey
Seconded by Chairman McBride Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Virginia Highlands Resident, Kay Dean: At the January 5% Commission meeting, Ms. Dean gave a
presentation on behalf of resident Dave Thomas regarding the accounting report. There were four
questions. Responses to two of the questions have not been received. Ms. Dean is again requesting
information on the breakdown of the June 30, 2014 Park Fund, Special Revenue Fund Balance
between Virginia City, Lockwood, Mark Twain and the Highlands.

Storey County Resident, Mark Joseph Phillips: Mr. Phillips found that statutes in Nevada require
the County Commissioners, by ordinance, to establish a list of certified appraisers to be used in cases
of property purchases by the County, with few exemptions. Mr. Phillips submitted a document
from the County Clerk stating that an ordinance referring to a list of appraisers could not be located.
Mr. Phillips asked that this document be attached to the minutes.

Mr. Phillips questioned the Virginia City and Gold Hill Fund in the Department of Taxation report.
Mr. Phillips resents that a brewery is being built on C Street. This week the Planning Commission
will discuss a micro-brewery ordinance. Mr. Phillips said that putting the brewery in before the
ordinance is bothersome. Mr. Phillips also questioned that the Planning Commission meeting is
being held on private property.

Mr. Phillips asked about the discount to seniors for sewer bills that he has requested in the past.

Painted Rock Resident, Les Cater: Mr. Cater presented receipt on the history of Nevada to Pat
Whitten. This had been mentioned at a previous meeting.

M. Cater said he has never had a problem with the brothels.
10




22. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 11:30am

Respectfully submitted,

By

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer

11




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1.

For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 02/13/15 $413,723.01. Accounts
payable checks date 02/20/15 for $865,321.32 and $6,010.56.

. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

. Supporting materials: Attached

. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA_ Comptroller

. Legal review required:

_NA_ District Attorney

. Reviewed by:
\S Department Head Department Name: Comptroller
County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

[1] Approved [
[ Continued

] Denied

b bt

Agenda Item No.




HANOISSIHWNOD

HIANSVIAAL

TATTOHELAWNCD

HANOISSTHWOD NYWEITHD

ST/80/20

ATENINITINI

£

sbeg

193ed pus-poTaIad

WHLSAS TIOGAYd ALNNOD AIUOLS

igasuoTseTUWO) Jo pIeod Ajunes Asrols sua Agq peacaddy

TOEZL'ET

65 807 0¢€
05 L9L'9
06°00%'%2
¥ TTO'T
69°5%2°%0

16 LEBE 9%

Junowy

ST/ET/EQ

za3eTbay yooyn

4

4

T

8

:91ed 29D

A

rpesINgsTa

FI030UPI 07 I9FsuURIL 1280

:a7Td d9qQ ATQ uc pasIy¥ sped oodordux
tqTsedeq 3c8x1a esfordwzm

rg)asyp eadoTdum

53080 T0700Pag

184149 AICT IIJSURIL I9S(

20ked # paa
/4 dwg

3 § ¥ £ z 1 :sdnoxn Tloxded
zeTnbay :odAl 11oxdea

IRIJ0L

Te39L
2308
TR0l
Te20L
Te3oL

JLETS

# aa
/Aosus

TPIOF:2T ST/TT/20  unyg

¥0TS0¥a :aday



T1"856 '€

¥6 2T

817912

€8 BLE

00" 5L

00" 0%
¢o'sez’e
86°6€
0%’ 865
69°%E
8T' 098
0052

TP 281

SZ°8

98’68

00°090°'%T

S8'ZY9 LT

TELOL
JAOFHED

T abeyq

T6 660'T
¥0'296
SL¢E8
Ty ZLo

¥6'ZE

S178¢
P6BTT
60765

Ty 161
TF'L8T

00°¢g9
007 2%

00 0%
00'SET’E
86'6€
0% ' S69
£9°%¢
81095
00°52

08 2¢€
6L705
69° 5%
25701
LLTg

PRTET

S2°S

[ -]
95°ET

00'005°'¢
00'000'S
00" 0s¢
00 0Ps'T
00°00S
00°06¢
op-opo'e
0D 0BL

00 0SEET
98°'26E €91

LNOOWY

0BETL
08&TL
086TL
086TL

¥Z0%4

GLETL
BLETL
SLETL

BLETL
BLBTL

20024
s00gL

L5024
LLBTL
S€0ZL
SLETL
g20cL
PE0TL
950TL

TLETL
TLETL
YLETL
Zg0zL
ZE0ZL
ZE0TL

ELGTL

QE0EL
0E0ZL

666TL
6E6TL
GE6BTL
6EETL
BEETL
eE6TL
66ETL
62QTL

ZLeTL
CLETL

#SNYEL

st/oe/T
st/0z/z
ST1/02/2
ST/0Z/%
st/oz/z
s5t/0z/e
ST/0B/T
s1/0z/e

ST/08/2
sT/oz/e

sr/oz/z
stT/oz/e

st/¢c/e
§1/02/2
ST/0e/e
sT/02/2
stT/02/e
st/o0g/z
s1/0Z/2

§T/02/¢
ST/02/2

ST/0Z/E’

ST/0Z/e
sT/0¢/C
st/oe/e

s1/0z/2

ST/08/%
st/0z/¢

g1/02/¢%
st/oz/c
st/oz/e
ST/0E/2
sT/¢c/e
s1/02/¢T
§1/02/2
§1/02/2

ST/02/%2
ST/08/2

aLva

TISHIC ¥ THN-Md
OY¥HINA - Mg

TISHIA % TNO-HDA
- TISEIA ¥ INO -Md

ANSY HATYA-GEBTSOS
GIONETOS S068S0S
SYILITA-AD0LS

HOLOID NYd-MOTd 0SEd

HDIA¥ES QTIId LIN-ZSSEZvUd
LINA HATVA-ZSSZTVEL

ST0Z ‘IT g34-~6T NVUL

¥ad SIWO0T HLIFN &1

‘ LOT ONINEVE HD

SOVE WANDYA

HLS/T SYIVAEY WILSAS Tand
WY SEYOINI T0000-ECES7T82ZE
. SRAITAINS SWE
ATSPHO0ULYY HAWVED

HO
4OHE
dOHE

A¥ANOYT ¥t IS
A¥GNOVT 2L 1S
AMANONT TL LS

SAEY NUAd SQLT

SHITddNs sSWI
SAIIadNS SWH

SLNANIINYHNE

HYHD0Ud

SINTWEONVHNE ESNEOIT
280ddns

INZNIONVENE ERYN WaId
VISEL UOd LoOW
SINAWIINVHNT

¥ISEL ¥04 IJDY JISodHa

SHY ATIN HAIL
BEY qIAId

NOIZ4I¥OSEd FDIQANT

ST/0Z/T WALSIDHY ADIHD

ALNGOD ATUOLS

ONT ITIESVD TLTT8

WNI 0D TIO AFTIVA NOSYWD 0LYT8

ONI qUQd TYLIdYD 68%18

SL¥¥d OIAY ALID TY¥LIAVD 89718

ONI J¥3id 5.N0L¥Ng LI9%T8

SIMAT LLODS 'TIZ¥Nng 29718
ONINNTILNOD 40 TUvoH 59718

ONI LENSNOD TTOVE Hovid LAY
voLz# YWOTHEWY J0 JANVE £9718
ONI HDIANEES ¥ SATYS 1 ¥ € 29%T8
TA¥ES HONIWIINODHTIIL IVLY T3¥TE
TYNOILVNEELNT MOYIY 09718

OATEL "WNYSTEIAY 6SVES

ONI O25TY BSPIR

ONI ADOT ENISTY LEPT8

ONI NOM SWOHIY 95718

ONI SWALSAS WIVA UIONVAQY gsbis

ONT SYIAOW HINVE 33y ¥SPis

HoaN=A YEENON
ADIRD

ST/BT/Z0 ¢ °3wg uny

STETEd ‘ON 1xodey




OILV¥ANDIO EOVINVAAY LSUIJ S8¥18

ZTL'BET'S 98 68¢€ 096TL stT/0g/e TIOL ¥ 01T I33Q DNIgIIng
TR A LGETL st/oe/e T ODDIA SNAWITD WYS 00§
89112 8€E0ZL  stT/0Z/E . INYIOUd ZLT IS
6 €58 986TL st/0E/2 LYId YIM
26 EET 8E0ZL ST/0T/E ANvVdOosd SHY Tt IS
Z6°SL¥ BEOZL st/ee/e . ANYIO¥d TLT/TL IS
ZB'BEE BEDTL ST/02/% INVIOHd ¥4 I8
62 15¥% 98614  ST/02/T ANYIOUd RO
9€'SER 986 T4 ST/0E/E INVId dELVH
£V ZLE 986TL  stT/0T/fC ANVIONE HD
£0'298 986TL  s1/0Z/T BE'6¥LS (¥ TIOL 00T
SE'LBT 986TL ST/02/¢% BE'6¥LS Q¥ TIOL 00T
BE"ESZ'T 986TIL s1/02/¢ INYJ0Bd HD
dT SYDTINYERA ¥evis
D1 6EL'BY 0T D6T'8% 9614 s1/0z/2 SEEd ONIUTINIDNT
00" 6ET §86TL  §T1/0T/T ATYM TYNIA-SHEE FTINS
ONIYFUNIONE ISEM ¥avd [ 4:32 %]
89'15 89' 1% S002L  ST/0E/% YILNED aMADT -FAFTIIOD
oD S0¥E WIWAYI [4:3 241
TS ILT €S TLZ PEOZL sT1/0Z/¢2 TSUNESIA INIWHS INTYD
DI 8N 18718
S€'Z6L 8L 6LT £B6TL  ST/02/% ASY WMV ILN[TIVE-S069505
60'Z% EBGTIL  $T/0Z/Z 1IN-9291508
-00 77T EBETL  GT1/0E/ZT LIQIES HY0D AYHLLYE
-FLUEET £86TL ST/0E/% LIAIHD ADOLS
EEREA X £86TL st/oz/e SEAVHE-8LZESHOD
EETPIT £86TL  §T/0Z/2 HOLO'TD NWI~-LS56E9MA
16°8TT €86TL  ST/0Z/T AHRLLYE-LS6E9Md
80°89¢ £86TL ST/0EZ/C AMALIVE TL-I 94
~09°9 £86TL ST/0T/T LON THAHM -60€9508
£0°5¢€ EBETL sT/0e/t avd DIWNVYAD-9Z9TS0S
-00°GT €BETL  §1/02/2 D HYOD-9Z9TS08
16°8TT EBETL  §T/0Z/2 AYILIVE~92919d8
0024 LzoTL  §1/02/T H¥0D AWELLYE T4-1 ¥d
ONI X7ddns olny LIOITIZ 08%18
06° 18 06 TS L8ETL sT/02/%2 TYLNTY YaTO0D HD
ONI ¥St SHOIVA ELPTH
0091 00°9% LoogL  §st/foeje ST0Z °‘TT ¥AE-62 NVLO
¥ CIAWEDO 'VISTED 8LPTE
88 €¥E 88 €¥¢ 92024 ST/0E/e 53ITddNS NOISSEONCD
SNOILATOS SNd DESH Q021800 LLPTE
00'0ST £ 00°0ST’€E 6T0CL st/oz/e ) INIWTIYISNY 58T
27T TTIW <709 ¥DOLSROD SLYTE
000007 00000y S2OEL s1/0Z/2 TYNIJ-JO0Y JEHS DWKHS
NOILIAYISNOD SNIMTOD SLPTS
€T %1 Ls- g5 LBOZL st/oe/z ISUNESTA INANHSINEYH
£€°802 L80EL  St/oz/E HSWNESIA INIWHSINIVD
£6°6% L80ZL  s1/0Z/T ) HSUNESIA LNIWHS INIVO
oz ez LBOZL sT/o02/¢ FSANGSIA INIWHS INIYD
. AIN 0 @DTIA¥ES NOLLOETTION YLYTB
SL'Z0S SL'E0S £20EL ST/0B/2 NCAT/SYTONOA NOILIIDEY
: ALID NOSHYD 0 ALID ELYTE®
R A S¥'Z2T 706TL  g1/0E/E QDIKW SNEWIID WYS 005
SNOTILVOINAWHOD JETLUYHD ZL¥TS
00" zoe 0o’ zoe 186TL st1/02/2 HO¥WW I¥044NS LOYELNOD
TYLOL INOOWYT HENVYL 2IYA - # 0/4d NOILdTIUDSEq HIIOANI JOANTA YITWAR
ADITHD A0FHD

ST/02/2 YILSIDIY MDEHD ST/81/20 ¢ 93w unyg
Z  abeg ALNNOD XAZHOLS STETEd oy axoday




£

01" 260807

SL'ZEE

00 08¢
Lg'gse
00°S8T'E

0P 6LC

29T L8
o002t
59°'9¢
[AAR 434
0g'oey
0528

£EL'Z00°T

S0°' 98¢

L6 EBE'T

00" %I
05°2Zp9°T
LL TEE
0T 191
007097
267884
22 S0T

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

96 %¢
019607801
18°tL
6%’ 9

$0° €S
65°LZT
86" 1¢
¥0°09
00°08¢E
LS ese
00°581'%

0¥'6TE
007091

ST°L8
007 0ET
5996
[4A28 234
0o ogY
¢S’ 28
LETOE
8T 67T
1€°C¥
LY 08L
S0°88¢
687 LLL
96 L
ZT° 965
00 PT
08 Z¥9 T
[N A
0T 191
007091
26°88L
227507

LINOOWY

£EDEL
[A- L IR
€66TL
€E66TL
PvoeL
T96TL
TE6TL
TEDEL
0T0EL
60024
80024

Tv0cL
Tv0ZL

¥502L
9LETL
&30CL
CToEL
080EL
0L0EL
0667TL
066TL
066TL
066TL
ozogd
awHeLl
oPQzTL
O%CETL
BLOZL
19024
€B0EL
686TL
060ZL
886TL
656TL

HENTIL

st/0z/e
S1/0%2/%
ST/0E/2
st/oz/z
ST1/02/2
st/oz/e
st/pe/e
st/oee/e
sT/02/2
st/oe/e
stT/oe/e

ST/0Z/2
ST/0¢/2

sT/oe/e
st/0E/C
s1/02/2
§1/02/2
s1/02/%
sT/08/%
ST/0Z/T
St/0e/e
st/oe/e
st/oe/e
$1/02/%
s1/02/%
ST/02/2
S1/02/2
st/oe/z
st/oe/e
ST1/02/2
s1/0Z/2
ST/0E/Z
ST/02/2

ALY

# 0/d

862000

96STITTIBEASAMTDT

HdVL ATAYWITEYT ‘NI OTWD
SEIT4dNS FDII20

SEITIANS EOI4H0

SAINTIINS EOIJAC

T TPLBI8E OM

HONYNITINIVH ZLISEIM
dNLEY AON WO¥Yd "HINdgig O
WINIVIEY ST0Z AdVAUELS

SBNIY ISOH
SdY0 LNVHJXH

ASYD dNOD ESSZRud
9T/T ENIDDVA € dHH
HINOL HIHLONE

STOZ 984 HALS WIII LPTIN
LI¥ IDITINOD
LANMALNE £&L NOILIVLS
SASWNW ISna

STYIUZIVH (A¥Ed SOLT
STYINIIYW-NYES S0LT
SIYINALYW-NYII SOLT
-I8TTZT ¥NN/AHA WIII-DWI
SHIM440S SHE
SHY1IANS SWA
SEITAANS SWH

SHXYL 40 INTZWAYAUIAQ
SUAOH §'9¢

ASANTS I LNAWHSINIYD
dWNa-zESTFad

TYMINTY YOdD

SEY ¥ TSIA-HT

LSAL ON¥d SHFMOL

NOILAT¥OEEd EITOANI

ST/0Z/2 WALSTOEY MDIHD

ALNNOD XEUOLS

TUYWYL ‘NYDINW

00 YOLOW TTHOE TIVHOINW

NI SNOILNTIOS HOIJJO OULHW
NHOL ‘A¥¥EN
OTT SINGAT INTE CINDIT

DT BINAAT NI AINdINT

SNOS ¥ SILdND N 1

QT 44r

dD DONIZTASNOD dW ZliIEE AWl
o7 J0dN08 TLI

NI I9W OINT RITINNOW NO¥I
ANVIQ ANNED THOVEONH

ONI aNwddy¥odd 1043 LOH

HIIAYES LICIED IOdEd FWOH

DNIOVWIOUDIW IMISEC HOIK

NIZHDS AuNIH
g a0 HISUYH
WOL ' AMASSNYED

£ ADNYN ‘NWED
YADNIVED
¥oan

OTT ADYINT SURATL

J0aNIA

mﬁ\mﬁxmo“
"STEIE ¢

L0518

90518

§057T8
POSTS
E0S8T8

Z0s8T8

TOSTE
00518
66918
8EVIE
L6P1g
96918

S6%I8

¥EFIE

13483

[1:3 4 %)
T6¥TB
06%18
6BFTH
BERTR
LE¥I8
98918

YIEWNON
ADFHO

o3eg uny
oN jxoday




4

69°G

00 zg
898°'155°¢
007985
75 68T
S0'FIE

¥ 8¢€s

05881
8¢ ' €8S
00052
80°¥T0'S
00052
000z
00°09S

00°005'7T

0P GLE°T

00 ove
VLISYE L
00° 569

£0°segxY

00'ooL'E
oo 00t
96" %€
TYLOL
ADEHD

ebed

£9°6

Qo ge
88°1595'¢
00988
vS6BT
S0°FTE
¥ITIs
66T6ET
T6°9

Qg LE
9g°gET
oe- 08

0% 85T
BE'EBS
00" 052
80°%T0'S
00052
¢orooe
00°'0%

00°00Z‘T
00°00€
$6°BTF
6E°9¥%F
TS 62§
99'¢zze
06 LSE
00 0¥8
PL'SET L
00° 565

S¥°9g
85°86

oorooL’e

00" 00E

LNDOWY

EpRiAN
ZT0Z4L
v66TL
TT0ZL
280TL
LIGTL
T8024
T802ZL
1202L
TZoZL
TE0EL
TZoCL
St0ZL
BSETL
gLoee
966TL
050EL
S¥0ZL
E96T4

9902L
9%0zZL

¥86TL
¥BETL
¥B8eTIL
PRETL
PBETL
€L02L
LB6TL
2e02L

Z96TL
TvoeL

SS02ZL

LEGTL

H#ENVAL

§1/0Z/2
sT/02/%
st/o0z/e
sT/0e/e
ST/08/2
S1/0g/2
st/oz/z
sT/08/C
sT/oe/e
st/oe/e
s1/02/2
s1/02/¢
ST/0E/2
s1/0E8/%2
ST/0E/2
sT/ee/e
s1/02/2
S1/02/%
sT/o0z/e

5T/02/2
st/oz/e

st/oz/e
ST/0g/¢
st/0e/e
s1/02/2
s1/0z/2
ST/02/2
sT/02/2
s1/02/%

ST/DZ/fT

sT/oz/T’

ST/3T/T

s1/0%/2

2LV

# 0/a

ST0Z “TT 9dd-6% NYDL
JONILHOIT LERULS L99
ST/80/€0-5T/60/20
I5ENESIA LNAWHE INIVD
d0Idd0 AYITIO

8X 980

. HOIZE0
LAASYIRLETM

J8IW SHITddNs FDIJAJO
HOVYOLS VIV

AOVAOLS YIVA

T¢3IGAHd NHYC

YHTIVEL DTEIVIL-LNINE INDHH
SENA dEANIEN

DHAD PI0E HHSWIDEQ
ST0Z ¥QJ

SINA TYANNY Id30

dd48 TYLE0d XTHINOW

SNYAT RZuyvl
SUEMOd SNIAMI

¥T/LZ/ET - ®L/OT/TT
YI/SZ/0T-¥T/TT/01

PL/ET/2T ~PT/LT/S
YT/TT/0T-%1/%0/0T
YI/LE/ZT - ¥T1/62/TT
SINTYdHIDONII
HSYHOUNd WIIWM NYL
Z9BLEDE

IdL SEIJOD AEY
SIITddNS ONILVEI4Q

HDIAYEE WAIHNOD

NOILJI¥OSAA HDIOANI

gT/02/¢ WALSISEAY ADFHD

ALNOCD AHWOLS

{¥d1) TYHoTH $EMO0H XINIIA
IANAT ‘QNVNEY-ILLSEFId

d OTIONV ‘ININIEG

HHOTH VINTATASHNIJ

STT YIGHEW INOEALN0
HONWNIA OLOW NOSE¥O

O ‘10dEd VIVY ELISII0

SNI LOgdd EOTA40

HENTD HIEFYEH ANNOTILYdODI0
2T DNILINSNOD NOLHON

¥ S4FIHD » JJIYTHS wIVAIN
dABY ALNAOD "THOH VAIYAHN

ELIWET JO SIDANL YIYAIN
NSSY SAMEHD HUTS WAYAHK

{ONY) aLT7 d@nNId VoYAEN

J055Y WHELYM TVENY A"N

ALIENDES INSWAOTIWH AHN
ALIIVE OITELd LdEd AN
SONNQAD % HATE NIWODY AEN

FDHTION TYIDIANL ‘IYNOILYN

HUVMGEYH HSOOHANNOW
L LYFS0d ‘SIN¥OM
QUOAAITO ‘HINOW
HOANIA

S1/8T/20
STETEd

o€s1e
6Z8T8
8ZST8
LZST8
329718
SZSt8

veate

EZSig
ZZSTB
TZST8
0Zste
61918
BT51g
LTISTIB

91518

S5TST8

PiIS18
ETST8
21518

TIST8

0TSTE
60518
80518
Ltotzidint g
ADTEHD

@3eq uny
oN 3xodey



2 e (o F AR ZESTE

8£°095'S 00°006°T 6802L sT/08/¢2 9EAD -TIWLSNT dOLMIINNCD
8E€°099'¢ 680ZL ST/08/¢ 08900 -IYINELYW JOLFIINACD
(DA}YYHLNED JOINIS OD IS 15918
00°00T 00°00T TS0ZL sT/08/2 ang
. ’ NOSY¥L ‘ZITHAS 05518
05'608°T 05°608°T Y66TL st/oz/e JH04dNs AY¥nNYr
ONI SEDIAY¥ES ALITILON €948 6¥YSTS
66 TLY 0% 0TI EL0ZL §1/02/%2 PNINVATO
00° 08 6L0TL ST/0Z/E DNINWATO
00°29¢ 6L0ZL  St/0EZ/2 ONINYITD
65°602 6V02L  StT/0E/E SEITAANS DNINYET)
III £ DINIWOd ‘ENOTTIVAS 8¥ST8
00 9€EE 00" 9¢ PI6TL ST/02/¢2 ADNYL S NWHA SLANOYHW T¥ES
00°00€E 9T0ZL st/eg/e SYMADILS dVONITYD INAAZ
VEd 2T SEINLSNANI MDITS LvST8
65'6£8°¢C 65°'6€8'Z 8¥0eL  S1/0E/Z SUIVATY PLLM
TYALS YANITLHOIENI WHNRIB 9%ST8
BE'LOE'S 06'09 0LeTL  ST/0Z/E 400 Z960-L¥8
LT IST S 0LETL st/02/2 SNOIIYDINAKWOI-ET¥9~Z5Z
1098 0LETL st/02/¢2 J2I0A  QOSL-LYB
‘ ONI SEDIAYES ‘TYE0T DS S¥STH
16" % 16'¥ ST0ZL sT/0g/e WSTUNOL JA
a1 NI SEDIAYES IVHOTD DES ¥rST8
0T"STE 0T'STT L¥0ZL  stT/0Z/T SHITIANS SWI
DNTI Odddany E£PSTE
50°62 50°52 6E0EL sT/0%/¢ ¥IAOD IONONT ¥L-Y
HONYINEWY NIVINOOW AMD0¥ TFSTB
S0°gs 50°¢s TLETL ST/02/T 609BLYTSS SSEBTEZNY
DNI ¥S0 ISQAavoy TYS1E
00'000°S 00'000'S PI0ZL ST/0E/T d0-0D YLD HLP 3 Qdc
T NOIZNTANOD SN¥VAS ONZY oysTe
28 268 £E°GBT S661L  §sT/0%/2 XELWT 904 AWI-NUEd SOLT
¥6'ZET s66TL  ST/0Z/2 AOLVHIISTI-NYAd SOLT
S5°'GLY S66TL  ST/02/% XEIIYT D04 XIJ-A¥Ed SOLT
. JUYW ILNIVd ONZY 6E5Y8
£9°66 E9'68 030ZL 51/02/2 § €34
! HISSEd ‘GNOWIHEY BESTH
ST 118 z6'ZT8L £T0EL st1/0z/¢
€T 82T Z00ZL ST/02/2 © 8T-02-T ‘$T-£-CT
DNI SHIDELIVYLS dvy LESTS
6% ¢ 6% 2¢E 6S08L  ST/0g/% . SWEOS TH
NOILWHOI¥OoD TTIND 9£8T18
00°598'%1% 00°598'%1¥ 996TL ST/0Z/¢2 ST/92/T NYHIL NOILYDITAAY
' ONI NOIIOOWELENOD a¥D SESTE
L9028’z 597 2L BY96TL st/oe/e ONISNYAY
20'8%5°C 896TL st/oe/e L 'YOTHdY
LREASIILEY ATdWE 2ITH0D PESTE
00°'SL 05°2T TE6TL ST/08/T . TI/P~ET/T
05°29 BSDZL  $T/0T/2 SNOLLOE DINVA XHYLO0
ONI SEOIANC NOILDFLOWd EESTE
0L 992 0L"992 zTBOEL st/ue/e ESUNESIO INAWHSINYYD
} I CD FDNYNI4 TYNOISSHIONd ZEsis
00°S0T 00°S0T geozL  s1/o0z/e 578709 IHDIT OIVH QT
1 ALIYE ‘NOLSOd TEST8
L6 06T'T LE'D6T'T §L0TL  sT1/0E2/2 . §1 ga4d
TYLOL INNCWY HSNVYL LY ¥ 0/a NOILEI¥OGE HDIOANI HOaNaEA HIEWAN
ADHEHD : AFHD
ST/02/c WALSIDAY NDEHD ST/BT/Z0 ¢ ®3eq unyg
5 abed ALNOOD ATYOLS STETHE :oN jxodey




9

ZE TEE’ 598
00" 668
000

$9° 18€
0E"E28'T
00°'999°T
B S9L'T
00" LZE
00'0S€'T

00"9%2

LY STT

(A -1

08'e0g

82 182
95" ¥66

05°602

89729
007 0S¥

TYLOL
ADHED

sbeg

THLOL SASTHD
00'668
00" CE
¥8° I8t
0 gE8’'T
00°999°T
F2 S9L7T
00" LZ¢E
00°0§E'T

00 vve
o0-¢
eL'E
Lot ot
89°9¢
00°ST
00°0s
[N e-1

TE"69
&7 PET

BT T8
59°'¥66

00°S0E
05" ¥

89229
00 05%

LNOOWNY

890TL
10024
00024
8H6TL
€oocL
LLOEL
25024
£s0cL

BTOZL
8T0ZL

¥E0CL
FS024
¥I0ZL
¥902L
¥9024
SL0EL

BEETL
86614

Z86TL
TL024

LT0EL
LTOZL

S80Z4
LO0EL

#INVIL

s1/0E/2
s1/02/8
§1/02/2
st/oz/e
sT/0z/T
§1/02/2
st/oz/e
st/oe/z

sT/oe/e
s1/0z/T

ST/0E/E
ST/0E/E

stT/0g/e

st/oz/e
ST/0Z/2

sT/oe/e

sT/o02/¢e
st/oz/e

ST/0E/2
sy/0e/e

St/0g/e
sT/0g/C

st/oz/e
§1/02/2

qLNd

# 0/8

E4Id JENNEINI 0TXOT
WEOALTOD TVIOL
TYSTUIOSTE -N¥NAd S0LT
ST0Z N[ QMIDT -STvan
SEDIANES ISTAEEOT
qood EIVHNT

SWEOJINN D"

ST0Z ‘1T €3d-62 NUL

YMANEE A¥YION ¥od FHYLS0d
JIT DIT FIIHONYA/UIAHLYI
FHOSNOdS [HAAE ¥0d SWELE
04 Ruyuve

ADELLIET

WAI- N¥Ed SOLT
§/M~ DHEd SOLT

DNITIIE HONYNIINIYW
TIRD

ST0E 'TT gd4-627 NWDL

38¥NESIC LNIWHSINGYD
dJ0d0 STHT

NOTIATISSEd FOIOANT

ST/0Z/T ¥WALSYHAY ADIRD

ALNOCD AFUCLS

OTT ¥YAYAIN IENLSEM

YT TYLNENNOUIANT NYHLSEM
ONI ODaRM

AFHS YOINES AINOOD FOHSYM
SHINILOSSY ¥ YIATYM
LOEWY0D J0 Id30 JIVLIS WM
TJA SONYTHOIH VINIOWIA

SHUNLNEA ALID VINIDNIA

ONI S49N0L XLID VINIDUIA

PDLDA

1T YAOVAEN 40 XALIWNJOJINOD

LNANIAOYIWI TYHENAD IdL
HOLYATTI dMNANESSAHL

dWALYWHEHL

SHSTAGYRLNT AYEd NOS

2d MOTO4OY ¥ NEHARLS

HOaNEA

ST/8T/20
STETEd

§9518
4LOST8
99578
59518
v9518
£9518
29818

19518

09818

65518

g9ste

L5978
98578

55518

PS5186

ESSTE

HEHWAN
ADIHD

s3vg uny

oN jaodsy



YANOISSTIWWOD

\ﬂ\\m\\ﬂo SN
\A\\vw\\ﬂ s1/02/z %EQN >

NOILYZIMOHINV ONY MATAEY 40 INAWIDAITHONIDY

TE IZL'508 TELOL SADIHD




T

9570109

95°010°9

TYLOL
qQuED

abeq

0g°’
00'¥62
L9976t
00 0L
Ly Le
00709
66°6E
“66°TT
00 1TEZ
00°0T
05" 2086
86" L
L8'Le
T 2L
€6°60€
86659
00'0¢
0Z°Lte
987" LET
82° 119
SLTPY
[4 341
£F 9L
00'6%
0z 88
00 0%
16 9%
8% 71
08 1F
S2T0F9
7006
L0271
LE6°BT

LZNOOWY

YETIOULIWOD

o =

NOLIVZTYOHLOY NV MEIAIN J0 INIHIDAATMONADYE

z0v ST/0E/2
Z0% stT/0e/T
zZ0% 51/02/¢2
[ 434 st/0z/e
£6€ st/oz/e
PEE sT/o0z/E
66€ ST/08/e
66¢ sT/0C/C
66€ st/oz/e
00% §1/08/¢2
€0y S1/02/2
10% st/6e/T
0% ST/02/2
96E S1/02/2
96¢€ ST/0E/2
96¢ sT/02/%2
96¢ sT/02/2
96¢€ §1/02/2
00% s1/02/%2
66E st/oz/e
66E s1/02/2
66¢€ ST/0E/2
Z6¢ ST/02/2
00% st/oe/e
£6¢€ s1/02/¢2
£6¢€ s1/02/¢2
BGE st/0g/¢
S6¢€ ST/02/2
S6€ ST/0E/Z
S6¢€ ST/0Z/2
S6¢ 51/02/2
86¢ sT/0z/2
z6¢ 51/02/%2
HENTUL HLYA

LYDTATILYAES 1155 d1ISHEM
VWVd 5/d INIEWEDYIJEE Z
15a os

18d ¥4 NCILRLS
TUIZISONT Earddom
TYMENTYE X0€ Od
NOITY-5068508

LICHED XYL

THM D07 0T 0S¥-J HHIS
HALYM TATLLOG

5IXAT 9T-Z NYHL ST-€
DLW DNINNYTd 304
HANOISSTIHWOD NYTd HLIWS
SNOILOWOYd MOHS HAWHI,
AY¥S A0d SLENDTL AL B
¥ ¥0d SNND ATINC 30 HLE
HATID LAASYE MOHS agvyy
SNOILOWOYd MOHS HaWdL
ag AHYOLS ¥0d SEITAANS
YZIVH HOLIMS-NNEd S0LT
STYTYELYM -N¥Ed SOLT
YILYW HILIMS-N¥Ed SOLT
EATHA HSYTd ¥ OWAU
SNINIYEL DOI NOTIIA

TE/T 5¥vD

THM 1HD SIVYSTIW NMONZY
H4E

LAMNE “H/M DLW

HS THAVEL AQY ¥AUY Avd
HS TIAYIL AOY VAIY AVE
HS THAVHL AQY VIV AvE
H4d

ONZLIIN DI Tand

HOILAIHWOSHEA

HALSIDEY QE¥YD ISVYHDWNG

ALNOOD XIEQLS

GE0PERRBL

56289

ETE¥9BBET

£99TTI08ET

NISOd d8¥ NELLIHM
A¥ES TYLSCd 50

£/2 SNId SE¥IL-INZHL
0Z/1 NOSMVI-INZUL

¥ HEIL NOSHYD-INTHL
HYOWAVH SHIIWS
EONYNIINIVA WI YaD§
500D ¥IAYA ANOWITA
WYd HONOT aONOKIRY
174405 &IHS ENITIN B4
0D ' DNIINI¥ALENDOIL D4
NOHAIYM SNYHINOIS 94
ANOIHSYE a0 SUdd 92
LNEd WYQHALSHY Od

S DOoNd 1Odad FDIL20
ST/S/2T SIMOT-MNOSYL
S1/£/2 ATdTYD-MNOSYD
ST/E/T SEMOT-NOSYLD
EF0EE0T " "# ANI
TIOWAYH 20I

AIVD NAGTOD NYWIID
SLATD VHNAIS NIvA
AYDYINTY FSTATHILNG
FSNOH DNILSYOY aa
ADNEOTE II¥AH Qq
AYID YINVS NOLIIH dda
GNY AYALS NOHJNOdE da
LY0SaY WINYIE ¥SVD
9Z9TO0¥ TYAQEEEY
LNARAYS

# EDICANI Lddd-aNad

+TEI0OL PIBDS

AI¥o TYIDHEWWOD ENO STTEM
FOONIEA

ST/81/¢0
1508%5Ed

Z¥

HIAGHON
od

93eq uny
ION jIoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with Carson City Fire
Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire
Protection District and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal
ambulance subscription coverage.

2. Recommended motion: None required if approved as part of the Consent Agenda. If a request
is granted to hear separately, then: I move to approve the Storey County Fire Protection District
agreement with Carson City Fire Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District,
East Fork Fire Protection District and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District for reciprocal
ambulance subscription coverage.

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames
Department: Fire District Telephone: (775) 847-0954

4. Staff summary: We currently have agreements with all of these other districts/departments for
reciprocal ambulance subscription coverage. This agreement is intended to simplify and
consolidate all other agreements into a singular master document. It also assures that all
agreements are standardized throughout the quad county area of the region.

5. Supporting materials: Interlocal Agreement between the Storey County Fire Protection
District and Carson City Fire Department, Central Lyon County Fire Protection District, East Fork
Fire Protection District and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: No Fund: N/A 2 Comptroller
7. Legal review required: L.

\ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

GDH Department Head Department Name: Fire District
sl ot Manager Other agency review:
— y g

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [] Approved with Modifications




INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT

This Interlocal Agreement is made by and between Carson City, Central Lyon County
Fire Protection District, East Fork Fire Protection District, North Lyon County Fire Protection
District, Storey County Fire Protection District, and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “PARTIES” and individually referred to as a
“PARTY™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Parties are public agencies under NRS 277.100 and NRS 277.180(1)
which provide that any one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more other
public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the
contracting agencies is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, each Party is authorized by the laws of this state to perform or undertake the
function of responding to and acting upon emergency medical incidents; and

WHEREAS, on occasion, residents of one Party’s jurisdiction have a need for emergency
medical care and transportation services (hereinafter referred to as ambulance services) in the
geographic area under another Party’s jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into a written agreement with one another
whereby enrollees to one Party’s ambulance membership program would receive the same
benefits for ambulance services provided by another Party’s membership program; and

WHEREAS, the provision of the additional benefits to enrollees contemplated by this
Agreement will make the membership programs more attractive to residents; and

WHEREAS, the membership programs provide additional revenues to fund the provision
of ambulance services to inhabitants of the Parties’ respective jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the provision of ambulance services promotes and protects the health and
welfare of the inhabitants of each Party’s jurisdiction;




AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, the governing bodies of the Partics agree as follows:

1.

The term of this Agreement commences on September 1, 2014, and shall remain in
effect until terminated by cancellation of the ambulance membership program in any
Party’s jurisdiction or until terminated by any Party upon thirty (30) days prior
written notice to each of the other Parties.

If one Party provides ambulance services to an enrollee of another Party’s
membership program, the providing Party will bill for its services pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the enrollee’s member agreement.

The Party providing ambulance services will not seek reimbursement directly from
any other Party for services provided in transporting a patient who is a member of
that Party’s membership program.

If one Party responds to the jurisdiction of another Party for a mutual or automatic aid
response and the responding Party provides billable services for a patient, the
following will apply:

a. The Party providing ambulance services will have the right to bill the patient,
or the patient’s insurance, for any services provided, except that any patient
who is enrolled in any Party’s ambulance membership program will be
handled in accordance with Section 2 of this Agreement,

b. The jurisdiction that receives the ambulance services on behalf of a patient
will not bill the patient, the patient’s insurance, or the Party providing
ambulance services.

¢. The party providing ambulance services will not seek reimbursement directly
from any other Party for services provided in transporting a patient from that
Party’s jurisdiction.

No Party will provide accounting or legal services to any other Party as they relate to
debits incurred as a result of this Agreement.

All active billing accounts commenced prior to the effective date of this Agreement
are not covered by this Agreement.

This Agreement is not intended to affect the legal liability of any Party to the

Agreement by imposing any standard of care other than the standard of care imposed
by law. Personnel of the respective Parties to this Agreement shall not be deemed to
be an agent or employee of the other Party. It is understood and agreed that no Party

2




10.

11.

to this Agreement, nor its officers or employees, is responsible for any damage or
liability occurring by reason of anything that the other Party to this agreement does or
fails to do, or its respective officers or employees do or fail to do, under or in
connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction delegated to it under this
Agreement.

It is understood and agreed that cach Party to this Agreement shall fully mdemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the other Party from any damage or liability occurring by
reason of anything done or omitted to be done by each Party or its respective officers
or employees, under or in connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction
delegated to another Party under this Agreement. Said indemnity shall include, but is
not limited to, all reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in defense of any and
all claims covered by this provision.

This Agreement governs only how ambulance services are paid for and does not
require any Party to provide any greater level of service or provide service in any
greater geographical area than it otherwise provides in the absence of this Agreement.

Any notice given by one Party to another Party must be sent by first class mail to the
following addresses and is deemed effective upon placement in the United States
mail:

Carson City Fire Department Central Lyon County Fire Protection District
777 South Stewart Street 231 Corral Drive

Carson City, NV 89701 Dayton, NV 89403

East Fork Fire Protection District North Lyon County Fire Protection District
P.O. Box 218 195 E. Main Street

Minden, NV 89423 Fernley, NV 89408

Storey County Fire Protection District Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District
P.0O. Box 603 P.O. Box 919
Virginia City, NV 89440 Zephyr Cove, NV 89448

This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties; this Agreement
shall be enforced and constructed according to the laws of the State of Nevada; any
modifications of this Agreement must be made in writing signed by the Parties;
portions of this Agreement which are held invalid are severable from the rest of the
Agreement; this Agreement may be recorded in the office of the County Recorder;
the preamble and the recitals are hereby made a part of this Agreement; and this




Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which is deemed
an original but together which constitutes but one and the same Agreement.




In Witness Whereof, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as
of the date indicated in the Agreement.

torey County Fire Protection District

0“&0—.—.—'—@ 3-32.15

Gary Hames Fire Chief Date

Date
Marshall McBride
Storey County Commission Chairman

Attest:

Date
Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk
Approved as to legal form:
Anne Langer, District Attorney Date




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

—y

. Title: For possible action approval of the Safety Manual as prepared by the Storey County
Safety Committee.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as presented as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Safety Committee Chairman Shannon Gardner
Department: Safety Committee Telephone: 775 847-0966
4. Staff summary: This manual has been prepared by the Storey County Safety Committee in an
effort to reduce on the job incidents. A written safety program is required by the State of
Nevada.

5. Supporting materials: Safety Manaual

6. Fiscal impact: NA

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: N A
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
S Department Head Department Name: Safety Committee
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

et

Agenda Item No.




orey County Safety Committee

SAFETY MANUAL

|
‘l
4
%




TABLE OF CONTENTS

8.

9.

. SAFETY PROGRAM POLICY STATEMENT

SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES

SAFETY TRAINING

SAFETY RULES AND DISCIPLINE

IDENTIFYING AND EVALUATING WORKPLACE RISKS
SAFETY COMMUNICATION

EMERGENCY SITUATIONS

EMERGENCY EVACUATION

HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL

10. ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION

11. ADDENDUM “A”, OFFICERS

12. FORMS

Safety Inspection Checklist

Hazardous Conditions Report

Injury Investigation Form

Near Miss Form

Safety Training Form

Employee Safety Communications Form

o Re o




1. SAFETY PROGRAM POLICY STATEMENT

In an effort to reduce the incidents of on-the-job injuries, the 1993 legislature changed the law to
require every employer doing business in the State of Nevada to establish and carry out the
requirements of a written safety program.

Employers who do not establish and carry out the requirements of a written safety program will
be cited by the Occupational Safety and Health Enforcement Section of the Division of Industrial
Relations of the Nevada Department of Business and Industry.

The Honorable Board of County Commissioners have endorsed and mandated a committee
comprised of all department heads, or a designated representative, to comprise the Storey County
Safety Commitiee. It is the duty and responsibility of this committee to receive workplace safety
concerns, research validity and cause appropriate changes as required to mitigate said safety
concern. The Board of County Commissioners shall appoint a Chair Person and Vice Chair
Person. Upon appointment the committee leadership positions shall be seated for a term of two
(2) years from date of appointment. Each 2 year appointment of the Chair Person and Vice Chair
Person shall be documented in Addendum “A” of this manual. Annually every department head
shall submit a list to the Chair Person indicating the department’s designated representative and
alternate. This group shall be named the Storey County Safety Committee.

The following is a written safety program developed by the Safety Committee of Storey County
and adopted by the Storey County Commissioners.

PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY AND COMPLY WITH ITS CONTENTS.

Recognizing our obligation to provide the safest possible working conditions for our employees,
this safety program is written. All employees are expected to follow the provisions set forth in
this program as a condition of continued employment. Changes and additions may be added in
the future, dependent upon the changes/additions required by local, state and federal regulations.

Commission Chairman Date




2. SAFETY RESPONSIBILITIES

The Workplace Safety Program at Storey County is designed to increase the efforts of everyone
toward our goal of having an injury and illness free workplace. All managers, supervisors and
employees are expected to familiarize themselves with the requirements of our Safety Program
and make contributions to ensure the success of the program.

While all members of management and all employees are ultimately responsible for safety and
health in the workplace, the Storey County Safety Committee Chairman is responsible for
coordination of all safety issues for the County and shall hold the position as Safety Director.

Some of the responsibilities of the SAFETY DIRECTOR include: .

- Drafting policy for approval of the County Commission, establishing all standing or short
term sub committees, assigning responsibility to individuals for specific task
responsibilities and accountability to reply back to individuals who may have safety
CONCerns.

- Reviewing and evaluating results of safety plan, training programs and individuals initial
employment training regiment. However, the Human Resources Dlrector plays the key

‘role to deliver safety training to new employees.

- Providing active leadership by participation, example, and a demonstrated interest in the
health and safety of all Storey County personnel.

- Maintaining up-to-date information on local, state and federal standards, laws and best
management practices.

- Maintaining all required safety posters. A list of the required posters for each building,
where to post them and when to update them. This information will be provided by
Storey County Human Resources Director.

- Planning, organizing, and coordinating safety and health training. There should be an
initial meeting to identify, list and facilitate ail required training sessions. After that the
Safety Committee will establish short term and long term reoccurring training sessions.
This may be done as a sub committee assignment,

- Ensuring that policies for the medical treatment of injured employees are followed; this
includes first aid equipment, designated trained first aid providers, and procedures to
provide additional medical treatment. This information shall be clearly identified as part
of evacuation plans for each facility.

- Coordination of training to department head level positions on the proper process to
follow when a workers compensation injury occurs. This should include an overview of
the appropriate forms, how to complete them and who receives them when completed.

- Provide assistance in complying with local, state and federal regulations.

- Assist as needed in injury and “near miss” investigations.

- Assist as needed in conducting inspections.

- Keep up-to-date with regulations.

- Investigate employee reports of hazardous conditions and recommend corrective action.

- Ensure that incidents which resulted in injuries are corrected after an injury occurs.




The Safety Director may, and should; use committee’s and technical experts to carry out the
above requirements. It is not the intention of this plan to mandate that the Safety Director
personally carry out each of these duties. It is however up to the Safety Director to ensure that
tasks are being accomplished in a given time frame and within specific criteria in order to
address safety concerns and/or issues.

MANAGEMENT/SUPERVISORS

- Management is responsible for ensuring that all safety policies and procedures are
followed by everyone under his/her jurisdiction.

- Management/Supervisors or their qualified appointed representative are responsible to
attend all monthly scheduled Safety Committee meetings.

- Management shall make every effort possible to allow personnel to aitend training
sessions while on duty.

- Management shall ensure that all newly hired personnel go through an identified training
session as allowed for in this manual upon their initial hire. It is also their responsibility
to-train subordinate staff’ on any and all specialized equipment in which they may be
operating.

- Management/supervisors shall work closely with Human Resources and this safety
committee to ensure that training documents are up to date in personnel files.

- Investigating accidents that may occur and identifying the corrective action necessary to -
prevent a similar accident from occurring.

- Completion of “Notice of Injury or Occupational Disease” form in the event of
accident. All departments shall have exposure report forms, C-1 and C-3 forms provided
to them. The Safety Director shall assure that all supervisory and management staff is
trained on this process.

- Enforce safety program.

- Enforce rules set forth in this program.

- Encourage employee input to report hazardous conditions and correct these problems.

- Conduct routine inspections of the facility, in adherence to forms provided within this
document, to assess hazardous conditions.

- Conduct training sessions in safety issues in accordance with local, state and federal
requirements, and as our experience indicates needs.

- Investigate all injuries and “near miss” accidents.

EMPLOYEES

All employees are expected to take a direct interest in workplace safety. Some of the
responsibilities all employees have include the following:

- Keeping informed about safety and health regulations affecting the workplace.

- Making sure they are able to complete each task to which he/she is assigned in a safe
manner.

- Making sure that machines and equipment are maintained in a safe operating condition
and to report all such items that may be unsafe to their supervisor.




Making sure fellow employees follow all safety and health regulations and work
practices, including using required personal protective equipment.

Reporting to management, without delay, any unsafe or unhealthful conditions which
they cannot correct themselves. Forms shall be made available to all departments and the
Safety Committee shall ensure that all staff knows how to complete them and who to turn
them into upon completion.

Assisting fellow employees in completing a “Notice of Injury or Occupational
Disease” form in the event of accident. All departments shall have exposure report forms,
C-1 and C-3 forms provided to them. The safety committee shall ensure that all staff is
trained on this process.

Comply with this safety program.

Report hazardous conditions to management.

Attend training sessions held by the county.

Immediately report injuries and accidents which do not result in injuries (“near misses”
to management. -




3.

SAFETY TRAINING

As part of our Safety Program, the county will provide several different types of safety training
for all our employees:

A general safety orientation for all new employees shall be provided by Human
Resources upon hire. This training shall be documented in each employees personnel file.

Specific training on how to safely perform their assigned job. This shall be provided by
the specific department head and/or supervisor, documentation of training shall be
completed and forwarded to Human Resources.

Special training when they work with hazardous materials or complex types of machinery
or other equipment. This shall be provided by the specific department head and/or
supervisor, documentation of training shall be completed and forwarded to Human

Resources.

Special training in areas where there have been recurring injuries. OSHA reportable
injuries shall be tracked by Human Resources as reported to him/her through submitted
C-1 and C-3 forms.

Training on how to use any personal protective equipment provided (c.g. respirators,
hearing protection, etc.) This shall be provided by the specific department head and/or
supervisor, documentation of training shall be completed and forwarded to Human
Resources.

These requirements are based upon the assumption that when employees know how to do their
jobs properly, and know the hazards of the job, they will work safely.

Safety education and training for employees should commence at the time of employment prior
to staff actually beginning an assigned task, supervisors must ensure that employees are provided
the following instruction during New Employee Orientation:

An explanation of the Counties Safety Manual.
Familiarization with the SAFETY RULES of the county and enforcement policies.

The requirement for immediate reporting of all injuries and completing a NOTICE OF
INJURY OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE form.

The necessity and manner for reporting all unsafe conditions to Management (SAFETY
ACTION REQUEST FORMS are included).

A clear statement that no employee should attempt to do a job or work with equipment
that appears to be unsafe.




- A listing of the names and addresses of all medical providers under contract to treat
employees injured on the job.

After a person is assigned to a job, the responsibility for safety training passes to the immediate
supervisor in Management. The supervisor must discuss and document the following with each
employee:

- The safety rules of the department in which the employee will work.

- The correct job procedure for the employee to follow in any particular job; it also should
be emphasized that doing the job incorrectly may hurt people or damage equipment or
supplies.

- How to use any personal protective equipment required.
- -- - All information pertinent to the area regarding hazardous materials.

The initial training is to be documented on the EMPLOYEE SAFETY ORIENTATION FORM
and signed by the employee and returned to Human Resources to be retained in his/her personnel
file. : : '

It is most desirable to follow this initial instruction with a complete review within 30 days after
assignment to the job. This will assure that the new employee fully understands the information
given at the time of employment and at the time of assignment to the job. When this additional
training is completed it is important that another Employee Safety Orientation Form is completed
and maintained in their personnel file.

Supervisor will also provide additional training whenever the employee’s job changes, new
hazardous materials are introduced, new machines/tools are used, new safety protection
equipment is needed, or there are incidents of recurring injuries, and re-train any employees that
do not seem to understand proper safety procedures. The SAFETY TRAINING
DOCUMENTATION form must be used to document any of these types of training.

Whenever personnel are used from a temporary employment service, management must provide
them specialized training for the jobs they will be performing before they actually begin work or
as soon as possible thereafter. This training also needs to be recorded with a SAFETY
TRAINING DOCUMENTATION form.
Effective safety training will result in the following benefits to our County:

- Reduction in injuries

- Reduction in damage to property and supplies

- Reduction in retraining time




- Reduction in liability

- Increase in asking for help when it is needed
- Increase in production

- Increase in morale

- Decrease in absenteeism

- Healthier employees

The safety coordinator is responsible to see to it that training is done. Training will be done
routinely and may include the following topics:

Emergency Action Plan ) -
Safe Lifting

Hazard Communication

Hazard Recognition, Evaluation and Control
First Aid/CPR '

Heat Stress

Hand Safety

Video Display Terminal Work Station Design
Housekeeping

Fire Extinguisher Usage

Eye Protection

Holiday Safety

® & & & & 2 & & & o v »




4.

SAFETY RULES AND DISCIPLINE

Best Business Practices dictates that we have “a method for ensuring that employees comply
with safe rules and work practices.” Safe rules are a basic part of our Workplace Safety Program
and are also part of our disciplinary procedures. However, the point of having safety rules is not
to discipline, but rather to ensure a safe working environment. All employees need to know and
follow these Safety Rules and all management personnel must enforce them.

The task of the Safety Committee is to change unsafe behavior by:

Recognizing (rewarding) safe performance.

It is important that supervisors and management recogmze correct job performance and
compliment employees for it. Putting a citation in writing and making it a part of an
employee’s personnel record is but one means of recognizing safety excellence.

Correcting (changing behavior through discipline if necessary) unsafe behavior

Unsafe job procedures will not be tolerated. Any member of management observing
unsafe job behavior is expected to bring it to the attention of the employee’s supervisor.
Supervisors’ (Management) are expected to take steps immediately to correct the
behavior.

The following safety rules are representative:

1.

Employees must immediately report to supervisor/management all accidents, injuries,
unsafe and/or unhealthful conditions in the workplace, any near miss incidents, including
defective tools or other equipment.

Established safe job procedures must be followed by all employees as defined by
supervisors/managers. Changes in regular job procedures require the approval of
management.

. Employees who are unsure on how to operate a machine or perform any assigned task

that they are required to do, must ask their supervisor before proceeding. The supervisor
will also note all training that occurs and assure that it is placed into the employees
personnel file located in the Human Resources Department. This includes, but not limited
to, routine training processes that occur in the field.

Employees must not tamper with, remove, destroy or otherwise interfere with the use of
any safety device or safeguard provided for protection of employees or customers.

Personal protective equipment must be provided by the County and worn or used in any
area where it is required.

10




9.

Employees must use only the proper tool for the job. If the proper tool is not available,
contact management.

Employees are required to get help in lifting any item which is so bulky, awkward or
heavy that they feel they cannot lift it safely.

If a repetiiive task causes employees discomfort, or they feel it is unsafe or unhealthy,
they must report this condition to management immediately.

Horseplay, including fighting or throwing articles is forbidden.

10. If an employee is suspected of using alcohol and/or other drugs in the workplace, this will

be investigated and, if necessary, disciplinary measures will be taken. See appropriate
County Policy regarding this issue.

The four-step procedure outlined below would normally be followed for violations of safety
rules. However, each case may be considered in light of @ number of factors (e.g. employee’s
length of service, seriousness of the incident, other mitigating factors and appropriate Collective
Bargaining Agreement language). In conjunction with the appropriate Collective Bargaining
Agreement, the County reserves the right to invoke any level of discipline at any point and, in
fact, an employee may be terminated for the first instance of a serious safety violation.

1.

The first time an infraction is noted; management should discuss the behavior with the
employee and make sure the employee understands the nature of the violation and the
consequences that would result if there is a repeat violation. This verbal warning should
be documented and signed by the employee and then placed in the employee’s personnel
file. This counseling session should also include what training you provided to the
employee, or what training you have required them to attend and how the employee will
perform differently the next time they do the same function.

The second violation should be treated as a disciplinary action under applicable Human
Resources Policy and/or CBA.

The third violation should result in the employee being placed on an unpaid disciplinary
suspension. This action must be reviewed first with Management.

A fourth safety violation may resuit in the employece being terminated. This action must
be reviewed first by Management.

These steps are not necessarily followed if the safety violation is a serious hazard either to the
employee or to the County. In the case of a serious safety violation, the County may elect to
immediately proceed to a higher step. When there is a CBA in place the manager/supervisor shall
follow those steps regarding chain of progressive disciplinary action.

General Safety Rules:

11




Do not run in the workplace or parking lot.

Follow prescribed safety practices at all times.

Do not use machinery if it is not properly guarded.

Report hazardous conditions as described in this program.

Do not try to lift more than you feel comfortable with — get help.
Maintain safe housekeeping standards in your work area.

Do not eat or drink in assigned first-aid arcas.

Wear appropriate personal protective equipment when at jobs where this is required.
Report all injuries and near misses 1mmed1ately

10 Comply with all safety instructions given.

11. Horseplay is prohibited and may result in termination.

D00 N OV L

Management is responsible to enforce these general safety rules, as well as more specific safety
policies included in other written programs.

We maintain a progressive disciplinary policy.

All disciplinary action will be documented by using the appropriate forms as indicated in County
Policy or applicable Collective Bargaining Agreements.

12




S.  IDENTIFYING AND EVALUATING WORKPLACE RISKS

In order to comply with manufacturer’s recommendations, best management practices, local,
state and federal regulations, we conduct regular and frequent inspections of the workplace. To
maintain a safe and healthy environment for employees, we need to have a way to identify
hazards in the workplace.

Inspection of the workplace is our primary tool to identify unsafe conditions and practices. This
includes the totality of the employees work environment. This may include buildings/offices, but
should be all inclusive of equipment, apparatus, vehicles, specialized small motors, hand tools,
personal protective equipment, etc. Management is responsible for routinely inspecting all work
areas.  Supervisors need to document their inspections of the workplace by using the-
SUPERVISOR’S SAFETY INSPECTION FORM. This form should be completed on a
quarterly basis and forwarded to the Safety Director.

Supervisors must routinely check for:

- Violations of safety rules

Machinery or other equipment without the necessary guards

- Unsafe use or storage of chemicals, including flammables

- Obvious violations of good housekeeping practices

- Personal protective equipment not being used where required or being used improperly
- Machinery, hand tools or other equipment in poor condition or being used improperly
- Areas where there have been recurring injuries

- Any other deviation from accepted safe practices

- Fire Extinguishers

- AED’s in buildings that have such

-~ Trip and fall potentials

- Waeather related hazards

13




6. SAFETY COMMUNICATION

Unless a system for communicating safety throughout the organization is established, employees
may not understand management’s policies and intentions, and management may not get
unfiltered communication from the employees about safety hazards or their needs.

We expect supervisors o encourage and welcome suggestions. Employees may submit their
safety suggestions on a SAFETY ACTION REQUEST FORM.

Management will respond — in writing — to the employee submitting a Safety Action Request
Form, indicating what action has been taken.

Management needs to bring to the attention of employee’s all types. of safety communication,

including the safety suggestion box, safety memos, safety posters safety banners, paycheck
inserts, articles relating to safety, etc.

14




7. EMERGENCY SITUATIONS

In case of an emergency, dial 9-911 from a County Phone and 9-1-1 from a home based or non-
Centrex phone line, and be prepared to give;

1. Your name and Location.
2. Phone number.

3. Naturc of the emergency and the assistance you require (Fire Department, Paramedics,
Police, etc).

4. Location of the incident/injury, including the building address, which part of the building
and nearby cross streets. '

5. Prepare to have someone meet emergency vehicle in front of the building.

6. During business hours, call or notify the injured employees immediate supervisor or
manager to report the information about the emergency.

7. If the event occurs during non-business hours, carefully document the event and give it to

Management as soon as possible. Additionally, the Human Resources Director should be
immediately made aware of any and all workers compensation injuries.

15




8. EMERGENCY EVACUATION

Management and all employees must become familiar with the evacuation routes for their work
areas. Part of the orientation with new employees should include a discussion of emergency
evacuation procedures. Management is responsible for the safe evacuation of all personnel in an
emergency. This includes development, implementation and posting of primary and secondary
evacuation routes in the event of an emergency. These shall be posted in a conspicuous location
that is visible to the public as well as internal staff. The location of fire extinguishers shall also
be identified on the evacuation plans.

Evacuations of all buildings shall be done at least annually to assure staff remains current on the
plan. These evacuation drills should include not only full evacuations but also should address
what will be done in a hostile environment. This is commonly called in place secured sheltering.
In addition, what will occur in the event of an earthquake and sheltering locations for such.

All employees and management alike have a responsibility for securing their own buildings. This

- includes how to turn off the power, locate and shut down a propane tank and general safety

considerations specific to that building.

To be prepared for an evacuation, locate the nearest appropriate exit and assembly area. Make
sure ‘all employees know the appropriate exits and assembly areas. Remind employees to walk,
not run.

If evacuation is necessary (Code Green):

1. If available, attempt to use the public address system to order an evacuation. Repeat the
message as long as it is safe to stay in the building. In an urgent situation it is important
to get out of the building quickly. Do not wait around and become entrapped or unable to
escape.

2. If possible, inspect the area to ensure all employees have been safely evacuated.

3. Shut — but do not lock — doors and assemble with your co-workers in the nearest
designated assembly area and verify that all employees are there. Notify employees
when it is safe to return to the building.

In place sheltering - violence (Code Red):

- This will be used when an immediate safety risk exists to the staff or customers. An
example is a hostile person threatening to take action, but has not arrived to the building
yet.

- Secure and lock all doors and windows.

- Cover windows whenever possible.

16




- Stay away from windows and doors.
- Attempt to find a location that the person cannot see you.

- Do not open the door/windows until law enforcement has arrived on scene.

In place sheltering — non violence — external hazard such as a materials release (Code Yellow):

- Close all windows and doors.

- Place clothing or something around any doors seals —or- duct tape around doors and
windows.

- Turn off any forced air heat or air conditioning that draws from the outside of the
structure. .

17




9. HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND CONTROL

Management and/or the safety coordinator will conduct monthly inspections, using the checklist
contained as the end of this program. Problems will be noted in the checklist under the
“satisfactory” colummn, and corrective action will be noted under the “comments” column. The
safety coordinator will maintain these completed checklists for five years from the date of

inspection.

Employees are to report hazardous conditions by using the Employee Hazardous Condition
report form, twrmning them into their supervisor. The safety coordinator will recommend
corrective action to be followed up on by management. This will all be written on the Employee
Hazardous Condition Report form, which will be maintained by the safety coordinator for five
years.

18




10. ACCIDENT INVESTIGATIONS
All injuries are to be reported immediately by filling out a C-1 to management, An investigation
is to begin immediately by the immediate supervisor of the injured person. The Injury

Investigation form is to be completed by the immediate supervisor,

The C-1 and the Injury Investigation Form are to be turned in to Human Resources in order to
ensure corrective action is taken to reduce the probability of an injury recurring.

Near misses are to be reported by the Near Miss Form, and the process for investigating and
correcting the problem is the same as described above.

19




11. ADDENDUM “A”

APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS

Per Storey County Commissioner’s Meeting date:

Safety Committee Officers appointed for terms beginning on date:

and ending on date:

Are as follows;

Chairman:
Signature:
Contact info:
Cell phone
e-mail
Vice Chair:
Signature:

Contact info:
Cell phone

e-mail

20




9 N9 LB L

9.
10.
11.
12.
13.

14.
15.
16.
17.
I8.
19.
20.
21
22.

SAFETY INSPECTION CHECKLIST
Yes/No/Comments

All exits unblocked

No tripping hazards present.

No obstructions in passageways.

All electrical boxes covered/closed.

Personnel wearing proper PPE.

First aid supplies available and adequate.

Fire extinguishers charged.

Exits clearly marked.

Flammable materials stored in metal cabinets.

Hazardous materials containers labeled.

Emergency evacuation route maps on board.

Employees lifting properly.

Combustible material not stored near
hot objects.

Low clearance marked appropriately.

Equipment in use being used properly

Equipment in use in safe condition.

Fire extinguishers clear of obstructions.

All moving parts and pinch points guarded.

Electrical cords in good condition.

No slip hazards present.

No sharp edges present.

Other.

Signature Date

21




HAZARDOUS CONDITION REPORT

Date: Name (optional):

Hazardous Condition:

Suggested Solution:

Investigation of Safety Coordinator:

Corrective Action Taken (completed by Safety Coordinator:

22




Employees are protected by NRS 618.383 against retribution from management for completing
this form in order to report unsafe conditions.

INJURY INVESTIGATION FORM
(TO BE COMPLETED BY SUPERVISOR)

Employee Name: SSN:

Job Position:

Date and Time of Injury:

TLocation of Accident:

Location of Injury:

Date and Time of Injury reported to you:

Witnesses:

First Aid given:

How did injury occur?

What were causes of injury?

What recommendations do you have to prevent reoccurrences?

23




Corrective Action Taken (completed by safety coordinator)

Supervisor Signature

24

Safety Coordinator Signature




NEAR MISS REPORT FORM
(TO BE COMPLETED BY EMPLOYEE)

Emplbyee Name: SSN:

Job Position;

Date and Time of Near Miss:

Witnesses:

Describe what happened:

How do you think this can be prevented in the future?

Corrective Action (to be completed by safety coordinator)

Employee Signature Date Supervisor Signature

25

Date




SAFETY TRAINING FORM

Topic:

Trainer: Date:

Format:

Sign-in:

26




EMPLOYEE SAFETY COMMUNICATON FORM

This form 1s for use by employees who wish to provide a safety suggestion or report an unsafe
workplace condition or practice.

Description of unsafe condition or practice:

Location where unsafe condition exists:

Causes or other contributing factors:

Employee’s suggestion for improving safety:

Has this matter been reported to the area supervisor?  Yes No

Employee Name (optional):

Department: Date:

Employees are advised that the use of this form or other reports of unsafe conditions or practices
are protected by law. It would be illegal for the employer to take action against an employee in
reprisal for exercising rights to participate in communication involving safety.

27




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3 / ?5/ 15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners” meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

None

““District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: # ® < y
x__ Department ‘fc

County Manager Other agency review;

Department Name: Community Development

0. Board action:
Il Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Conumunity Debelopment
Buginess

Litenging

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847—0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 23, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager _ Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri
Please add the following item(s) to the March 3, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:
A. PELLETT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 616 East Glendale ~ Sparks

B. S.W.0.R.D. DESIGN - General / 420 USA Parkway TRI
C. ELECTRIC TECH CONSTRUCTION, INC, - Contractor / 1910 Mark Court ~ Concord, CA

Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Storey County Fire Protection District agreement with the Nevada Division of
Forestry for participation for the Wildland Fire Protection Program (WFPP).

2. Recommended motion: None required if approved as part of the Consent Agenda. If a request
is granted to hear separately, then: I move to approve the renewal of the Storey County Fire
Protection District agreement with the Nevada Division of Forestry for the Wildland Fire
Protection Program.

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames

Department: Fire District Telephone: (775) 847-0954
Lepartment Aseiepiaone

4. Staff summary: The existing WFPP is due to expire on June 30, 2015. This is required to renew
the WFPP agreement for the next biennium. This contract will be in effect from July 1, 2015
through June 30, 2017. There have been no cost increases with this contract and the first two
years proved to be beneficial to both parties. This contract is for $150,000 per year for a total of
$300,000 over the next biennium.

5. Supporting materials: Interlocal Contract Between Department of Conservation and Natural
Resources (NDF) and the Storey County Fire Protection District.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: 250 @-/Z Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

\/_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
GDH Department Head Department Name: Fire District

Q«“’&'/County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

] b




INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
Nevada Division of Forestry
2478 Fairview Drive, Carson City, Nevada 89701
Phone (775) 684-2500 — Fax (775) 684-2570

And

Storey County Fire Protection District
145 N “C” Street, PO Box 603
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone 775-847-0968 — Fax 775-847-0987

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one or more
other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public
agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of Nevada Division of Forestry hereinafter set forth are both
necessary to Storey County Fire Protection District and in the best interests of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its officers,
employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017, unless sooner
terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in paragraph
(3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 60 days after a party has served writien notice
upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by
either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if
for any reason federal and/or State Legislature funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited,
or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall
be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, by telephonic
tacsimile with simultancous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid
on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be
specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of

constructive precedence:
ATTACHMENT A: WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION PROGRAM SCOPE OF WORK

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page lof 4




7. CONSIDERATION. Nevada Division of Forestry agrees to provide the services set forth in paragraph
(6) at a cost of $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2016 and $150,000 for State Fiscal Year 2017, not to exceed
$300,000 with quarterly installments payable in advance on the first of each guarter, starting July 1 of each
fiscal year. Any intervening end to a biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal
(not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of legislative appropriation may
require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this
Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of
precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting
principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully
disclose to the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or
reviews, sufficient information to determine compliance with all state and federal regulations and statutes.
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer
related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the
party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product
shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any
office or location where such records may be found, with or without notice by the State Auditor,
Employment Security, the Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney
General's Office or its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal
funding, the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office
of the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.

c. Period of Retention, All books, records, reports, and staternents relevant to this Contract must be
retained a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal funds are used in this Contract. The
retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract. Retention time shall be extended when
an audit is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to
complete any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH: REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be
deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the
parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity,
including but not limited to actual damages and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. It
is specifically agreed that reasonable attorneys' fees shall include without limitation $125 per hour for State
employed attorneys and County employed attorneys.

11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41
liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages.
Actual damages for any breach shall never exceed the amount of funds which have been appropriated for
payment under this Contract, but not yet paid, for the fiscal year budget in existence at the time of the
breach.

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented
from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or
military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without
limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be
through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly
perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause ceases.

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page 20f 4




13. INDEMNIFICATION,

a. To the fullest extent of limited liability as set forth in paragraph (11) of this Contract, each party shall
indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the other's right to participate, the other from and
against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of the party, its
officers, employees and agents. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise
reduce any other right or obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person
described in this paragraph.

b. The indemnification obligation under this paragraph is conditioned upon receipt of written notice by the
indemnifying party within 30 days of the indemnified party’s actual notice of any actual or pending claim
or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not be liable to hold harmless any attorneys' fees and
costs for the indemnified party’s chosen right to participate with legal counsel.

14, INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the
purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant to
this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and,
subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control,
and direct performance of the details incident to its duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this
Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an
employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any Hability for one agency whatsoever with
respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of
any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of
law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of
such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law any reports,
histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system
designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents
or drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of its abligations under
this Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or
otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this
Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties
are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program Page 3o0f 4




22. GOVERNING LAW:; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties
hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties
consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s)
constitute the entire agreement of the parties and as such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement
of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made
in connection with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically
displays a mutual intent to amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between
any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless
otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract
shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto
and approved by the Office of the Attorney General.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally bound
thereby.

FOR STOREY DISTRICT FIRE FOR DCNR and DIVISION (STATE)
PROTECTION DISTRICT

Marshall McBride, Chair, Board of Commissioners Date Robert Roper, State Forester/Firewarden Date
Leo Drozdoff, Director, DCNR Date

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk/Treasurer Date

Approved as to form by: Approved as to form by:

Anne Langer, District Attorney Date Bryan Stockton, Deputy Attorney General for Date

Attorney General, State of Nevada

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS:

Signature — Nevada State Board of Examiners Date

Interlocal Contract Between Public Agencies, Wildland Fire Protection Program  Page dof 4




Attachment A
WILDLAND FIRE PROTECTION PROGRAM
SCOPE of WORK

I. IDENTIFICATION OF ENTITIES

A. The State of Nevada Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (hereinafter
“DCNR”) which exists pursuant to NRS 232.010(1), and the Nevada Division of
Forestry (hereinafter “DIVISION”) which exists pursuant to NRS 232.090(c), are
both agencies of the State of Nevada (and are from time to time collectively referred
to as “STATE” in this Agreement);

B. Storey County Fire Protection District, is a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (hereinafter “DISTRICT™);

IL RECITALS

WHEREAS, all signatories to this Agreement are public agencies authorized by Chapter
277 of the Nevada Revised Statutes to enter into interlocal and cooperative agreements with each
other for the performance of governmental functions; and;

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is authorized to serve its community in many different ways,
including emergency situation management such as fire and emergency medical service,
hazardous materials, confined space rescue, fire prevention, aircraft fire rescue, and others.

WHEREAS, the DIVISION has responsibility to supervise or coordinate all forestry and
watershed work on state-owned and privately owned lands, including fire control, in Nevada,
working with federal agencies, private associations, counties, towns, cities or private persons
and;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION may maintain or have access to additional specialized
wildfire expertise and suppression resources and;

WHEREAS, it is to the mutual advantage of the DIVISION and the DISTRICT to work
closely together to maintain effective wildfire management without duplication, and to
coordinate efforts with federal cooperators and;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION and the DISTRICT desire to define their roles,
responsibilities and relationships to achieve the most effective protection of forest, range, and
watershed lands and;

WHEREAS, the DIVISION and the DISTRICT recognize that safe, aggressive initial
attack is often the best suppression strategy to keep wildland fires small and costs down and;

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 1 of 6




WHEREAS, it is understood that the mission and intent of all parties is to quickly
suppress wildland fires regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually
beneficial to all parties (o jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively contain all
wildland fires and;

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has requested to participate in the DIVISION Wildland Fire
Protection Program (hereinafter WFPP), and the DIVISION is authorized to render wildland fire

protection services, including cost reimbursement, to the DISTRICT;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises, it is agreed between the
parties as follows:

III. TERMS
A. Location

The DISTRICT will provide the DIVISION a map of the jurisdictional boundaries the
DISTRICT enrolled in the WFPP

B. Payment

The DIVISION will pay qualifying wildland fire suppression expenses to (or for)
participating DISTRICT jurisdiction in the WFPP,

1. Qualifving Expenses

Reasonable and prudent expenses (actual costs, based on established rates of the
jurisdiction or DIVISION, attached) with respect to values at risk, for wildland fire suppression
and support resources engaged in wildland fire suppression within the DISTRICT jurisdiction, or
through a cost-share agreement with Federal Agencies on adjacent or comingled jurisdiction.

* [Initial Attack Suppression forces (Assistance by Hire), including aviation resources.

e Extended Attack resources (Assistance by Hire), services and supplies with a
Resource Order number.

¢ Vehicles, equipment and apparatus utilizing established Rates based on actual

operating costs.

Fire Base Camp — Incident Command Post set-up and operational costs.

Food services for Incident personnel.

Transportation to/from Incident.

Repair/replacement of uninsured items and small equipment damaged or destroyed

during fire suppression (with IC approval and completed OF-289, Property Loss or

Damage Report).

Use of Mobile equipment.

Use of Aircraft services.

Personnel costs utilizing established Rates based on actual operating costs.

Incident Management Team, mobilization and support.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 2 of 6




e Cost Share Agreements.
e Dispatch overtime.
* Fire suppression damage repair.

2. Excluded Expenses

¢ DISTRICT equipment, apparatus, personnel salary and benefits, unless expenses are
directly attributed to a wildland fire covered under the WFPP.

¢ DISTRICT equipment and repair/maintenance costs associated with wildland fire

response and normal wear and tear.

Individuals and agencies when in “mutual aid” to DISTRICT.

“Profit” and Administrative fees.

Dispatch personnel and services, regular time.

Agency Overhead personnel not specifically assigned to the incident.

Non-expendable (non-consumable) accountable property, i.e. Chainsaws, FAX

Machines, and Mobile Air Conditioners.

Claims and award payments.

e Interest and indemnities payments.

¢ DISTRICT Burned Area Emergency Rehabilitation (BAER) beyond suppression
damage repair.

e Resources demobilized before the end of the mutual aid period.

o [Escaped Prescribed Burns that were initiated by the DISTRICT.

3. Negotiable Expenses

Costs not outlined above may be subject to negotiation between the parties for payment.

The DISTRICT should notify the DIVISION of any questions, issues or situations
regarding qualifying expenses that are not clear or require negotiation. The DIVISION will set a
meeting to discuss and/or resolve. If the parties are unable to reach a mutually agreeable
resolution, either party may refer the matter to the Review Committee (Section J) for further
action.

C. Annual Planning Meeting

Annually, representatives of the DIVISION, the DISTRICT, and others deemed
necessary, shall meet and jointly discuss, review, and update as necessary the WEPP and set rates
for personnel and equipment. The DIVISION will arrange the date and location for the meeting
each year.

D. Use of Incident Management Teams

The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION State Duty Officer of any wildland fire in their
jurisdiction that may require mobilization of an Incident Management Team. The DIVISION

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 3 of 6




will participate in unified command role and actively participate as an Agency Administrator on
any Type Il or Type I wildland incident in a WFPP jurisdiction.

E. Organizing, Equipping, and Training

The DISTRICT will cooperate in the training, equipping and maintaining of wildland
firefighting forces in the DISTRICT.

The DIVISION will assist the DISTRICT in the organizing and training of DISTRICT
and cooperator forces to detect, contain and extinguish wildland fires at no charge.

F. Wildfire Pre-Suppression

The DIVISION will provide, at the DISTRICT’S request, technical assistance with
hazardous fuels reduction and/or modification, including developing projects, prescriptions, and
plans; State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) pre project reviews for potential impacts upon
historic properties; Threatened and Endangered (T&E) species occurrences; and other technical
services as requested and available. The DIVISION will provide, at the DISTRICT’S request,
subject to availability, personnel and apparatus to assist in Public Wildfire Education Programs,
and the DIVISION and the DISTRICT will collaborate on a wildland fire prevention program
that includes a common message.

G. Wildfire Suppression

The DIVISION and the DISTRICT will utilize the “closest forces” concept for all
wildland fire responses. This concept dictates that the closest available resources respond to
initial attack fires, regardless of jurisdiction, whenever there is a critical and immediate need for
the protection of life and property. Beyond initial attack, the "closest forces” concept is modified
and the respective agencies will request the most appropriate resource to aid in the suppression
of a wildfire. The DIVISION will pay DISTRICT volunteer fire departments $20 per hour (with
a 2 hour minimum) per fire engine/tender for wildland fire suppression responses in the
DISTRICT.

H. Reporting/Notification

The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION State Duty Officer of any wildland fire in their
Jurisdiction that may require DIVISION assistance at time of size up or as soon as reasonably
possible.

I. Prescribed Burning

The DIVISION and the DISTRICT will coordinate technical assistance for prescribed
fires and fuels reduction projects. Prescribed burning costs are not eligible for reimbursement

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 4 of 6




under the WEFPP. If initiated by the DISTRICT Escaped Prescribed Fires (conversion to wildland
fire) are not eligible for reimbursement or direct payment under the WEPP.

J. Review Committee

The STATE will establish a review committee to adjudicate issues or questions between
the DIVISION and the DISTRICT which cannot be resolved informally through the parties. The
Director of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR) will request one
STATE representative and two individuals from jurisdictions other than where the dispute is
occurring to serve on the Committee. The Committee will meet and discuss the issue and make a
non-binding recommendation to the Director of DCNR for a final decision. The use of a Review
Committee, however, is not intended to alter or supplant any other remedy either party may have
at law.

K. Reimbursement/Payment

The DIVISION will provide reimbursement to the DISTRICT, or provide for direct
payment of approved costs to Federal Agencies and other vendors.

The DIVISION will provide template/process for billing eligible DISTRICT costs to the
Wildland Fire Protection Program.

1. Billing invoice requirements:

One incident per invoice;

Incident name;

Incident start date;

Incident number (State and Federal);

Contact point for questions;

Standard billing documentation: Dispatch Resource Orders, Cost
Share Agreements, Transaction Registers and backup documentation
(Resource Order Numbers for all Supplies, Incident Dispatch Log).

o D o

The DISTRICT will prepare and submit to the DIVISION incident billing packages no
later than six (6) months from the date the incident is declared out, with the exception of certain
FEMA, Civil Cost Recovery and other incidents that warrant specific time tables. The
DIVISION reserves the right to return billing packages not meeting the billing invoice
requirements outlined above, for correction. Failure to meet these timelines shall not be
construed as a release or waiver of claims for reimbursement against the other party. If the six
(6)-month timeframe cannot be met, immediate written notification shall be made to the
DIVISION Deputy Administrator.

For Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) billings, the DIVISION will be
the lead agency for all bills to be submitted for the Fire Management Assistance Grant Program
(FMAG). The DIVISION requires estimated bills from the DISTRICT within 30 days of the fire
being declared out. The DISTRICT will track resources and costs associated with wildland fires.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 5 of 6




L. Non-Wildland Fire Emergency Assistance

The DIVISION will provide to the DISTRICT participating in the WEFPP, assistance
without cost (subject to availability) requested by the DISTRICT for emergencies which threaten
human life or property including the use of DIVISION aircraft, Conservation Camp Crews,
apparatus and heavy equipment,

M. Cost Share Agreements

The DISTRICT will notify the DIVISION State Duty Officer of any wildland fire in their
jurisdiction that may require a cost share agreement between agencies/jurisdictions. The
DIVISION will assume an active role in the development of the cost share agreement and must

ratify the agreement in order for any expenses incurred through the agreement to qualify under
the WFPP.

N. Fire Investigations

PARTIES shall render mutual assistance in investigation and law enforcement activities,
and in court prosecutions, to the fullest extent possible. The DISTRICT shall be responsible for
fire-related law enforcement activities on wildfires that originate on their respective lands. The
DIVISION has the ability to seek cost recovery actions on known human caused fires. To the
extent permitted by State law, the DISTRICT will provide investigation files relative to the fire
to the DIVISION.

Wildland Fire Protection Program Scope of Work Page 6 of 6




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-261, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change the name to Brothels,
amending the procedure for revoking a license, and changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the second reading of Ordinance 14-258.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Ordinance 14-261 was introduced by the Board on its November 12, 2014
meeting with the understanding that staff would work to give the Board their suggestions on how to
amend the ordinance. The Board on its December 2, 2014 meeting continued the matter on staff’s
request. On February 2, 2015 the Board held a public hearing and continued the matter to this
meeting. Several additional discussions on brothel procedures and proposed language were held; this
is staff’s redrafted ordinance.

The request is to have the Board to take public comment on the ordinance, determine whether
to change any of the language, and then to pass the ordinance. The issues that have been resolved
{shown as underlined blue italics) include: 1) the succession language for licenses, 2) allowing
prostitutes to stay segregated at the brothel, for up to 48 hours, until they receive medical clearance,
3) clarifying requirements for the approval of a brothel manager by the licensing board. (Continued
on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 14-261
6. Fiscal impact; None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

= r—
o

Agenda Item No,




4. Staff summary continued: The issue for the board to determine is in section 5.16.220 B (1).
Staff is reccommending the language that is in the proposed ordinance for what is necessary
identification for work cards. The alternative proposed (shown in green italics) follows that
section.




Ordinance No, 13-261

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change
the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license,
exempting financial institution lenders from application requirements, and
changing requirements on work cards,

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 Prostitution to change
the name to Brothels, amending the procedure for revoking a license,
changing requirements on work cards, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 5.16 Prostitution is amended as follows:

Chapter 5.16

Prostitution Brothels

5.16.010 Declaration of public policy on privilege permit business.

A. lsfeund-and-declared The board of county commissioners finds and declares
that the public health, safety, morals and welfare of the inhabitants of the county require
the regutation and controi of each brothel, as a privilege permit business, the licensing
of which is granted in the sole discretion of the board (as-defined-below) and the
regutation and control of each person with an ownership interest in, who is engaged in,
who is associated with or who is in control of the sueh business, inciuding the local
general manager ermanagers—-any-thereof.

B. It is unlawful to practice prostitution, to allow acts of prostitution or sex-for-hire
services, to solicit business for a prostitute or to procure any person for the purpose of
prostitution, except as permitted by licensed-and conducted-in-accordance-with this
chapter.

C. Any license issued under the provisions of this chapter is a revocable privilege and
the holder does not acquire any vested rights to the permit. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.020 Definitions.
When used in this chapter, the following words and terms are defined as follows:

hall L : . o e o

Draft 2-16-15




"Applicant” means any person, including a trustee of an inter vivos trust, a director,
officer or shareholder of a corporation, or a member or manager and owner of a limited
liability company applying to the board for a license under the provisions of this chapter.

"Board" means the Brothel Licensing Board of Storey County consisting of the board
of three Geoounty Gecommissioners and the Ssheriff of Storey County.

"Brothel" means a business engaged in prostitution, sex-for-hire services, and all
associated activities allowed and of approved under this chapter.

"Escort” means any person who, for a compensation of any type, accompanies any
other person to or about social affairs, places of entertainment or amusement, or who
consorts with others about any piace of public resort or within any private quarters
outside of a brothel.

"Escort service" includes any person, business or agency which, for compensation of
any type, furnishes or offers to furnish escorts, also known as "outdating."

"Licensed operation" means a brothel duly licensed and operated in accordance with
the provisions of this chapter.

“Operational control” means the control of or the ability to control any substantial
business decision involving a brothel.

‘Premises” means the brothel building, accessory buildings used by customers, and
area within the fenced enclosure, if any, of the building.

"Work card" means the card issued by the sheriff to each employee and to each
prostitute authorizing them to work at a licensed operation. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.030 Prostitution permitted--Compliance-with provisions-
Prostitutionpermitted: The operation of a licensed brothel within the county in

accordance with the provisions of this chapter does not constitute a public nuisance or
an offense to public decency. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.040 Powers of the licensing board.

A. The board has the is-made-and-constitutesthe-full-and sole authority to grant a
permit to operate a brothel, and the sole authority to make, alter and rescind all
necessary regulations setting forth the terms and conditions under which such permits
may be applied for, the terms and conditions under which sueh permits shall may be
granted, transferred, revoked or canceled, where such brothels shall may be located:
within the county, and any and all other regulations necessary regarding the conditions
under which the brothels may be allowed to operate.

B. It shall-be is the duty of the board to carry out terms of the provisions of this
chapter, and to see that this chapter is faithfully enforced.

C. Powers of the board shall include, but shall are not be limited to, the power to:

1. Receive all license and general manager applications. subnmt%ed—unéeﬁme

provisions-ot-thischapier;
2. Investigate all applicants. underthe-provisions-ofthis chapter;
3. Grant or refuse to grant the license. providedforinthis-chapter;

4. Approve or disapprove a general manager for a licensed operation.
4 5. Receive complaints concerning alleged violations of this chapter.

Draft 2-16-15




& 6. Restrict, revoke or suspend licenses for cause after a hearing. In an
emergency the board may issue an order for immediate suspension or limitation of a
license, but the order must state the reason for suspens:on or l:m:tatlon and afford the
licensee a hearing. Rex ,
againstlicenses issued-underthe terms of thischapter

67 Exer0|se enwa%eper the power and authorlty necessary to perform the dutles

assigned it, ne
and

£ 8. Hear appeals from enforcement actions of the S sheriff of Starey-County.
(Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

Draft 2-16-15




Draft 2-16-15



5.16.0850 License application--Filing and investigation.

A. All license applications for a brothel undertheprovisions-of this-chapter shall must
be filed with the sheriff's office along with a nonrefundable threethousand-dellar
{$3,000-80}-investigation fee, set by resolution of the board of county commissioners,
for each applicant. If the actual total cost of investigating any license application
exceeds fhe fee threethousand-dollars, the applicant shall will be responsible for and
pay to the county the amount in excess before the license may be approved. At time of
application, the first three month’s-quarter's license fee shall must be deposited with the
sheriff's office. If the application is denied, the firstquarner's license fee deposit shall
must be refunded.

B. Any applicant whose place of business will be conducted by a general manager
eragent, and any brothel licensee who changes a general manager, is required to
submit an amended application for the general manager and is required to report the
change of a general manager er-agent, shall and must pay an additional nonrefundable

investigation fee of-three-thousand-dellars{$3,000-00) for each such designated general
manager eragent.

C. Any person, director, officer or shareholder of a corporation, member or manager of a
limited liability company, or the principal of any firm or association having any financial
interest, including revenue or income participation, operational control, or ownership interest in
the brothel shall must submit an application as a co-licensee pursuant to S section 5.16.090 and
shall pay an additional nonrefundable investigation fee of-three-thousand-delars{$3:000-00),

D. Banking and financial institutions that lend to a brothel operator, owner or landlord are
not required to submit a license application unless the lending insiruments include revenue or
income participation, or operational control of the brothel business. For the purposes of this
section “banking and financial institutions’” mean any bank, savings and loan association,
savings bank, thrift company, credit union, or other financial institution that is licensed.
regisiered or otherwise authorized to do business in Nevada.

E. 4 loan related to the brothel equal to or greater than $25,000 must be reporied to the
sheriff and loan documents must be provided within 30 days. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.0960 License applications--Contents.

Any person desiring to own or operate a brothel within the county shall must apply to
the board for a license. The application for the licensee must be filed at the sheriff's
office. An applicant shalt must be a natural person applying as an owner, co-owner, or
general manager of the brothel, or as a trustee on behalf of an inter vivos trust, or as
director, officer or shareholder on behalf of a corporation, or as member or manager
and owner on behalf of a limited liability company that owns or will own the brothel.
Applicants must be a resident of the State of Nevada.

A. The application shall must set forth:

1. The applicant for the license, including:
4 a. Names, ages, and addresses of all persons who have or will have a
financial or ownership interest in the operation, including the owner of the real property;

Draft 2-16-15




2 b. Names, ages, and addresses of persons who are or will be personally
responsible for the conduct and management of the operation;

3 ¢. Names, ages, and addresses of all persons designated as trustees of an
inter vivos trust, directors, officers or shareholders of a corporation, or members or
managers of a limited liability company;

4 2. A recent photograph and complete set of fingerprints of all persons listed in
subsections 1 (AHH{AN2}-and-{AN3)-of this-section:

3. sush Names and addresses of any other businesses an applicant has a
financial or ownership interest in and the type of business and the nature of the
applicant's interest;

4. Names and addresses of each of the applicant's current and former employers
for the preceding ten 70 years;

- 85. AltThe applicant's current address and all former addresses in the preceding
ten 70 years;

+6. A list of all prior convictions of the applicant for any crime, excluding minor
traffic violations; sueh the list shall must include a statement of the offense, the place of
its occurrence, the date of its occurrence, and the disposition of the case;

87. A compiete and accurate financial statement of the applicant prepared by a
licensed certified public accountant;

98. Compiete federal income tax returns for the applicant for the preceding five 5
years;

409. The street address and legal description of the property upon which the
proposed brothel is to be located, together with copies of all deeds, mortgages, deeds
of trust, liens or other encumbrances, leasehold interests, or other interests relating to
the property;

+410. A complete list of any children the applicant has under the age of eighteen
18, including names, addresses, phone numbers, any court orders for child support and
an affidavit that all sueh child support payments are current;

14211. A court certified copy of the inter vivos trust if applicant is designated
trustee, the bylaws of a corporation, or the operating agreement of a limited liability
company;

4372. An executed comprehensive release authorizing the investigating authority
to obtain any and all information deemed pertinent to the granting of a license;

1413. A list consisting of a minimum of three verifiable personal references with
addresses and telephone numbers; and

4514. Any other information reasonably deemed necessary or useful by the board.
(Ord. No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.070 Restrictions on licensing.
A. The board must apply the following restrictions to every licensed operation:

1. Signs. Each licensed operation may have up to three signs. All off-premises
signs must be placed in a location off the right-of-way and in a manner so as not to
constitute a hazard. The community development department must approve all signs.

2. Fences. All licensed operations, individual or resort property oriented, must

Draft 2-16-15




include designated perimeter barriers (fences, berms or other approved forms of
separation) and a resort-style enfrance gate that will restrict access to the brothel
property. No prostitution related activities may be conducted outside of the designated
perimeter.

B.  Topless shows or other exhibitions involving the exposure of human genitals,
pubic region, or buttocks, or any adult movies whose program during a substantial part
of the time, contains one or more motion pictures which are rated "X" by the Code
Rating Administration of the Motion Picture Association of America, or which is not
rated, but whose program is intended to appeal to the prurient interests of the client are
allowed in a licensed brothel and may not be permitted or licensed by the board outside
of a licensed brothel.

C.  The board may, to promote the health, safety and welfare of the people of the
county, or to promote the orderly conduct of the operation, impose additional
restrictions, including, but not limited to, the folfowing:

1. Limit the hours per day or per week that a licensed operation may be
conducted; and

2. Limit the type, signing and size of building in which a licensed operation may be
conducted.

3. Limit the number of prostitutes that work in an operation.

D. The board may impose restrictions pursuant to this section prior, during, or after
issuance of license.

E.  Subject to Nevada Stafe Law, gaming may be permitted in the premises.

F. In the interests of the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare, the
number of licenses issued under this chapter is limited to five.

G. Escort services may only be allowed in association with a licensed operation and
may be allowed only under an additional and separate specific escort license, subject to
a written agreement for each transaction for escort services acknowledging:

1. The brothel is not licensed outside of Storey County.

2. Prostitution is not alfowed in Washoe County, Reno, Sparks, Carson City or the
Nevada areas of Lake Tahoe.

3. Escort services are for purposes of entertainment, dining, gaming (casino
gambling), dancing, shopping, sight seeing or other similar activity.

4. Escort and client may not leave the State of Nevada.

5. Prostitution or soficitation of sexual activity away from the ticensed operation is
prohibited.

5.16.080 Unsuitable locations and buildings.

A. The board may deny any application if the board finds that the place or location for
which the license is sought is unsuitable for the conduct of a brothel. The folfowing
places or locations may be deemed unsuitable:

1.Premises located within 1 mile of a church, hospital, school, military or naval
reservation, children's public playground or residential area;

2. Premises difficulf to police or difficult to access by police and emergency
services;

Draft 2-16-15




3. Premises adjfoining a gambling house, motel, hotel, licensed cocktail lounge not
part of the brothel, or another brothel;

4. Premises located within the historic districts as defined by NRS 384.100 and
other sites of historical or public interest, as may be designated by the board;

5. All properties located within the former McCarran Ranch, including all
contiguous property, excluding currently licensed brothels; and

6. Properties requiring primary ingress or egress across BLM controfled property,
previously known as the Mustang Ranch, require written approval of easement access
from the United States Department of Treasury, the United States Department of the
Interior acting through the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and the United States
Attorney’s Office prior to acceptance of application.

B.  The board may deny any application if the board finds that the building for
which the license is sought is unsuiftable for the conduct of a brothel. Without limiting the
foregoing, the following may be deemed unsuitable:

1. A building that is or is proposed to be located in a mobile home, which will not
be converted to real property.

2. A factory-built housing building, which will not be permanently affixed to the
land.

3. A manufactured home, which will not be permanently affixed to the land.

5.16.1090 Investigation of applicant--License-granted-or-denied Board action.

A. Sheriff's investigation. Upon presentation of any completed license application
and payment of all fees, the sheriff shall must conduct a full investigation of all
information contained in the license application and submitted with the application. Such
The investigation shall must include, but shall is not be limited to, the foliowing:

1. A complete check of all records of the Federal Bureau of Investigation and any
other similar organization concerning the criminal record of the applicant;

2. A personal interview with the applicant;

3. An interview with selected employers of the applicant and business associates
of the applicant, as shown in the license application:;

4. Examination of the financial statement, records, and financial background of the
applicant; and

5. An interview with any other person or source discovered during the investigation
that may have information bearing upon applicant's suitability as a license holder.

B. Investigation report. As soon as practicable or within 45 days after any
application is received by the sheriff, the sheriff shall must report the results of the
investigation in writing to the board. Such The report shall must include, but shall is not
be limited to, the following:

1. A complete statement of the results of all investigations undertaken:

2. Alist of any errors or omissions found to exist in the application; and

3. An evaluation of the personal and financial status and background of the
applicant.

C. Board response. Within thirty 30 days after receiving the sheriff's report, the
board must place the application on the board’s agenda for a hearing and may:

Draft 2-16-15




1. Refer the appilication back to the sheriff for additional investigation. :

2. Require a personal interview with the applicant. :

3. Require the applicant to submit additional information related to his application.
—and
4- If no further investigation is needed, the board may decide whether to gGrant or deny
refuse-to-grant a license or fo approve a general manger underthe provisions-of-this
chapter. (Ord. No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.100 Issuance of license and automatic renewal.

A. Upon approval of an application for a licensee or all co-licensees connected with a

brothel, the board may issue a license for the brothel. The license must state:

1. The name and address or location of the brothel.

2. The names of all licensees connected with the brothel,

3.Any restrictions or limitations imposed by the board under this chapter.

4. The date of issuance of the license.

5. The date of expiration of the license, which is June 30" the end of each fiscal
year.

6. All licenses are issued on a yearly basis and will renew automatically provided
that licensee is in substantial compliance with this chapter.

B. The board may issue a temporary license to an applicant for a specific period of
time in the case of a licensee’s death, disability or insolvency when there is no
remaining licensee to operate the brothel. The temporary license entitles the person
named in the application fo take part in the operation of the brothel and receive profits

5.16.110 License denial,

The board may deny refuse-to-grant-a license to any applicant or may disapprove of
a general manager at in its discretion, ineluding based on, but not limited to, the
following circumstances:

A. The applicant, or the applicant's spouse or any other individual listed on the
application who may have an interest in the brothel, has been convicted of a felony;

B. The applicant is financially insolvent:

C. The applicant has a history of financial instability;

D. The applicant's stated financial condition is inadequate, insufficient, or toe-suspeect
cannot be verified as sufficient to operate a brothel;

E. The applicant makes any faise statement of a material fact or omits any material
fact in any application, notice, statement, or report filed with the board;

F. The applicant has any financial interest in, or connection with, any business or
other organization, which that is illegal where such the entity-business is located;

G. The applicant's license location under the provisions of this chapter would be
contrary to the health, safety, morals or welfare of Sterey-Ceunty-Cedes-or the county's
residents;

H. The applicant is under the age of twenty-one years;

I. The applicant has been convicted of a crime involving moral turpitude, uniess the
board finds, upon examination of the circumstances of the crime and the applicant's

Draft 2-16-15




criminal history, that the applicant does not present, and is not likely to present in the
future, a threat to the health, safety, morals, or welfare of the residents of Storey
County, and will likely operate a tawful estabhshment in full compliance with the letter
and-intentofall Storey County Code Ordinances-and Regulations, and the laws of the
State of Nevada;

J. The applicant has past due child support;

K. The applicant's license issued under this chapter has been revoked for cause:

L. The applicant is a corporation, unless it is incorporated in Nevada, or unless it is a
foreign corporation which is qualified under Nevada law to transact business in Nevada;

M. The applicant is a person whose place of business is conducted by a general
manager, er-agent; unless the general manager eragent possesses the same general
qualifications required of an individual licensee; and

N. A person who is unqualified or disqualified to hold a license owns any interest
whatsoever in the premises, regardless of the qualifications of the applicant himself.
(Ord. No. 09-227,8 1)

5.16.120 Reserved:-5:16-125- License nontransferable.-site-specific.-Death,
disability or insolvency of licensee.

A license granted under this chapter is for operations conducted on the property
described in the application only, by the licensee or co-licensees only, and no licensed
operafion may be added fo or moved without a new license application and approval.

A. Ne A brothel license gmnted—undeptm:sehaﬁte; may nof be transferred, unless
sueh the license is transferred under an inter vivos trust where the licensee is the
grantor or settler of the frust and is also the trustee of the trust and the license is in good
standing and has not been suspended or revoked.

B. In the event of the death or judicially established disability of a licensee, the
spouse, next of kin, personal representative or guardian of the deceased or disabled
person, or any other co-licensee, must notify the board and the sheriff immediately of
the death or disability.

C. In the event of death or judicially established disability of a sole licensee who
holds the sole interest in a licensed operation and whose interest would pass by
operation of law to the licensee’s estate or to any other person other than a co-licensee,
the board may authorize the spouse, next of kin, personal representative, executor, or
guardian of the person to continue the operation of the brothel under a temporary
permit, as a successor in interest, pending action on an application. The application for
a temporary license must be filed within 30 days of the date of death or disability.

D. In the event of the death of a licensee holding a license under an inter vivos trust,
or whase ownership of a brothel passes by way of a trust on the licensee’s death, the
succeeding trustee or trustees must be currenthrlicensed as-provided-in-Sections
6-46-020-and-5-16-090. If the succeeding trustee or trustees are not licensed at the time
of the licensee’s death, the board may authorize the succeeding trustee or frustees to
continue operation of the brothel under a temporary license while the succeeding
frustee or trustees prepare and submft an applfcatfon for a license.. Wﬂ#ennetmea%len

Draft 2-16-15

10




E. Where the licensed operation is owned or operated by more than one licensee,
the remaining co-licensees may continue to operate the business in the event of the
death or disability of a co-licensee. The remaining co licensees may nof permit any
spouse, heir, next of kin, personal representative or guardian of the deceased or
disabled licensee to take part in operation of the brothel unless or until the person is
approved for a temporary license or is approved as a co-licensee. If a co-licensee no
longer has an interest in the operation of a brothel and is no longer required to be
licensed, the remaining licensees must notify the board and sheriff inmediately that the
person is no longer a licensee. The change in status of the co-licensee is effective on
receipt of the notice by the sheriff or the board.

F. The board may, if satisfied the action is necessary, issue a temporary license to an
applicant for a specific period of time. The temporary license entitles the person named
in the application to take part in the operation of the brothel and receive profits. A
femporary license is not transferable.

G. A temporary licensee may be summarily withdrawn at any time in the discretion of
the sheriff and one board member without the necessity of a hearing or proceedings for
revocation or suspension.

H. In the event a licensee files any petition with the bankrupicy court for relief as a debtor or
has a petition filed against it, or a receiver is appointed for a licensed operation or an
assignment of a business is made for the benefit of creditors, the licensee, trustee, receiver or
assignee, as the case may be, must immediately notify the board of the change in writing. The
written notice must have atfached a copy of the assignment or the petition filed with the court,
and any relevant court orders including orders appointing trustees, receivers, or assignees.

I A trustee, receiver, or assignee desiring to continue operation of the licensed establishment
must immediately make application for a temporary license.

J. A brothel may not be operated by a bankrupicy trustee, receiver, or assignee for the benefit
of creditors until the board has either licensed or temporarily licensed the trustee, receiver, or

assignee,

5.16.130 License fees, penalties for non-payment.
A. Every licensed operation must pay monthly licensing fee, set by resolution of the
board of county commissioners, in advance of the first calendar day of each month for

the privilege of operating a brothel in the county Thefee-forsuchlicense-shall-be-setby
the-county-commissioners, provided-that it-is based-on-a-uniferm-formula-and-is-not
j ; that-it shall The fees must be

considered at two eeun%y—eemmmeneps board of county commissioners’ meetings
before becoming effective.

B. Ne—Feﬂ&nd&ef—aAny license fees paid shall are nonrefundable except as
prov:ded in sectlon 5 16.050. bemade

Draft 2-16-15

11




C. All license fees must be paid to the sheriff. The sheriff must deposit all fees in the
general fund.

D. Delinquent brothel fees, including all accrued penalties, as set forth by resolution
of the board of county commissioners, may be grounds for suspension or revocation of
the brothel license by action of the board. (Ord. No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.140 Compliance inspections for brothels--Implied consent.

A. Licensees or management of licensed operations will must provide the sheriff
access, upon demand at any time, for purposes of inspection to ensure compliance with
this chapter.

B.  Anyone obtaining or renewing a license pursuant to this chapter impliedly
consents to and acknowledges the power and authority of the sheriff's department office
to enter the licensed operation's premises and principal office at any time for the
purposes of examining the premises, the brothel's books of account, medical records or
work cards, to ascertain the truth or veracity of statements made on the brothel! license
application and to determine compliance with the Storey County Code and Nevada
state law.

C. Refusal by a licensee, or his or her agent or employee, to permit a lawful
inspection of a licensed operation in accordance with this chapter constitutes a violation.
(Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.170 License issuance—Rrenewal with taxes in arrears.

Draft 2-16-15
12




B. Ne A busmess Ilcense shall may not be issued or renewed when, at the tlme of
application or renewal, the applicant or the licensee is indebted to the county for any
unpaid obligation, including real property taxes, personal property taxes, room taxes or
business licenses, including those not used in conjunction with brothe! operations. The
tax receiver may enter into an agreement with any person so indebted to the county to
establish a schedule for the payment of sueh the indebtedness and any delinquencies
and interest thereon. In such the agreement, the debtor shall must acknowledge such
the debt to the county and shall must agree that if any default occurs in the payment of
any instaliment agreed to be paid thereunder an agreement, the entire amount to be
paid shall becomes immediately due and payable. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.180 License revocation; or suspension.;-cemplaintprocedures.

The board may revoke, er temporarily suspend, or place on probation with or without
conditions any brothel license esued—eneeethe—ppew&eﬁs@f-tmsehapte{-for cause after
a hearing #Heons for any of the
following causes:

A. Any cause that would constitute grounds for denial of a license under this
chapter,;

B. Violation of any provision of this chapter by the licensee or any employee of the
licensee or any working prostitute at a licensed operation;

C. Willful refusal of the licensee to comply with any reasonable order of the board
or of the sheriff's department office;

D. The licensee knowingly permitting the existence of any heaith hazard on the
premises occupied by the licensed operation or employing any prostitute when sueh the
person does not have a valid health certificate-as-required-herein;

E. Change in ownership or the leasing of the premises to an unlicensed person, or
the addition of any persons with any financial interest,_including revenue or income
participation, operational control, or ownership interest in a brothel who is not a co-
licensee shall will automatically revoke a license and-reapplication-shall-be-necessary;

F. Any attempt by a licensee to permit an unlicensed person to operate a brothel
under the existing license shall-be is grounds for automatic and immediate revocation;
withoutfurthernotice;

1. It is shalt not be-a violation for a licensee to employ a board-approved general
manager to supervise day-to-day operations;

2. Any prospective general manager shall must be an employee of the licensed

operatlon and be subject to lnvestlgatmn and board approval -registration-and-all-other

G. Any other cause which the board may determine, in its sound discretion, to be
deleterious to the health, welfare, and safety of the general public; and;

H. If any written complaint regarding the licensed operation shallthave-been is
received during the current license period, the sheriff may cause the complaint to be
placed on the agenda of the next board meeting, at which meeting the board may

Draft 2-16-15
13




review the complaint and the license. The board may conduct a hearing, summon
witnesses, interview the licensee, interview any complainant, require additional
investigation by the sheriff, or do any and all other acts which may be necessary or
appropriate for the board's determination. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.190 License revocation procedure--Hearing--Notice.

A. Before pe;manenﬂy revoklng any a brothel Ilcense issued-undepth%—ehapter—
~ the board

shai«l must

1. Conduct a hearing to determine the existence of the cause or causes of
revocation—r Notice of which the hearing with written specifications of the violations
must be shall-have-been served upon the licensee or posted upon the premises where
the licensed operation is located at least forty-eight-hours 3 days prorto-the-time-of
suech before the hearing;

2. Permit the licensee to submit evidence and testimony in opposition to the
revocation;

3. Consider all evidence and testimony in support of and in opposition to the
revocation:;

4. Enter in the minutes of the board the findings of the board, and stating with
specificity the cause of revocation; and

5. Enter in the minutes of the board an order revoking or refusing to revoke the
license.

B.  Notice of revocation shall must be served upon the licensee or posted upon the
premises occupied by the licensed operation. Revocation shall-be is effective upon
service of the notice on the licensee andfor posting of the notice on the premises. (Ord.
No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.200 Exception to hearing procedure (emergency suspension of license).

A brothel license may be immediately suspended or limited without a hearing by a
written emergency suspension order signed by one member of the board and the
sheriff, if in their opinion, there exists an emergency or other immediate and present
danger to public health and safety which necessitates the immediate closure of the
brothel. The order must state the reason for the suspension or limitation and advise the
licensee of the right to a hearing. Upon the issuance and service of sueh an emergency
suspension order, all brothel activity shall must immediately cease and the brothel
licensee may request a public hearing before the board within three 3 business days.

The hearing proceedings-thereaftershall must be held in accordance with $ section
5.16.190 of this chapter. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.210 Health examinations.

The licensed operation shall must comply with all State of Nevada Division of Health
requirements and Nevada Revised Statutes with regard to medical and health
examinations for prostitutes.

A. Exams required. Every prostitute working at a licensed operation shall is required

Draft 2-16-15
14




fo have a weekly medical examination by a medical doctor licensed to practice medicine
in the State of Nevada or the docfor’s duly qualified and supervised employee. Each
medical examination shall must include testing to be submitted to a state licensed
medical laboratory and shall must include;

1. Once each week, a culture to confirm the presence or absence of gonorrhea
and testing to screen for the presence or absence of chlamydia;

2. Once every week, a licensed medical professional shall must perform an
examination on each prostitute for lesions. If lesions are present on the individual, the
health care professional shall must excuse said the prostitute from work until said the
lesions have resolved and are no longer infectious with herpes simplex 1l virus;

3. Other medically required or approved tests deemed advisable by the examiner
for determining whether the prostitute is afflicted with any infectious or contagious
disease;

4. All medical examinations, pre-employment and post-employment, and tests
shall must conform to the requirements of the State of Nevada, Division of Health, the
NRS and the Nevada Administrative Code;

5. After performing an examination on a prostitute, the examining doctor may not
issue a certificate if the person is found to be or suspected to be afflicted with a sexually
transmitted infection or other contagious or infectious sexually transmitted disease
(“STD"). The sheriff must be notified by the licensee of ineligibility of a prostitute to
work; and

& 6. The expense-assosciated-with the cost of the required medical examination
and tests shall must be paid by the prostitute directly to the medical providers.

B. in-the-event When a prostitute shall-have has completed the medical examination
and tests required, as-herein-provided, the results of said the tests shall must be
forwarded to a state approved medical lab for review and approval.

C. Certification of work eligibility--Approval and denial.

1. After the State Medical Lab completes the required review of the medical
examination and tests, and forwards the certificate of ciearance to the brothel's license
holder, the brothel shall must retain those results te-file for review by the sheriff and
shall must certify to the sheriff that the prostitute is eligible for a work card. The sheriff is
te must be notlfied by the hcensee if the State Medical Lab does not i Issue a cemﬁcate
of clearance. A
toreturn-to work, Each medlcal certlflcate of clearance sha# must specnfy the date of the
examination and shall may be valid for seven days from the date of the certificate. The
expense-associated-with the cost of this review and certification shall must be paid by
the prostitute directito-the-doctor.

2. Ne A person who has ever been denied a certificate by the State Health
Department, as-herein-provided, may not again work as a prostitute in any licensed
operation until such that person has received and presented to the brothel a certificate
of clearance from the state stating that the cause or causes which resulted in the denial
of the certificate have been cured and that the person is now free of a sexually
transmitted infection or other contagious or mfectfous sexuaﬂv transmltted disease

iﬂs TD H!

Draft 2-16-15

15




D. Seizure of work card. Upon receiving information that a prostitute is afflicted with
an infectious or contagious STD or has not obtained a current medical examination, as
herein-reguired-or is no longer entitled to a work card, the sheriff shall must
immediately seize any work card previously issued. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.220 Work card registration required.

A. It is unlawful for any person te-be fo work as an independent contractor or to be
employed or for a licensee fo employ or allow a person on the premises of a licensed
operation, unless such the person is the holder of a valid current work card issued by
the sheriff. Customers of the brothel are exempt from this requirement. in-accordance

A prostitute who has submitted an application to the sheriff's office but who has not
yet received a medical clearance may remain on the premises of the brothel.
segregated from any customer contact areas, for up to 48 hours as they complete the
medical clearance and work card application process. It is the sole responsibility of the
owner or general manager to ensure that all the proslitutes awaiting results and residing
at the brothel do not engage in any tvpe of sexual activity until the sheriff issues a work
card,

be—ntegste#ed—wth—the—shemﬁ on-a A work card appllcatfon mwhmh shall must include

1. The applicants’s name, all current and former names and aliases, age, address,
social security number, physical description, and current picture identification efthe
applieant. Forms of identification acceptable are those issued from state agencies,
which require a certified copy of a birth certificate. An actual social security card also
must be produced. A real sfate issued Real ID or passport may be allowed in lieu of a
birth certificate and social security card;

Alternative language proposed:

1._The worker's name, alf current and former names and aliases, age. address,
social security number,_physical description, and current picture identification. Forms of
identification acceptable are those issued from state or federal agencies or meet federal
-8 requirements;

2. A full set of fingerprints of the worker;

3. Complete employment record of the worker for the preceding three years;

4. All addresses of the worker for the preceding three years;

5. A complete criminal record of the worker, including all convictions, except minor
traffic violations, such list to include a statement of each offense, the place of its
occurrence, and the date of its occurrence;

6. A complete sheriff's routine child support information form;

7. A waiver of release of medical information allowing the medical facilities and
doctors to provide to the county the results of the referred medical examination and
tests of prostitutes; and

Draft 2-16-15
16




8. An authorization to conduct an investigation into the worker's criminal history.
C.  The sheriff must investigate, through all available means, the accuracy of all
information supplied by any applicant on the registration form. The-workcardshallbe

¥

D. The sheriff may issue a work permit after an investigation and the determination that the

applzcant meets the work permzt requzrements Exeept—as—p%ewdeé—w%ebeeeﬁen

E. The sheriff may issue a revocable femporary work permit for up to 120 days after the
applicant has submitted an applzcarzorr wzth proof of medical cleaf ance and paid all required
applzcarton fees ; ;

F The bea#d sheriff may deny a work card to any person who is under the age of
eighteen or has ever been convicted of a felony offense, irrespective of jurisdiction, or
for lesser crimes involving:

1. A misdemeanor possession or use of a controlled substance within the last
three years;

2. Theft, embezzlement, or misappropriation of funds;

3. Violence ofr the use of any deadly or dangerous weapon;

4. Any crime involving the illegal use of firearms;

9. Petty theft or shoplifting within the last year; and-or

6. Wilifully making any false statement or omission in the registration form
required by subsection A of this section.

G. The sheriff or his designee will have the authority to deny or revoke the work card
of a prostitute or any other employee who does not qualify under this chapter or who is
found to be otherwise violating the Storey County Code or Nevada state law. The
person whose work card has been denied or revoked may file an appeal with the board

of-county-commissioners within thirty 30 calendar days from the date in which the work

card was denied or revoked.

Additional language proposed:

The sheriff may deny or revoke a work card based upon notification from a federal
agency or a duly authorized federal agent that the worker's immigration status does not
allow the worker to be employed. The sheriff may not deny or revoke a work card
based upon the sheriff's own investigation or determination of the worker’s federal
immigration or work authorization status.

H. The work card may be issued for not more than 12 months and must be renewed
annually;

I. Except as provided in subsection 5.16.220(J), all work cards are site specific, and
must be renewed each time an employee changes places of work.

J E. All employees shall must maintain a current work card with the operator of a
licensed brothel and the licensee is required to maintain a work card for each employee.
The work card shall must be kept on premises and available for inspection at all times.

Draft 2-16-15
17




A prostitute may change place of work between two-{2}-icensed operations under the
same ownership and-approved-by-this-chapier by having brothel management notify the
sheriff of the proposed change.

K-F. No A prostitute or bartenderfmanager of a licensed operation shall may not
possess more than one work card at any given time.

L G. Ne A bartender, general manager, maid, or maintenance employee shall may
not engage in acts of prostitution.

M. Tradesmen or vendors who service the property or facilities periodically are not
required to obtain work cards, as long as they are not employees of the brothel. (Ord.
No. 09-227,§ 1)

5.16.230 Violations by employee--Effect on registration and work card.

A. In addition to criminal penalties provided herein this chapter, any employee of any
licensed operator convicted of violating any section of this chapter or any regulation
promulgated by the board or sheriff's deparment office will have his or her work card
immediately revoked by the sheriff. and-shalforthwith-returnthe-werd Upon revocation
the person holding the work card must return it to the sheriff.

B.  Unauthorized persons. It is uniawful for any licensed operation to allow persons
on the premises except for the owners, licensed employees, working prostitutes,
potential customers, authorized emergency, medical, county agents, employees or
others with legitimate reason to be on the premises for nonprostitution-related matters.
No business or social organization shall may conduct official business meetings in a
brothel. (Ord. No. 09-227, § 1)

5.16.240 Violations--Criminal penalty.

fn addition to penalties provided regarding revocation of licenses and work cards, any
person violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor. (Ord. No. 13-
249, § I; Ord. No. 09-227, § 1}

Proposed on ,2015.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Draft 2-16-15
18




Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

.This ordinance will become effective on , 2015,

Draft 2-16-15
19




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the Resolution 15-418 setting the fees for brothel
licensing, license applications, and penalties.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Resolution 15-418.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Storey County code section 5.16.130 currently requires the fee for a brothel
license to be set by the board of county commissioners, provided that it is based on a uniform
formula and is not unreasonable or arbitrary, and that it be considered at two meetings of the board
of county commissioners before becoming effective. The existing code also calls for penalties for
nonpayment but doesn’t set an amount. This resolution sets the penalty for delinquent payments at
10 percent.

The request is to have the Board consider the attached language proposed by the Sheriff
Antinoro and decide whether to include it and to approve the resolution.

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 15-418

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
Lot L

Agenda Item No.




Sheriff Antinoro proposal:

The intent here would be only to address those buildings/structures that contain a bar, call for line-
ups, etc., regardless of where the transaction or cash is exchanged. If the customer and the
working girl are there outside of an actual act of prostitution, there should be an additional fee
because of the additional requirements involved in the policing of the business. By using a 10%
formula, it is consistent with the fees we charge a bar for a “service bar” or secondary bar within
the same establishment - and at $7,500.00 annually, this is far cheaper than anything that was
previously thrown out during the past couple of years.

Brothel fees:
#2(a) Ancillary structures for the purposes of prostitution, up to three, will be charged an

additional 10% of the annual license fee.

Ancillary structure means any structure covered under the brothel license that is outside of the
main brothel where prostitutes and customers may meet, converse, barter, or engage in activities in
the furtherance of prostitution.




Resolution No. 15-418

A resolution setting fees for applications for a brothel license,
the licensing of brothels, and setting penalty fees.

Whereas, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) has enacted
Ordinance No. 14-261 amending Storey County Code chapter 5.16 regarding brothels.

Whereas, the ordinance requires that fees be set by resolution of the Board.

Whereas, the Board has considered the fees for application for a brothel license, the fees
for maintaining the brothel license, and penalties for delinquent payments, that are required to be
set by resolution after two hearings by the Board.

Now therefore, the Board resolves and agrees to set the fees and penalties as follows:

1. Application fee — $3000 per applicant or actual cost if more, payable before license is
approved. The fee is non refundable.

2. Licensing fee- $75,000 annually, payable monthly before the first day of the month.
The first 3 months fees are due with application. The fee is refundable if application for license is
denied.

3. Penalty- licensing fees that are due are considered delinquent if not paid in full
on or before the fifteenth day following the due date. A penalty of 10 percent of the
delinquent amount is due each month the fees are delinquent.

Adopted and effective this day of 2015 by the
following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Approve Site License Agreement between Storey County
and High Speed Networks.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve Site License Agreement between Storey County
and High Speed Networks for the placement of internet access equipment on County
property commonly referred to as the Hillside Water Tanks site, Assessor’s Parcel #001-
291-003

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Department: Public Works — Storey County Water System Telephone:

4. Staff sammary: Some years back, High Speed Networks was granted permission verbally to
install internet access equipment atop the Hillside water tanks. Tt was discovered that no
formal agreement was ever entered into between Storey County and High Speed Networks.
This agreement if approved provides the documentation necessary between the two parties.

S. Supporting materials: Site License Agreement as prepared and approval by the Storey County

District Attorney’s office.

6. Fiseal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
& W LoDistrict Attorne
= y

8. Review:aj by:
7N Department Head  Department Name: Public Works — Storey County Water System

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Lo N e |

Agenda ftem No.




Site License Agreement

This Agreement is entered into by and between Storey County, a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada (County) and High Speed Networks Mound House LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company (HSN)

WHEREAS, HSN desires to utilize a site for the placement of its internet access equipment, and
WHEREAS, County owns a site which is suitable for the placement of HSN’s equipment,
NOW THEREFORE DO THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Premises COUNTY hereby grants a revocable license to HSN to utilize space at and on
COUNTY’s Property located within Assessor’s Parcel #001-291-003, Virginia City, Nevada, commonly referred
to as the Hiilside Water Tanks site (Premises).

2. Use of Premises HSN may place equipment within County’s building located on the Premises for
network operations and place not more than four visible wired or wireless antennas, on the Premises at locations
acceptable to County. The equipment shall not be permanently attached to County’s property and if attachment is
required it shall be attached in such a way that removal of the equipment will not cause damage to County’s

property.

3. Term The license hereby granted to HSN is of indefinite duration but is subject to revocation at any
time by County and for any reason or even for no reason.

4. License Fee ~ HSN shall pay $150 per month for this license to the Storey County Public Works
Department.

5. Ownership of equipment. All equipment installed by HSN shall remain the property of HSN.
6. Use of the Premises SN shall use the Premises and operate its equipment in compliance with

applicable regulations imposed by the FCC and any other government agency. HSN, its employees, agents and
designated representatives shall have the right to access the licensed premises and HSN equipment as practicable
taking into consideration the operating hours and the availability of County personnel. County agrees not to allow
any other entity to install wireless equipment at the Premises that could interfere with HSN services. In order to
gain access to its equipment HSN agrees to notify/call Storey County Public works at 847-0958 during normal
business hours to make arrangments for access.

7. Utilities County will supply HSN with 120 volt AC Power to its supporting equipment on an
uninterrupted 24 hour basis. The monthly license fee will cover the cost of providing power to HSN’s equipment.
If utility costs rise, County may increase the amount of the monthly license fee by the amount of the increase in
utility costs.

8. Insurance HSN and County shall each maintain sufficient insurance to cover their respective
employees and equipment.

9. Maintenance of Site  County shall report to HSN as quickly as possible any damage or potential
damage to HSN equipment. HSN shall maintain its equipment in accordance with the standards of good
engineering practice. Upon revocation of this license HSN will leave the Premises in the same condition they
were at the commencement of this agreement, except for ordinary and foreseeable wear and tear. HSN shall be
responsible for obtaining all permits, plans, fees, etc. that may be required to maintain their equipment.




11. Site Damage If County’s site is fully or partially destroyed, County will use its best efforts to allow
HSN to gain access to the site to restore its equipment to operational capacity as quickly as possible.

12, Damage to HSN Equipment and Service Interruption  County, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers shall not be liable for any interruption in electrical service or for damage to
the property of HSN or others located on the Premises or in any building, nor for the loss of or damage
to any property of HSN or others by theft or otherwise. County, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from any casualty
or cause whatsoever, save and except for damage caused by the County's gross negligence or intentional
acts or any damage which may be suffered as a result of hazardous or toxic materials existing on the
Premises. County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers shall not be liable for any such
damage caused by other persons on the Premises, occupants of adjacent property, or the public. All
property of HSN kept or stored on the Premises shall be so kept or stored at the risk of HSN only, and
HSN shall hold County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from and hereby
waives any claims arising out of damage to the same or damage to HSN's business, including
subrogation claims by HSN's insurance carrier, unless such damage shall be caused by the willful act or
gross neglect of County.

13. Indemmification HSN shall indemnify and defend County its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers against any and all claims for damage to property injuries or death of any person
resulting from an act or omission of HSN, its officers , employees or any of its agents, except to the
extent that liabilities are directly caused by the willful misconduct or gross negligence of County, its
officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

14.  Removal of Equipment Upon revocation of this license HSN shall remove its equipment
within 90 days after being served written notice of revocation of this license. Written notice of the
revocation of this license is effective when served upon HSN either personally to Sean Duff or three
days after it is mailed by certified mail to:

4255 Garlan Lane

Reno, Nevada 89509

15,  Assignment No assignment of this license is permitted.
1
i
il
i
i
"l
i
i
i
i
I
I




16. Miscelianeous

This agreement contains the entire understanding of HSN and County

with respect to its subject matter. It supersedes all prior discussions, agreements and understandings
between the parties. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of Nevada.

High Speed Networks Mound House LL.C

By:

Sean Duff
C.E.O. HSN

Date: / /

Anne Langer
Storey County District Attorney

Date: 9‘ /}4/ }5

Storey County

By:wﬁM Cﬂg .

Michael E, Nevin
Public Works Director

Date: 2 / /9 /&
By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Commission

Date: / /

Recorded By:

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Date: / /




DRAFT
Site License Agreement
This Agreement s entered into by and between Storey County, a political subdivision of the

State of Nevada (County) and High Speed Networks Mound House LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability
Company {HSN)

WHEREAS, HSN desires to utilize a site for the placement of its internet access
equipment, and

WHEREAS, County owns a site which is suitable for the placement of HSN's
equipment,

NOW THEREFORE DO THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Premises COUNTY hereby grants a revocable ficense to HSN to utilize space at and on
COUNTY's Property located within Assessor's Parcel #001-291-003, Virginia City, Nevada, commanly
referred to as the Hiilside Water Tanks site (Premises).

2. Use of Premises HSN may place equipment within County’s building located on the
Premises for network operations and piace not more than four visible wired or wireless antennas, on
the Premises at locations acceptable to County. The equipment shall not be permanently attached to
County’s property and if attachment Is required it shall be attached in such a way that removal of the
equipment will not cause damage to County’s property.

3. Term The license hereby granted to HSN is of indefinite duration but is subject to revocation at
any time by County and for any reason or even for no reason.

4, License Fee HSN shall pay $150 per month for this license fo the Storey County Public
Works Department.

5. Ownership of equipment. All equipment installed by HSN shall remain the property of HSN.

6. Usa of the Premises HSN shall use the Premises and operate its equipment in compliance
with applicable regulations imposed by the FCC and any other government agency. HSN, its
employees, agents and designated representatives shall have the right to access the licensed

premises and HSN equipment as practicable taking into consideration the operating hours and the
availability of County personnel. County agrees not to allow any other eniity to install wireless
equipment at the Premises that could interfere with HSN services. In order to gain access lo its
equipment HSN agrees to notify/call Storey County Public works at 847-0958 during normal business hours to
make arrangments for access.




7. Utilittes  County will supply HSN with 120 volt AC Power to its supporting equipment on an
uninterrupted 24 hour basis. The monthly license fee will cover the cost of providing power to HSN’s

equipment. If utility costs rise, County may increase the amount of the monthly license fee by the amount of
the increase in utility costs.

8. Insurance HSN and County shall each maintain sufficient insurance to cover their respective
employees and equipment.

9. Maintenance of Site County shall report to HSN as quickly as possible any damage or
potential damage to HSN equipment. HSN shall maintain its equipment in accordance with the
standards of good engineering practice. Upon revoeation of this license HSN will leave the Premises in
the same condition they were at the commencement of this agreement, except for ordinary and

foreseeable wear and tear, HSN shall be responsible for obtaining all permits, plans, fees, etc. that may be
required to maintain their equipment,

11. Site Damage If County’s site is fully or partially destroyed, County will use its best efforts to
allow HSN to gain access to the site to restore its equipment to operational capacity as quickly as
possibie.

12. Damage to HSN Equipment and Service Interru ption County, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers shall not be liable for any interruption in electrical service or for damage to
the property of HSN or others focated on the Premises or in any building, nor for the loss of or damage
to any property of HSN or others by theft or otherwise. County, its officers, officials, employees and
volunteers shall not be liable for any injury or damage to persons or property resulting from any casualty
or cause whatsoever, save and except for damage caused by the County's gross negligence or intentional
acts or any damage which may be suffered as a result of hazardous or toxic materials existing on the
Premises. County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers shall not be liable for any such
damage caused by other persons on the Premises, occupants of adjacent property, or the public. All
property of HSN kept or stored on the Premises shall be so kept or stored at the risk of HSN only, and
HSN shall hold County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from and hereby
waives any claims arising out of damage to the same or damage to HSN's business, including
subrogation claims by HSN's insurance carrier, unless such damage shall be caused by the witlful act or
gross neglect of County.

13.  Indemnification HSN shall indemnify and defend County its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers against any and all claims for damage to property injuries or death
of any person resulting from an act or omission of HSN, its officers , employees or any of its
agents, except to the extent that liabllities are directly caused by the wiliful misconduct or gross
negligence of County, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

14.  Removal of Equipment Upon revocation of this license HSN shall remove its
equipment within 90 days after being served written notice of revocation of this license.,
Written notice of the revocation of this Jicense is effective when served upon HSN either personally to
Sean Duff or three days after it is mailed by certified mail to:




4255 Garlan Lane
Reno, Nevada 89509

15.  Assignment No assignment of this license is permitted.

I

i1

i

i

i

1

1

i

I

i

i

i

16.  Miscellaneous This agreement contains the entire understanding of HSN and
County with respect to its subject matter. It supersedes all prior discussions, agreements and
understandings between the parties. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of Nevada.

High Spe Q.N;j Z%md House LLC Storey County
y:

Sean Duff Michael E. Nevin
C.E.O, HSN Public Works Director
e
Date: ?_ / 1 1 LS Date: I
By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Commissicn

Date: / /

Approved as to Form: Recorded By:




Anne Langer
Storey County District Attorney

Date; { /

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

Date: / /




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve first reading of Ordinance 15-263 adding section
3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of
permitting fees to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to introduce for the first reading Ordinance 15-263

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

S.B. 1, 28™ Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) allows Storey County to create a economic
diversification district and pledge an amount equal to the proceeds of all the sales and use taxes as
reimbursement payments for the costs incurred by the lead participant. The Board has passed
Ordinance 14-260 creating the Storey County Economic Diversification Distriet No. 1, Ordinance
14-260 is not effective until Storey County enters an agreement with one or more owners of property
in the district to defray in whole or in part the cost of local government services. Negotiations on the
government services agreement are ongoing.

(Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-263
6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
M Denied

Continued

—_—r—
[ —

Agenda Item No.




4, Staff summary continued:

S. B. 1, section 18, authorizes the governing body of a county to grant to one or more of the
participants in a qualified project an abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of certain
permitting fees and licensing fees imposed by the county if the board provides by ordinance for a
pilot project for the abatement of the fees.

The board may grant this abatement of certain fees for the purpose of encouraging local
economic development. After discussions, Tesla and county staff have agreed that the partial
abatements contained in Ordinance No. 15-263 will encourage local development. This partial
abatement is for ten years and covers the building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews,
and inspections for the Tesla factory project.




Ordinance No. 15-263

Summary

An ordinance providing for a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting or
licensing fees that the county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS
to participants in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District.

Title

An ordinance adding section 3.50.200 to the Storey County Code providing for
a pilot project for granting partial abatements of permitting fees to participants in a
qualified project in an Economic Diversification District and providing for
other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTIONI:

3.50.200 Title.
This ordinance is known as the “Permitting Fee Abatement Ordinance”.

3.50.210 Determinations of the board.

The board has determined that it intends to encourage local economic development by
granting to any participant in a qualified project in an Economic Diversification District an
abatement of all or any percentage of the amount of any permitting fee or licensing fee which the
county is authorized to impose or charge pursuant to chapter 244 of NRS.

3.50.220 Definitions.
The definitions contained in the Economic Diversification Act and the Economic
Diversification District are incorporated into and are adopted for use in this chapter.

3.50.230 Creation of the pilot project.

The board, for the purposes of encouraging local economic development, creates this pilot
project for granting partial abatements of permits, plan reviews, and inspection fees. The board
may determine, to the best of its ability, the amount of the abatement based on the anticipated
local economic development that the qualified project would bring to the county.

3.50.240 Abatement of fees.

A. The board finds that Tesla is a participant in a qualified project within the county’s
Economic Diversity District No. 1. The board has determined to grant an abatement of
permitting fees it is authorized to impose pursuant to chapter 244 for a ten year period for

Draft 3-3-2015




building official and fire district permitting, plan reviews, and inspections for the factory project
by fixing the following annual fees:

2015 - $556,268
2016 - $587,419
2017 - $620,315
2018 - $655,053
2019 - §230579

2020 - $243,491
2021 - $257,126
2022 - $271,525
2023 - $286,731
2024 - $302,788

B. These fees are based on the county’s fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2014,

C. The fees must be paid in advance on a quarterly basis.

D. These fee payments do not include payments by Tesla for additional plan reviews and
inspections that require outside contractors.

E. The County may charge an additional fee of 30% of the value for review of subsequent
plan changes after a set of plans has been reviewed twice by the building official or fire district
staff.

3.50.250 Sunset provision.
The abatement of fees for Tesla will sunset on May15, 2015 if the county and Tesla do not
agree to a government services agreement required by section 3.50.110.

3.50.260 Annual report.

The board, if it grants an abatement pursuant to this chapter, must submit an annual report to
the governor and to the director of the Legislative Counsel Bureau for transmittal to the
legislature that includes for the immediately preceding fiscal year:

A. The number of qualified projects located within the jurisdiction of the board for which a
certificate of eligibility for transferable tax credits was approved.

B. The number and dollar amounts of the abatements granted by the board.

C. The number of persons within the jurisdiction of the board that were employed by each
participant in a qualified project and the amount of wages paid those persons.

Proposed on , 2015.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2015,

Vote: Ayes Commissioners

Draft 3-3-2015




Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 3-3-2015 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: March 3, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve a cooperative agreement with the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No, 14-260
and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve the agreement between Storey County and the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County
of the Economic Diversification District No. 1 revenues pledged pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-260
and a Reimbursement Agreement with Tesla.

3. Prepared by: Bill Maddox and Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: This cooperative agreement requires the Nevada Department of Taxation to
administer and enforce all provisions of Storey County Code chapter 3.50 pertaining to the
collection of all sales and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to section 3.50.050 of the chapter.

It further requires Storey County to notify the Nevada Department of Taxation of each
participant that is located within and remits taxes generated within District No. 1. Such taxes shall
be administered in accordance with the Agreement. Storey County is further required to notify the
Department any time a Participant ceases doing business in District No. 1.

(Continued on next page.)

3. Supporting materials: The Cooperative Agreement between Storey County and Nevada Dept. of
Taxation for Economic Diversification District No. 1 (TESLA)

6. Fiscal impact: None

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ ps |

Agenda Item No.




4. Staff summary continued:

The agreement requires the Nevada Department of Taxation to distribute to Storey County,
on a monthly basis, an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and use taxes
pledged to Tesla pursuant to section 3.50.050 of the Ordinance as permitted by S.B. 1, 28™ Special
Sess. (Nev. 2014) (Economic Diversification Act). With each distribution, the Nevada Department
of Taxation must provide the Storey County Comptroller with a monthly statement setting forth
the amount collected. Distributions by the Nevada Department of Taxation to Storey County
pursuant to this Agreement will cease on June 30, 2035.

In the agreement, Storey County agrees that the Nevada Department of Taxation has the
power to make all necessary rules and regulations and prescribe all necessary forms or other
requirements for the purpose of making the administration of the Ordinance effective. Further,
Storey County agrees that the Nevada Department of Taxation has all the powers, duties, and
responsibilities as provided by Storey County Code chapter 3.50 and all other State laws pertaining
to the collection of sales and use taxes.




COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
between Storey County and Nevada Dept. of Taxation for
Economic Diversification District No. 1 (TESLA)

This Cooperative Agreement is made and entered into as of this day of March, 2015,
by and between Storey County, Nevada, a political subdivision of the State of Nevada and the
State of Nevada Department of Taxation (the “Department”), collectively the “Parties.”

RECITALS

Whereas, Storey County, through its Board of County Commissioners, and consistent
with $.B, 1, 28" Special Sess. (Nev. 2014) known here as the Economic Diversification Act, has
established the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) (“District No. 17)
by enacting Ordinance No. 14-260, adding chapter 3.50 to the Storey County Code (the
“Ordinance™); and

Whereas, the Economic Diversification Act further provides that after the adoption of the
Ordinance creating District No. 1, Storey County must enter into an agreement with the
Department specifying the dates and procedure for distribution to Storey County of the District
No. 1 Revenues pledged pursuant to the Ordinance and the Retmbursement Agreement with
Tesla.

Now therefore, in consideration of the premises set forth above and the mutual covenants
and promises set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Storey County and the Department agree as
follows:

1. The Department shall administer and enforce all provisions of Storey County Code
chapter 3.50 pertaining to the collection of all sales and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to
section 3.50.050 of the chapter.

2. Storey County shall notify the Department, using a notice which is substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, of each Participant, as that term is defined in chapter 3.50,
that is located within and remits taxes generated within District No. 1; and that such taxes shall
be administered in accordance with this Agreement. Storey County shall further notify the
Department any time a Participant ceases doing business in District No. 1.

3. The Department shall distribute to Storey County, on a monthly basis, an amount equal
to one hundred percent (100%) of the sales and use taxes pledged to Tesla pursuant to section
3.50.050 of the Ordinance as permitted by the Economic Diversification Act. With each
distribution, the Department shall provide the Storey County Comptroller with a monthly
statement setting forth the amount collected. Distributions by the Department to Storey County
pursuant to this Agreement shall cease on June 30, 2035.

4. Storey County agrees that the Department shall have the power to make all necessary

Draft 3-3-2015




rules and regulations and prescribe all necessary forms or other requirements for the purpose of
making the administration of the Ordinance effective,

5. The Department shall have all the powers, duties, and responsibilities as provided by
Storey County Code chapter 3.50 and all other State laws pertaining to the collection of sales and
use taxes.

6. If any term or provision of this Agreement is deemed to be invalid or
unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement will not be affected thereby, and
each remaining term and provision of this Agreement will be valid and be enforced to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

7. No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision contained herein will be deemed
a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any other covenant or provision
contained herein. No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act will be deemed
an extension of the time for performance of any other obligation or act except those of the
waiving Party, which will be extended by a period of time equal to the period of the delay.

8. Neither of the Parties shall assign any of the rights or delegate any of the duties of this
Agreement without the express written consent of the other Party and Tesla Motors, Inc. as the
intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.

9. Except as otherwise expressly provided, this Agreement (including all Exhibits
attached hereto) constitutes the entire contract between the Parties hereto and may not be
modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the Party to be charged.

10. The Parties hereto expressly agree that this Agreement will be governed by,
interpreted under, and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of
Nevada. Any action to enforce this agreement must be filed in the First Judicial District Court of
the State of Nevada in and for Storey County.

11. This Agreement may be executed on one or more counterparts, each of which shall be

regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute the same Agreement.

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Draft 3-3-2015




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be duly
executed on its behalf by an authorized representative.

STOREY COUNTY

Dated this _ day of March 2015.

By:

Marshall Mc¢Bride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

County District Attorney

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Dated this ___ day of March, 2015.

By:

Deonne E. Contine

Executive Director

Nevada Department of Taxation
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
By:

Deputy Attorney General

Draft 3-3-2015




EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Name of Business: (the "Business™)

Business Address:

Department of Taxation Identification Number for Business:

Storey County hereby notifies the Department of Taxation that the Business is located within the
Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1 (Tesla) ("District No. 1"). The Business
remits sales and use tax revenues generated within the District and such revenues shall be
administered in accordance with the Storey County Economic Diversification District No. 1
(Tesla) Cooperative Agreement dated as of March 2, 20135,

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA

By:

Printed Name and Title Date

Draft 3-3-2015




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 02/03/15 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Tide: (Continued from 01/05/15 meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No. 2014-
020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code
Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone,
The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and
commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the
planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and
the draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: (Continue item until March 3, 2015, board meeting.) Based on findings of
fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this
report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the master plan,
and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, 1
{(Commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone” to Storey
County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Text amendment of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) as
explained and recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-020.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-020 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet, and available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
7 epartment Head - Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
i Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

=
[ I "

Agenda Item No.




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Zone Text Amendment

To:
From:
Meeting Dates:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:

Request:

Applicant:
Property Owner:
Staff Contact:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
December 2, 2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2014-020

The applicant requests a text amendment to Storey County Code
Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance that will add Chapter
17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, L1.C

Not applicable

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Storey County Code (SCC) 17.03 Administrative Provisions; SCC
17.28 Commercial Zone; SCC 17.34 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone; SCC 17.84 Signs and Billboards; Storey

County Master Plan, River District, Industry, and Economic plans.

Not applicable

Page [ of 26




1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1  Request summary

The applicant requests an amendment to the text of Storey County Code Title 17, also known as
the Storey County Zoning Ordinance (zoning ordinance), that will create Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial-Commercial Zone. There is no particular parcel or property associated with this
request. However, the applicant of the text amendment submitted a zone map amendment
application (see Application No. 2014-021) to apply the proposed [-C Zone, if approved by the
board, fo land located adjacent to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center at McCarran.

1.2 Purpose and intent of the proposed zone

The proposed I-C Zone combines certain commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses
now allowed pursuant to SCC Chapters 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.34 1-1 Light Industrial
Zone, and 17.35 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone. Unlike the existing Commercial zone that provides
for general neighborhood and regional commercial uses, and the Heavy Industrial zone that
provides for heavy manufacturing and other high-intensity uses, the 1-C zone is intended to
facilitate a heavy commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited
for heavy arterial traffic corridors, such as Interstate 80 or USA Parkway, that interface and serve
large industrial developments.

1.3  Land use compatibility
1.3.1 Compatibility with surrounding uses

The subject application for zone text amendment does not apply to any parcel of land. However,
the potential application of this zoning designation to land in the future should be considered.
Table 1.1 — Use Comparisons, demonstrates allowed uses in the proposed [-C zone and compares
them with those allowed in the Commercial, Light Industrial, and Heavy Industrial zones, from
which each listed I-C use originated. The Purpose and Intent of the proposed I-C zone
(17.39.015, proposed) states that:

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas with the county
where certain industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and
maintained together to promote efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for
mixed non-residential uses. Tt facilitates a heavy commercial and light industrial
mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic arterials, such as
the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed use are
compatible.

[-C zoning is intended to be applied to land that is in close proximity to principal traffic arterial
routes and existing industrial type uses with which allowed uses in the I-C zone are compatible.
It is not considered an appropriate zone for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial
areas, such as Gold Hill, Virginia City, and Lockwood where C Commercial or CR Commercial-
Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

Page 2 of 26




1.3.2  Compatibility with mixed-uses within the zone

Table 1.1 shows allowed uses in the I-C zone. Because the I-C zone provides for a mixed-use
commercial-industrial environment, it should be assumed that the listed uses may occur together
on a single property (e.g., such as in a strip-mall or cluster development) or in a group of
independent but closely situated properties.

To ensure compatibility between the allowed uses, setback distance requirements in the I-C zone
(17.39.070, proposed) are particular to the use category, that being commercial, light industrial,
or heavy industriai (see setbacks, height, and area requirements in Table 1.2 ~ Coniparison of
Use Allowances). Planning staff finds that that the required setback distances facilitate a mixed-
use environment with necessary separation and other considerations between allowed uses.

A special use permit is required for certain heavy intensity uses in the I-C zone that may be
incompatible with each other, or may be incompatible with allowed uses in zones likely to occur
adjacent to the 1-C zone (see Section 3.1.1). Board and planning commission approvals are
required for special use permits. It is, therefore, found that these uses have the necessary case-by-
case governing body oversight to assure that their application will cause no zoning or use
conflicts with other conditions that may apply.

[ i Retail (principle) X X
2 | Retail (super regional) X X
3 | Commercial offices X X
4 | Personal services X X
5 | Hotels and boarding X X
6 | Tourism and visitor X X
7 | Recreation facilities X X
8 | Public infrastructure X X
9 | Schools and higher ed. X X X X
10 | Equipment repair X X X
11 | Indoor firearms use X X
12 | Qutdoor firearms use X X*

13 | Automotive services X X X X
14 | Truck stops X X* X X
15 | Agriculture X X

16 | Billboards X X* X*
17 | Automotive paint X X X
18 | Casinos (large-scale) X X* X
19 | Fortune tellers X K
20 | RV parks X X
21 | Mini-storage X X X X
22 | Hospitals / urgent care X* X* X X
23 | Crisis care, permanent X X X
24 | Open-air markets X X

Page 3 of 26




25 | Fairgrounds X X*
26 | Amusement parks X X*
27 | Film and movie sets X X* X¥
28 | Race tracks X X* X
29 | Education boarding X* X* X*
30 | Light manufacturing X X X*
31 | Heavy manufacturing X
32 | Warehouses X X X
33 | Chemical/oil storage X X X
34 | Chemical manufacture X*
35 | Laboratory testing X! X X!
37 | Non-renewable energy X*
38 | Renewable energy X+ X*
39 | Solid waste recycling X* X X
40 | Solid waste landfill X*
21 | Solid waste collection X* X X
22 | Natural resources X* x* X*
23 | Concreate plant (perm) X*
24 | Adult refail X xX* X*
24 | Mining X*
25 | Mine processing X* X*

Uses shown above are categorized into general use categories, see Storey County Code
Chapters 17.24, 17.32, 17.35, 17.76, and 17.84 for specific uses in each zone.
*Asterisks indicate uses requiring a special use permit.

1The use of live animals in laboratory testing is prohibited.

1. | Height

C —45" or 3 stories

I-1 - 357 or 3 stories

I-2 — 75" or 6 stories

1-C — 120’ or 10 stories

2. | Setback distances

C —~ zero front and sides; 10’ rear

-1 -20°

-2 -50°

I-C - heavy industry, 50°; light industry, 20°; commercial, 20’ front, 10’ rear

3. | Minimum parcel area / use density

C—15,000sq.”
[-1 =1 acre
[-2 — 3 acres

I-C — heavy industry, 3 acres; light industry, ¥ acre; commercial, 10,000 square-feet

Page 4 of 26




2.  General Compliance with Guiding Documents

2.1 Master Plan

Chapter 3.2 of the Storey County Master Plan (1994) states that considerable development has
occuwrred in the River District over the years and that development is expected to continue. It
recommends that planning officials “give serious consideration to development and zoning for an
industrial park in the [River District] area” (pp. 19-20). Attracting additional businesses;
diversification to the county’s economy; broadening the county’s tax base; enhancing efficiency
of water, sewer, and other utility service;, and managing growth are described benefits to
improving and consolidating industrial development in the county. Specific goals and objectives
listed in the master plan in this regard include:

e Chapter 3 Economy — Goal 1, enhance diversification of economic opportunities within
the county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: develop and adopt standards for industrial park
development before a large project is proposed.

o Chapter 5 Conservation and Natural Resources — Goal 2, protect the quality of present
and future water resources; Goal 4, regulate the use of open-range and watershed areas to
minimize fire danger and prevent degradation; Goal 4, Objective 4.1, assist property
owners and interested groups in controlling grazing and public use of critical watershed
and riparian areas.

e Chapter 9 Land Use — Goal 1: maintain a healthy environment for all residents of the
county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: ensure that Jand use permit decisions are compatible with
the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decisions; Goal 4: preserve existing
agricultural areas; Goal 4, objective 4.1: through zoning regulations, direct non-
agricultural development to non-agricultural areas.

s Section River District — Goal 4, Objective 4.1: coordinate land uses on the south side
[Storey County] of the Truckee River with developments on the north side [Washoe
County] of the river and visa-versa; Goal 5: design zoning districts to allow for a mix in
land use development; Goal 3, Objective 5.1: consider zoning the Tracy-Clark and the
surrounding area for industrial use.

As stated in Section 1.3, the subject text amendment application does not apply to any particular
land. However, planning staff and the applicant have identified potential land adjacent to the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center that may be ideal for an I-C zoning designation. Aligned with the
purpose and intent of the I-C zone, this land abuts or is in immediate proximity to Interstate 80,
interfaces heavy industrial uses at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and is near existing
infrastructure that would support the listed uses. There are other areas in the county near the
interstate or industrial development that too may be considered for this zoning designation.

With the expressed purpose and intent of the proposed 1-C zone corresponding to such land
application, planning staff find that the I-C zone conforms to the goals and objectives of the
county master plan.

Page 5 of 26




2.2 Zoning Ordinance (SCC Title 17)
2.2.1 Conformance with zoning

Storey County is divided into zoning districts of such number and character as necessary to
achieve compatibility of land uses within each district, and to implement the master plan and
related official plans as needed to meet the purpose and intent of the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance. The purpose of the zoning ordinance is to serve the public health, safety, comfort,
convenience, and general welfare; to provide the economic and social advantages resulting from
an orderly planned use of economic, natural, and community resources; to encourage, guide, and
provide for the future growth and development of the county; and to implement the goals,
objectives, policies, and procedures of the master plan (SCC 17.02.020).

As stated in Sections 1.3 and 2.1 above, planning staff finds that the purpose and intent, and the
uses allowed in the I-C zone conform to the elements of the master plan, as well as the
regulations and provisions of the county zoning ordinance.

2.2.2 Application for zone text amendment

SCC 17.03.220 states that amendments to Title 17 (zoning ordinance) may be initiated by the
board, planning commission, or an owner of a lot or parcel, by applying with the Planning
Director a signed and completed application. The Planning Director must consider whether or
not information provided by the applicant substantiates findings for approval. The applicant will
then proceed with its presentation of such to the planning commission and board for
consideration. The subject application was initiated by the land owner and is hereby presented to
the planning commission and board with discussion, findings, and recommendations.

2.2.3  Zone map amendment, applicability

While not subject to this request, a property owner who desires to apply the I-C zone (if
adopted), or any other zone to a piece of land, is required to apply for a zone map amendment
that will be considered in public hearing by the board with recommendation by the planning
commission. The board and planning must consider: (a) how the proposal will impact the
immediate vicinity; (b} how the proposal supports the goals, objectives, and recommendations of
the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the neighborhood where the subject
parcel is situated; (c) if the proposed amendment will impact properties within the use district;
and (d) any impacts on public services and facilities, and availability of water resources.

Notwithstanding approval of the I-C zone, any proposal to apply it to land will require further
review by the board and planning commission.

3. Public Comment

3.1 Public comments regarding proposal

Staff has received no public comment for this application request.

Page 6 of 26




4. Findings

4.1 Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the zone text amendment under the recommended conditions
of approval shown in Section 5. A motion for approval should include at 2 minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

4.1.1 The zone text amendment complies with federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

4.1.2 The zone text amendment substantially conforms to and supports the goals, objectives,
and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan concerning land use and related
policies.

4.1.3 The zone text amendment considers uses that pursuant to the master plan and zoning
ordinance occur on abutting lands, and it reasonably mitigates potential adverse impacts that
may be caused by its uses.

4.1.4 The zone text amendment does not conflict with the minimum requirements of Title 17
zoning ordinance or SCC Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone text amendments.

4.1.5 The proposed zone text amendment will not cause uses that will likely negatively impact
existing or planned public facilities, and it will not adversely impact the public health, safety,
and welfare.

4.1.6 The proposed zone text amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions, such
as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements,

4.2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the zone text amendment application, the following findings
with an explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to federal,
Nevada State, and Storey County regulations.

4.2.2 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to and
support the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan
concerning land use and related policies.

4.2.3 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not sufficiently
consider uses that may pursuant to the master plan and zoning ordinance occur on abutting
lands, and it does not reasonably mitigate potential adverse impacts that may be caused by its
allowed uses.

4.2.4 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment may cause uses that will
negatively impact existing or planned public facilities, may adversely impact the public
health, safety, and welfare, and may create non-conforming conditions.

Page 7 of 26




S. Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Official zoning text requirements

The official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be amended to
include Chapter “17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone”, and existing Chapter 17.08 Zones
Generally and other applicable zoning chapters must be amended to appropriately reference the
subject zone.

5.2 Official zoning map requirements

The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to depict the subject zone designation
that is added to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance. The Official
Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the signature of the chairman of the Board
attested by the Storey County Clerk under the following words: “This is to certified that this is
the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning
Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada” together with the date of adoption,

5.3 Changes made promptly

The changes approved by the board with recommendation by the planning commission must be
entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County Zoning Map (and the
applicable area zoning maps) promptly as reasonable after the amendment has been approved,
with the entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of
the purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Area Zoning
Map which may periodically be made or published, the Official Storey County Zoning Map and
Area Zoning Maps shall be kept in the Office of the Storey County Clerk and Recorder. The
Storey County Recorder shail be the final authority as to the current zoning status of the land and
water area, buildings, and other structures in the county.

54 Copies of official zoning text and map

Signed and sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and Area Zoning Maps, and
official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be available for
public viewing at the Offices of the Storey County Clerk and Storey County Recorder.

5.5  General requirements

The zone text amendment and related map amendment must comply with and remain in
conformance with all provisions set forth by this zone map amendment and all applicable
federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations.

Page 8 of 26




6. Power of the Board and Planning Commission

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. Afier considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

7. Planning Commission Action

At its November 13, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant,
county staff, and the public. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
compatibility concerns; access and traffic impacts for several allowed uses; zoning and use
entitlements; potential impacts to areas where the zone may be allowable; potential location and
placement of the zoning designation; and overall benefits and impacts that the I-C zone may
have on the county and its communities. There was no public comment for or against the
proposal. Commissioner Tyler asked several questions about traffic and other impacts generated
by large-scale casinos allowed by the zone. Planning staff stated that the I-C zone is only
allowed near major arterial routes such as Interstate 80 and USA Parkway, which are typically
developed to standards that would accommodate large-scale casinos and other uses.
Commissioner Tyler and the planning commission asked that a special use permit be required for
large-scale casinos. Staff read into the records its recommended findings to be included with a
motion for approval. Members of the planning commission who were present voted unanimously
(4 votes with 4 planning commissioners present) to approve the zone text amendment in
accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff, except that a special use permit
shall be required for large-scale casinos.

8. Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1. This motion is
recommended by staff, but does not conform to the recommendation by the planning commission
regarding special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 2 for approval, as an
alternative, may be made in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1 and the
recommendation by the planning commission, but against the recommendation by staff regarding
special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in Subsection 4.2. The findings of fact in the
respective section of this report, and other findings of fact determined appropriate by the body
should be made part of the motion.

Page 9 of 26




Motion 1 — Recommended motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by the planning commission that a special use permit shall be
required for large-scale casinos, I (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text
Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial
Zone” to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Approve zome fext amendment as presented, except modify planning
commission recommendation so a special use permit is not required for large casinos

Motion 2 — Alternative motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by staff that a special use permit not be required for large-scale
casinos, I {(commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone” to Storey County
Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Approve zone text amendment as recommended by the planning commission,
and require a special use permit for large casinos

Motion 3 — Alternative motion (denial)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.2 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, or other findings found appropriate, and against the recommendation for
approval by staff and the planning commission, I (commissioner) motion to a deny Storey
County Zone Text Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial Commercial Zone™ to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary. Deny text amendment

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 [-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Exhibit B: Application No. 2014-020

Page 10 of 26




Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Chapter 17.39

I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Sections:
17.39.016  Applicability.
17.39.015 Purpose and Intent
17.39.020 Allowed Uses
17.39.030 Uises Subject to Special Use Permit
17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area
17.39.070 Loading Area
17.39.080 Setback Requirements

17.39.010 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in the C Commercial
Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and uses in the CR Commercial-Residential
zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-Residential zone.

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas within the county where certain
industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and maintained together to promote
efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy
commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic
arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed uses are
compatible. It is not intended for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial areas, such as
Geld Hill, Virginia City, Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are allowed in the 1-C
Industrial-Commercial Zone.
A. Commercial uses including:
[. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

a. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery stores,
neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and shopping centers, and super
regional stores and shopping centers.

b. Seasonal holiday sales and uses.

¢. Seasonal farmers markets.

2. Commercial offices and financial institutions:
a. Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants, insurance,

employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secrefarial services, associations and other similar office uses and activities.

Page 11 of 26




b.
c.

d.

Building maintenance and services.
Business and professional offices and buildings.

Conventicn and meeting facilities,

3. Personal services:

c.

d.

Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons, tailors, massage
establishments, and similar type uses,

Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
Childcare of any number of children.

Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.

4. Boarding accommeodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns, timeshares,
and vacation rentals.

5. Tourist and visitor services:

d.

Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners, fast-food,
coffee shops and coffee houses, soda-fountains, saloens and taverns, and micro-breweries
with on-site and off-site sales.

Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on foot, gold
panning, and museums.

Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony rides, and
carriage and stagecoach rides.

Theaters.

6. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming (when incidental to a
primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or video machines), golf driving ranges,
miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and
saunas, fennis courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, seasonal or temporary cutdoor theatres, and other similar recreational uses and
activities.

7. Civic uses:

a.

Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff.

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.

Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent.

Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and

courts of law,

Page 12 of 26




e. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies, colleges
and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice training, whether
public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is required for education institutions and
academies that include student residential accommodations.

f.  Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks, walking and
bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

g. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-modal
transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail infrastructures, train
tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

h. Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals,

8. General services:

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general contractors offices, heavy
and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, manufactured home sales and service,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shaps, video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activities.

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

9. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges, recreational and

10.

12.

13.

4.

15,

16.

17.

18.

social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private clubs.

Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses.
Uses also include community gardens,

. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area where slots

and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots and/or video machines,
and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission substations, and
ancillary uses,

Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat, utility trailer,
horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale, barter, or trade of items
associated with a business outside of a permanent building.

Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other motorized
vehicles.

Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 13 of 26




19. Automabile paint shops and body repair shops.

20. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use, placed

21

upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in conformance with section 17.12.048.

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses

permitted within the zone.

B. Light industrial uses including the following:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process that uses already
manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic,
teather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts.

Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops, carpet
cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.

. Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, custom

animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural
entertainment and commercial uses.

Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and refining,
upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment

associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

. Manufactured home and modular home sales lots.

Propane sales and storage.
Firewood sales and storage.
Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

Laberatories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing, and
experimentation is prohibited.

Building material manufacturing.

Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warchouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale distribution.
L.aundromats and personal dry cleaning.

Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and detailing (manual
hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(including painting and body repair), sales, and rental.

Truck stops.

Page 14 of 26




17. Selid waste recycling collection center.

18. Solid waste recycling center.

19. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing,

20. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game farms.

21. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing, treatment, or
storage.

22. Watchman’s dwelling, whether permanent or temporary.

23. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment
associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
consiruction project on the premises.

24. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uses including the following:

1. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already manufactured
components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood,
glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and manufacturing operations invelving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section 17.39.030 as requiring
a special use permit.

2. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentme varnishes, and other similar chemicals
within a warehouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of petroleum and liquid petroleum products within a warehouse facility.

4. Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other such chemicals. Manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid
petroleum products are prohibited.

5. Paper manufacturing.
6. Bottling plants.

7. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions,

1. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses under this
subsection must comply with the regulations under Title § Business licenses, and be located no
closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school, religious institution, public building or
facility, or another permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and

Page [5 of 26




10

11.

12.

13.

14.

I5.

16.

17.

18.

300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and similar

USES.

. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and theme rides,

roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths,

. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and production of

movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.
. Permanent outdoor theatres.

. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or possession of one
or more wild animals.

. Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent care, clinics,

convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services.

Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These uses are only allowed
within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which is zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial,
I-C Industrial-Commercial, or C Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public
or private school or religious institution.

Retail establishments featuring the display, lease, or rental of “adult material™ books,
merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded video
devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia *“adult” material. The
merchandise shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the purchaser or lessee off
the premises of the business.

Temporary (less than 1 year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to an on-site
construction project or when located within 2,500 feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland creation, water restoration
and recycling.

The keeping of 7 or more dogs or potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A minimum of 10
acres is required.

Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with action by the planning
commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special use permit within the zone.

Page 16 of 26




17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten stories or 120 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not
apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers,
flagpoles, and commercial and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas, Wind energy
turbine support structures are regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel area requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on a parcel of no less
than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than one-half acre;
and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than 3 acres, The minimum area
requirement for uses requiring a special use perniit shall be determined by the special use permit, except
that the area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet.

17.39.060 Loading Area
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.070 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located no closer than 50 feet
from any property line; {B) light-industrial uses may be located no closer than 20 feet from any property
line; and (C) commercial uses shall have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front
setback. Uses requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the granted
special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances shall be no less than 10 feet from

any property line,

Page 17 of 26




Exhibit B: Application No. 2014-020 (Zone Text Amendment)
The following application includes a request for both a zone text and zone map amendments. For
zone map amendment applicability, refer to Application and Staff Report No. 2014-021,

Storey County F*Iann'ing Department

26 South "B™ Street, P.O. Box 176, Virginla City, NV 89440
Phone: {775) 647-1144 Fax: (775) 847-0948
planning@storeycaunty.org

Development Application

Submit this complaled application and all attachments afong with the application fee (s9e pags two for type of
application and fess) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your requost scheduled. The application
wifl not be accepted unless complete, including attachments. fapplicant will be notified within 15 days If application s
not aeceptabla and what Is stlll required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please maka chetks payable to
Storey County Flanning Developmeant.

| Project Murnbar:

Property Owner;_Lahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LIC
Ml land cramern must o Fatad on this spphestion. Type or prinl Iaglkl) ¥t black o blia Ink.

cfo Robert M. Sader, 8600 Technology Way, Suite 101

'Maitlng Address:
Ciity: Reno . Siate; WV Zipy_B89321

Telaphons {Homa) { b} H/A Business{ /75 y 329-8310

Applicant___ SAHE

B applieants kst b Txted ai this applization.

Mailing Address; SAME

City: Btate: Zip:

Telophone (Home) ( X Businass ( )
| Cisoid Hill [virginis City (I ve Highlands {1 Highland Ranches [ Virginia Ranchas
] (1 scre) {10 acres) {48 aores)
| DMark Twaln {THafed Ohockwood [ lPainted Rosk B [Jother

Project Address; Waltham Way and I-80 _
0D4-161 and 99; 004-162-01 and 02;

Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN) 005-1%3;:% 02,703, 04 g 05 :

Lot: NfA Block: HiA Acreage: 319.852

Tof'g

Page 18 of 26




— Major

- Major Industrial

“CApplicationifype | Application Fee | Application Fee
T T Abandonment "$200.00 ) nfa
|| Condition n/a || Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment _ Adjusiment o _
] Development $1,000.00 {_JExtension of Time | 50% of Criginal Fee
Agresment {Requires a Request {One Year
Special Use Permif) _ Extension Only)
[ Jland Divisiocn Map | $500,00 + $50.00 per | |_] Lot Consclidation nia
{40 acre minimem} lot
LT Waster Plan Map | $2,500.00 T Master Plan Text | $800.00
Amendment Ameandment
{ ] Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour [ Street Name nfa
Exploration and  Raquest
Regisiration
1| Parcal Map - $250.00 + 25.00 per fol ||| Parvel Map Final | nfa
| Record of Sunsey
i1 Plahned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 periot | [_] Planned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
-Development {PUD) - Development - Final
Tentative
7] *Special Use Pormit | $250.00 [ T*Special Use Permit | $450.00
— Minor - Routine
] *Special Use Permit | $750.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

$500.00 + 1.00 per fot

{1 Subdivision Map - L] Subdlvision Map - | $200.,00 + 25.00 per lot
Tentative _ Final
{"TVariance - nfa [ TVariance $100.00
Administrative
[} Wireless 1 Wireless nfa
Coramunication Facllity Communication
Facibty, Modification
el Zoning Map Changs | $1,000.00 1o Zoning Text Change | nfa

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, Including
staff time and consultation with outside lzgal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No addifional fess will be charged without expressed written permission by the appliicant,

g

Applicants Inltiale

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, pleass refer also to the Starey County Speclal Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.

2ur'd

Page 19 of 26




Storey Cosnty Devefopment Applicilion

Detail DezcripfionlJustificat f Project
Attached sdditonal pages as necessary

SEE ATTACHED

e’k

Page 20 of 26




STOREY COUNTY DEVELGPMENT APPLICATOIN
DETAIL DESCRIPTIONJUSTIFICATION OF PROJECT

INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment 1o the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning text change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Indusinial Cenfer, LLC (“TRI™) which was formerty in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attached to this application, including 2 map of the parcels.

There are nine {9} parcels subject 1o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckes River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang,

BACKGROUND

The 3013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe Cownty and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by resohutions approved by each county’s board of commissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Conmissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Bourd of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment,

The result of these actions was to transfer cighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County 1o Sorey County, Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TR] and are subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center ("Center™). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center i separated from the Property by the
Truekee River. 1t is a logical extension of the Center for TRI fo develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Cenler,

The basic entitlement for the Cemter is the Development Agreement dated
Febroary I, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Trprovenent Diserter (“TRIGID™. Applications to annex
the Property to the Development Agresment are being made concwrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGID will be mads to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is I-2 Heavy Induswial {1999 Storey County Zoning
Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land. This application seeks to add a portion of the Property

Page 21 of 26




TAIL DESCR JUSTIFICATION OF PROJECT
INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning text change for real property {the *Property™} owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRT™) which was formerly in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundaty line adjustment 1o Storey County, The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Properiy is attached to this applcation, inchuding a map of the parcels.

There are nine {9) parcels subject 1o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-8Q, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevads State Legistature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjusiment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.3
antd 3{3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county’s board of comrissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissicners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On tlie same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a reschetion on the same adjustinent.

The result of these actions was to transfer eighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County. Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TR and are subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“Center). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Trackee River. Itis a logical extension of the Center for TRY 1o develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Center.

The basic enttlement for the Center is the Development Agreement daded
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI Generst Tmprovement Disteict “TRIGID™), Applications (0 annex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service tertitory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreament annexation.

The zoning for the Center is 1-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoming uses on 10% of the land, This application secks to add a portion of the Property

Page 22 of 26




Storey Coustty Development Application

Professlonal Consultant/Representative(s}
Name:
Address; 8600 Teclmology Way, Suite 101
City: _——nm‘)_ . State: Revada LZips BIBZL
Phone: CTI5329=8310 Emaitxnsader@icbertmeaderltd.com. Gell: H/A
Applicant's Affidavit;
L. N/A , baing duly swom, depose and say hal 1 am the appilcant of the described
{Printed nama)

project andfor request, and afl the statemments and answers hersln contained and the Informalion herewith submitted are In
gl respects complate, rue and correct to the bast of my knewledge and bellef, 1 undersiand that no assurance or guarantae
can ba ghven by membars of the Storey County Planning Department Staff,

Glnatiive of Applicant Dale

State of Nevada,
Courty of Slnrey

Slgned and swom 1o before me an by,

Notary'e Manahure

My Liommizslon Explres

Property Owner's Affidavit:
t, Tahoe-Reno Induatrial, LIC paing duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* In fee of the described
_(Pnntad nams) -
property involved in this application, thet ) have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and angwors hersln contalned and the Information herewith submitted are In all respects complets, fnaa apd
conaet lo the best of my knowledge and belied, | understand that no sssurance or guarantes can be given by members of

thegStorey County Planning Depariment Stafi,
m/m—ﬁzﬁm Date }o/gﬁy

Signaturs of cant

t M. Sader, Legal Coumsel
Stele of Nevada,

County of S Washoe ' . o
TINA FORD
Signed and sworn to bafore me on by, NOTARY FUBLIC
iﬁﬁgﬁ. NEVADA
L NG, 0270303
ﬁ?!)ﬁ’f J" /,M ; 556/ ey MY AFPY. EXPIRES JUNE 52.2013

y Commission
4 of 8

Page 23 of 26




Stngey County Development Application

DEVELOFMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

o .. Submittal Requirements

Application Type

DescrintondJustficalion
Odgingl Map Mylar
Map & Data in CAD
Format on Disk

Flogr Plan

Titie Repon

Seils Repott

Water Righis
Reclamation Pizn
Additional Information —

Dretaited
; Dreinaos Report

Teafitic Repart

Dgpariment

w| Pald Tax Receipt

Abandonment

»|%| Legal Description - Deed

X | x| Reduced Map (11x17)

| %| Plot Plan

Amended Map

Condition Amendmant

»
>

Boundary Line Adjustmant

£
=

Development Agraament
{Reultas Speclal Use Penmit)

*
>
»
k3
®
>
»
»
»
b4
*

Extension of Time Request (Gne
Year Exlension Only)

Land Division Map {00 agre
minimum

Page 24 of 26

M X[ M X

Lot Consolitation®

Toe|se] 3¢ 1 s¢ | e | o] 5| e || Vicnity Mep

Master Plan Map Amendment

Master Plan Text Amepdmeant

o |m|mlse] »e [ we | w | me|pal 2| ]| Development Application

PR I N R A

Natural Resourcas Exploration
and Registration Review

>
»
>
»

Paresl Map — Record of SBurvey

Parcel Map X

"
E
>
¢
o
b
o

Planngd Unit Development, X
Tanialive

>
>
=
£
b
b
-
-
F
=
=
>

] s el owe Paine|xy oW | 2L x| M) ae)n| Check with Planning

nlolgcio|oniolo| G| OInisanm

Plannes Unit Development, Finad | X| X | X | x | x x| x

*Adminiatrative kot consolidation procedure
Note: Additional information and materlals may be required with the application.

fof R




Storey County Development Application

. DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SuBmMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittal Requirements

Application Type

Desorption/Justification
Flot Flan

Original Map Mylar

Map & Data in CAD
Format on Disk

Vicinity Map

Floor Plan

Legal Beseription - Daad

Detalfed

Title Report

Dralnage Report

Solls Report

. Traffic Repart

| Water Rights

Reclamation Plan

Additionat Information -

Deapariment .

Special Usa Permit - 352.

Special Usa Permit - Routine

Spacial Use Permit — Major

Speciat Use Parmit —
Maijor Indusirfal

se | e e ]m Fakd Tax Recalipt

| W m s Reduced Map {11 % 17)

Strest Name Request

Spae [ W |

Subdivisinn Map - Tentative

»®

Wimpm] ¥ || MI®

i

Subddivision Map - Final

>
e
>
*

Variance - ddministrative

Variance

Wirgless Comimunication
Facifity

Wirsless Commumication
Facility, Modifisation

VIV Y RV IR
»

Zoning Map Change

Zoning Text Changs

W m ] oo [ mEmin|selx] » x| x| ] Development Application

nig|lo] | o|ojgloolo] aig|fgm
IR A AR IR IEIE IR R A
o

LA AR I
AR T IR
]

Cther

s e boe| we [ o Pl peipe| pe] w | %X | X Check with Planning

Note: Additional information and materlals may be required with the applicaticn.

Page 25 of 26



DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

1. Development Application - You can get an application from the Pianning Depariment at the Storey County
Courthousa or onling at StoreyCounty.org.

2. Detaifed Description/Justification — The descripion of your project and the reason for the project. Be as defailed
ag possible and submit any Infermation to help explatn your profect (photos, maps, e6s.).

3, Paid Tax Receipt — This Is & recelpt showlng your property taxes are current or pald in full. A copy can be
cbitzined fram the ClerlyTraasurer's offica located on tha 2* floor in the Storsy County Courlhouse.

& Piot Plan — A diagram showing the location of &l buildings, welt and septic (if any). This can be obitalned from the
Building Department ar Assessor's office or neally hand drawn by the applicant.

5. Reduced Map (11 x 17) - Applications with large maps must supply one that can be scanned in for use In reporis,

6. Qrginal Map Mylar — This map Is done by a professional surveyor,

7. Map & Data in CAD format on Disk — This map Is done by a profassional surveyor,

8. Vicinity Map ~ This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcal. A copy can be obtained from the
@ssessors office [ocated on the 1* flaor in the Storey County Courthouse,

9. Floor Plan - These are building plans for & house (subdivision) and dene by a bulider.
10. Legal Description - Deed — Dase by a professional surveyor,
11, Title Report - Done by a professional company,

12. Drainage Report — Done by a professional company,

13, Spils Report — Done by a professional company.
14, Traffic Report - Dane by a professional company,
15, Water Rights - You can obtain this from State Water Department

16. Reclamation Plan — Done by a professional company.

LR

{Proposed text amendment attached to application is located in Exhibit A above.)

Page 26 of 26




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/02/14 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: (Agenda Language included in Enclosure A)

2. Recommended motien: Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of
approval shown in Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and
county regulations, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning
commission, I (Commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Map Amendment
Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official zoning map of Storey County to include
the Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and Industrial-Commercial zones as presented by
staff in this report.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Amendment of the Official Storey County Zoning Map as explained and
recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-021 enclosed herewith.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-021 and exhibits enclosed herewith.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government,

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reyviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Lo R |
e

Agenda Item No.




R N T S
e A e

“Enclosure A: Agenda Language for Application No. 2014-021

SRR

Discussion/Possible Action: Application No. 2014-021 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center,
LLC,, and Storey County on behalf of The Nature Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific
Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County Zoning Map. The amendments will apply
regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land located in McCarran, Nevada (River District
near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in July of 2014 transferred from Washoe
County to Storey County by means of boundary line adjustment. The subject area is described
approximately as portions oft Section 31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6,
Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2
and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all
in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties
will be as follows: (a} F Forestry zoning will be applied to land located at Assessor’s Parcel
Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99, 004.162.01, and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources
zoning will be applied to land located at APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and
004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoening will be applied to land located at APNs
005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and 005.121.05; and (d) P Public will be applied
to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89, 004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93,
004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all within the approximate subject area described above.
The purpose of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey
County that is consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their
transfer into Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture, Medium
Density Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure. Additional information including, but not
limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Zone Map Amendment

To:
From:
Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:

Request:

Applicants:

Property Owners:

Staff Contact:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
December 2, 2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2014-021

Request for amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map
to apply Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and Industrial zoning
to parcels all located within approximately 600 acres of land
recently transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by
boundary line adjustment.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC; and Storey County on behalf
of The Nature Conservancy, LLC and Union Pacific Railroad
Company.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC; The Nature Conservancy,
LLC; and Union Pacific Railroad Company.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Storey County Code 17.03 Administrative Provisions; SCC 17.24
Agriculture Zone; 17.32 Forestry Zone; 17.35 Heavy Industrial
Zone; 17.76 Natural Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards;
17.92 Mineral Exploration and Mining; Storey County Master
Plan, River District plan and Industrial development plan; Washoe
County Master Plan, Truckee Canyon Area Plan.

The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section
31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6,
Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20
North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East; and Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East,
all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M).
Specific subject properties are listed in Table 1.1 and Exhibit C.

Page 1 of 32




1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site location and characteristics

The properties subject to this request for zone map amendment are located on approximately 580
acres along the Truckee River and Interstate 80 between Mustang and McCarran, Nevada. The
approximate location and placement of each subject parcel is illustrated in Figures 1.1 and 1.2.
McCarran is approximately 12 miles east of Sparks and about halfway between it and Fernley.

In 2003 the Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272 which authorized a boundary line
adjustment between Storey County and Washoe County by resolution approved by each county’s
board of commissioners. On June 17, 2014, the Board of Storey County Commissioners passed
Resolution 14-403 approving the adjustment. On the same date, the Board of Washoe County
Commissioners approved a resolution on the adjustment. The result of these actions was the
transfer 22 parcels and approximately 580 acres from Washoe County to Storey County, The

area of land transfer is described in Table 1.1 and illustrated in Figures 1.1 and 1.2.

1 ] 004-161-98 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 10 | Agriculture orestry

2 | 004-161-99 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 6| Agriculture Forestry

3 [ 004-162-01 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 26 | Apgriculture Forestry

4 | 005-121-01 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 36 Industrial IC

5 1 005-121-02 | Tahoe-Rene Industrial Center 104 Industrial 1C

6 | 005-121-03 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 65 Industrial iC

7 | 005-121-04 { Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 3 Industrial IC

g8 [ 005-121-05 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 17 Industrial IC

9 | 004-162-02 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 55 Rural Forestry
10 | 004-161-85 | The Nature Conservancy 3 Rural Nat Resource
11 | 004-161-86 | The Nature Conservancy 0.23 Rural Nat Resource
12 | 004-161-88 | The Nature Conservancy 47 Rural Nat Resource
13 | 004-161-96 | The Nature Conservancy 59 Rural Nat Resource
14 1 004-161-87 | Union Pacific Railroad 30 | Infrastructure Public

[5 | 004-161-89 | Union Pacific Railroad 48 | Infrastructure Public

16 | 004-161-90 | Union Pacific Railroad 11 | Infrastructure Public

17 | 004-161-91 | Union Pacific Railroad 1 | Infrastructure Public

18 | 004-161-92 | Union Pacific Railroad 7 | Infrastructure Public

19 | 004-161-93 | Union Pacific Railroad 5 | Infrastructure Public

20 | 004-161-94 | Union Pacific Railroad 27 | Infrastructure Public

21 | 004-161-95 | Union Pacific Railroad 5 1 Infrastructure Public

22 | 004-161-97 | Union Pacific Railroad 10 | Infrastructure Public

Note: “IC" — Industrial-Commercial (Stovey); “"Rural” — Medium Density Rural (Washoe)

Page 2 0of 32




Z£ o ¢ 98eg

(711 pue ']} s24ndiy ur sadewn dn-3sopd 20s) Suruoz pasodoad pue aoud o) dudIJa1 pue diyssoumo puey — 11 sandiy

~ B
K
3 E
H
3
k1 ,
ER—
E
- = |
g
3z 3
&3 5
23 %
ZE .
i3
3W
A
o
o
7
) .
B {
14
C
>
H
, _
z
1
Ax
!
Ailihl
Bi2Ral
, :
i
Al

ATV YR STLLRE S0 R DAY

s
frorerans




Tg Jo ¢ 98eg

adew] [°T 9431 JO (ISoM puUB [€1U) )J3] WO0Z — [']'T Sz




7€ Jo § 98y

agewi] [T 2an3L] Jo (3sed pue [eJU0) JYSLL WooZ — '] 2andiy

A b S SR N S R AT
R

O ROTIYAD N
- ¥ i

S ddveay

2

ST e T ey e
sdidn s

N, .
\\, gy L3
v E
b K.\
. 2




ion is approximate.

Industrial Center

Page 6 of 32

3
-
-~ @
B2 9
-
%o"m’
3
= &
[P
o2
L E N 5]
R
ﬁ(ﬁ
g E
2.8
Lo B

£
<
E:
<
oz

ect area highlighted green indicates land transferred from Washoe to Storey County. Informat

i

1.2 = The sub

Figure




1.2 Zoning and master plan considerations

The properties in Washoe County were zoned Industrial, Agricultural, Medium Density Rural,
and Public Infrastructure prior to their transfer into Storey County (Washoe County, Truckee
Canyon Regulatory Zone Map, 2013). The properties, now in Storey County, have not yet been
assigned zonming designations. There are three principal owners involved in the subject
properties: The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TRI-Center); The Nature Conservancy,
LLC (Nature Conservancy); and the Union Pacific Railroad Company (Union Pacific).

1.3 Application background and requested zoning designations

Planning staff’ consulted with TRi-Center and the Nature Conservancy in determining
appropriate zoning designations for their subject parcels. Planning staff also contacted
representatives of Union Pacific by telephone and USPS mail. Union Pacific did not express
interest in applying for any zoning designation for its land. However, the company representative
informed staff that it would accept Public zoning for their land, a Storey County zone that is
similar to its prior Washoe County Public Infrastructure zoning. The folowing describe existing
land uses in and around the subject properties, and zone map amendment proposals for each
group of subject properties.

1.3.1 Land owned by TRI-Center

Parcels 1-9 shown in Table 1.1 — Ownership and Zoning, are owned by TRI-Center. Five of
those parcels were zoned Industrial in Washoe County, three were zoned Agriculture, and one
was zoned Medium Density Rural, TRI Center requested that the five parcels previously zoned
Industrial be classified similarly in Storey County, and that its four remaining parcels previously
zoned Agriculture and Medium Density Rural be zoned Forestry.

Preceding its request for zone map amendment, TRI-Center applied for an amendment to Storey
County Zoning Ordinance text to create an “I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone”. The 1-C zone
allows mixed commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses where deemed appropriate
by the board with recommendation by the planning commission. For the purpose of this report, it
ts assumed that the I-C zone is adopted prior to this zone map amendment request.

TRI-Center described to planning staff its subject property along portions of the Interstate 80
corridor as ideal for mixed-use commercial-industrial zoning. Planning staff finds this interstate
frontage appropriate for I-C zoning. It also finds the I-C zone to be consistent with the prior
zoning designation and area uses in both Storey and Washoe Counties (see compatibility in
Section 1.4). Staff recommends that the remaining four parcels mentioned above remain rural
type zoning similar to their previous Agriculture and Medium Density Rural zoning. However,
because there is no known agricultural activity occurring on that land, staff and the property
owner recommend that these parcels are zoned Forestry, Storey County’s closest equivalent and
appropriate zoning classification.

1.3.2  Land owned by Nature Conservancy

Parcels 10-13 shown in Table 1.1 are owned by the Nature Conservancy. The subject land is
located within the floodway and riparian area of the Truckee River. The property owner manages

Page 7 0f 32




the land for the purpose of restoring riparian habitats and improving natural flood storage
capacity of the river. Planning staff and the property owner agree that N-R Natural Resources
zoning designation would be the most appropriate classification for this land. The N-R Zone is
established to promote the preservation of land to conserve and enhance natural and scenic
resources, archeological, and cultural sites, primitive areas, watersheds, and flood-prone areas
from unreasonable impairment. Staff on behalf of the property owner is applying for this zoning
designation.

1.3.3 Land owned by Union Pacific

Parcels 14-22 shown in Table 1.1 are owned by Union Pacific. These parcels make up a narrow
strip of land through entire stretch of the subject area that facilitates the existing Union Pacific
transcontinental railroad. The land was zoned Public Infrastructure in Washoe County.

Storey County’s Public zone is the most equivalent zone to Washoe County’s Public
Infrastructure zone. Its purpose is to accommodate a wide-range of public uses including, but not
limited to, “railroads and light rail infrastructure”, and similar uses (SCC 17.15.020.A.12).
Planning staff finds this zoning designation most appropriate for the subject properties. Staff on
behalf of the property owner is applying for this zoning designation.

1.4

Table 1.2 Compatibility with Surrounding Land, and Table 1.3 Comparison of Uses, demonstrate
master plan and zoning designations, and allowed uses for each land use zone proposed in the
subject land and surrounding area. Uses shown in the tables are relatively consistent with those
allowed in the previous Washoe County zones, and the current zoning in the surrounding Storey
and Washoe County land. Uses in the proposed zones, particularly the I-C zone, that may be
found to be incompatible with existing conditions are only allowed with a special use permit. A
special use permit is required for certain heavy intensity uses in the 1-C zone that could be
incompatible with each, or incompatible with other uses in the abutting zones. Board and
planning commission approvals are required for special use permits. It is, therefore, found that
these uses have the necessary case-by-case governing body oversight to assure that their
application will cause no zoning or use conflicts with anticipated abutting uses or zones.

Land use compatibility

and aste e

Applicant's Land
(TRI-Center; Nature
Conservancy; and
Union Pacific land)

Vacant; one historic single-
family structure used as work
space for river restoration
project; railroad.

Light and heavy industrial; riparian
restoration; agricultural uses.

Formerly rural, industrial,
agricubtural, and public,
Currently no Storey County
zoning designation.

Land to

Vacant; Truckee River.

Light and heavy industrial; riparian

F Forestry

Southwest restoration; agricultural uses.

Land to Vacant; several single-family Light and heavy industrial; riparian | 1-2 Heavy Industrial; F

South residential uses; light and heavy | restoration; agricultural uses. Forestry; and A Agriculture
industrial uses; Truckee River.

Land to Vacant; Truckee River Light and heavy industrial; riparian | A Agriculture

central southwest restoration; agricultural uses.

Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;

central northwest light industrial uses. and rural uses. Agriculture; Rural

Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;

Northwest vacant. and rural uses, Agriculture; Rural

Land to Washoe County; Interstate §0; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;

North light industrial uses; mining. and rural uses. Agriculture; Rural

Page 8 of 32




Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;
Northeast vacant; light industrial uses, and rural uses. Agriculture; Rural
Land to Light and heavy industrial uses Light and heavy industrial uses. I-2 Heavy Industrial
East (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center)

Washoe County — ‘
lndligpji\al._comp_lercial ‘and medivm-
density iural ise designation

N : i i 2 i
Figure 1.3: Current Storey County zoning designations (excluding the subject land).

Storey County

R

v el
Figure 1.4: The previous Washoe County zoning designations and land use patterns are
consistent with the proposed zoning. Red outlines the subject land.

Page 9 of 32




1 | River/riparian restoration X*
2 | Agriculture X X* X X*
3 i Residential X* X x*
4 | Home occupation X X*

business
5 | Retail X X
6 | Commercial offices X X
7 | Personal services X X
8 | Boarding (motels, hotels) X X* X
9 | Tourism/visitor X X* X X
10 | Government uses X X* X X
11 | Automotive related X X
12 } Transit infrastructure X X* X X
13 | Mining X* X*
14 | Mine processing X* X X*
15 | Non-renewable energy X* X*
16 | Renewable energy X* X*
17 | Permanent concrete plant X* X*
[8 | Schools and higher ed. X X* X X
19 | Education institution X* X* X
20 | Heavy manufacturing X
21 | Craftsman industry X X
22 i Laboratory/research X* X* X X
23 | Warchousing X X
24 | Chemical manufacturing X*
25 | Petroleum uses X*
26 | Truck stop X X
27 | Solid waste recycling X* X
28 | Solid waste landfill X*
29 | Explosives and hazmat X*
30 | Saw mills X*
31 | Hazardous recycling X
32 | Tattoo parlors X* X*
33 | Billboards X* X* X* X*
34 | RV Parks X* X
35 | Agriculture youth rehab X*
37 | Sewage treatment X X*
38 | Public infrastructure X X* X X* X X

Uses shown above are categorized into general use categories; see Storey County Code

Chapters 17.24, 17.32, 17.35, 17.76, and 17.84 for specific uses in each zone.
*Asterisks indicate uses requiring a special use permit,

Page 16 of 32




1 | Height

A — 35" or 3 stories

F 135 or 3 stories

P —45° or 3 stories

1-2 — 50° or 6 stories

I-C = 120" or 10 stories

2 | Setback distances

A — Same as abutting zone, but not less than 10° for residential and 20° for boarding

F — 30" front, 40° rear, 15’ side

P — same as abutting zones (F=40’; A=50"; I-2= 50"; P= n/a; [-C= 50")

[-2 - 50°

I-C - heavy industry, 50°; light industry, 20°; commercial, 20" front, 10’ rear

3 [ Minimum parcel area / use density

A —3 acres

F — 40 acres

P — no minimum
I-2 — 3 acres

[-C — heavy industry, 3 acres; light industry, ¥ acre; commercial, 10,000 square-feet

2. General Compliance with Guiding Documents

2.1 Master Plan

Chapter 3.2 of the Storey County Master Plan (1994) states that considerable development has
occurred in the River District over the years and that development is expected to continue. It
recommends that planning official “give serious consideration to development and zoning for an
industrial park in the [River District] area” (pp. 19-20). Attracting additional businesses;
diversification to the county’s economy; broadening the county’s tax base; enhancing efficiency
of water, sewer, and other utility service; and managing growth are described benefits to
developing and improving a consolidated industrial development. The master plan also states
that protecting the Truckee River and its riparian area should be a priority when considering uses
in the River District.

A significant portion of the area subject to this request for zoning map amendment abuts existing
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center land and is, therefore, contiguous to 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zoning.
It also abuts or is in immediate proximity to existing infrastructure including, but not limited to,
Interstate 80; the Patrick interchange that connects Interstate 80 to TRI-Center’s second primary
arterial route, Waltham Way; the Union Pacific transcontinental railroad; municipal sewer and
water services; power generation and distribution systems; and high-pressure natural gas. The
southern portion of the subject arca abuts the Truckee River and its riparian area.

Staff finds that the proposed I-C zone is ideal for this location because it allows a mixture of
certain commercial and industrial uses that are tailor-fitted to a transportation orientated

Page 11 of 32




environment such as the interstate corridor. Staff also finds that alignment of the proposed F and
N-R zones provides sufficient natural buffering between uses allowed in the I-C zone and the
adjacent Truckee River and its riparian area. As such, the proposed zoning designation conforms
to the following goals and objectives of the county master plan:

2.2

Chapter 3 Economy - Goal 1, enhance diversification of economic opportunities within
the county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: develop and adopt standards for industrial park
development before a large project is proposed.

Chapter 5 Conservation and Natural Resources — Goal 2, protect the quality of present
and future water resources; Goal 4, regulate the use of open-range and watershed areas to
minimize fire danger and prevent degradation; Goal 4, Objective 4.1, assist property
owners and interested groups in controlling grazing and public use of critical watershed
and riparian areas.

Chapter 9 Land Use — Goal 1: maintain a healthy environment for all residents of the
county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: ensure that land use permit decisions are compatible with
the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decisions; Goal 4: preserve existing
agricultural areas; Goal 4, objective 4.1: through zoning regulations, direct non-
agricultural development to non-agricultural areas.

Section River District — Goal 4, Objective 4.1: coordinate land uses on the south side
(Storey County) of the Truckee River with developments on the north side (Washoe
County) of the river and visa-versa; Goal 5: design zoning districts to allow for a mix in
land use development; Goal 5, Objective 5.1: consider zoning the Tracy-Clark and the
surrounding area for industrial use.

Zoning Ordinance (SCC Title 17)

SCC Section 17.03.220 Zone Map Amendments and Zone Text Amendments states:

Before a zone map amendment may be recommended for approval, the applicant must
provide evidence to the board and the planning commission concerning the physical use
of the land and zoning currently existing in the general vicinity, and which have

occurred in the previous five-year time period, and describe: (a) how the proposal will
impact the immediate vicinity; (b) how the proposal supports the goals, objectives, and

recommendations of the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the

neighborhood where the subject parcel is situated; (¢) if the proposed amendment will
impact properties within the use district; and (d) any impacts on public services and
facilities, and availability of water resources.

The collaborative efforts between staff and the property owners in determining the
appropriate zoning designations for the subject properties conforms to and exceeds the
requirements of SCC 17.03.220. The zoning designations and uses allowed therein also
conform to the master plan and do not conflict with the provisions of the zoning ordinance.

Page 12 of 32




3. Public Comment

3.1  Public comments regarding proposal

Staff has received no public comment for this application request.

4. Findings
4.1  Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the zone map amendment under the recommended conditions
of approval shown in Section 5. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

4.1.1 The proposed zone map amendment complies with federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County regulations.

4.1.2 The proposed zone map amendment will impose no substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties.

4.1.3 The conditions of approval for the zone map amendment do not conflict with the
minimum requirements of SCC Chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone map
amendments and zone text amendments; or the purpose and intent of SCC 17.15 Public zone,
17.32 Forestry zone, 17.39 Industrial-Commercial zone, 17.76 Natural Resources zone, and
17.84 Signs and Billboards regulations, as applicable,

4.1.4 The uses allowed by the new zones do not appear to cause substantial adverse impacts to
the uses allowed in the abutting zones.

4.1.5 The proposed zone map amendment is in substantial compliance with and supports the
goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

4.1.6 The proposed zone map amendments will provide for land uses compatible with existing
adjacent land uses and will not have detrimental impacts to other properties in the vicinity.

4.1.7 The proposed zone map amendment will not cause uses that will negatively impact
existing or planned public facilities and will not adversely impact the public health, safety,
and welfare,

4.1.8 The proposed zone map amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions,
such as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

Page 13 of 32




4,2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the zone map amendment application, the following findings
with an explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone map amendment will conflict with the
minimum requirements of SCC Chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone map
amendments and zone text amendments; or the purpose and intent of SCC 17.15 Public zone,
17.32 Forestry zone, 17.39 Industrial-Commercial zone, 17.76 Natural Resources zone, and
17.84 Signs and Billboards regulations, as applicable.

4.2.2 The conditions of approval under the zone map amendment do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for
surrounding uses.

4.2.3 No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this one map amendment
would be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety, or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

4.2.4 The proposed zone map amendment will not provide for land uses compatible with
existing adjacent land vses and will have detrimental impacts to other properties in the
vicinity.

4.2.5 The proposed zone map amendment will negatively impact existing or planned public
services or facilities and will adversely impact the public health, safety, and welfare.

5. Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Official zoning map requirements

The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to depict the zonc map amendment
approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners (Board) with recommendation by the
planning commission. The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the
signature of the chairman of the Board attested by the Storey County Clerk under the following
words: “This is to certified that this is the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in
Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada” together with the date of
adoption.

5.2 Changes made promptly

The changes approved by the Board with recommendation by the planning commission must be
entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County Zoning Map (and the
applicable area zoning maps) promptly as reasonable after the amendment has been approved,
with the entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of
the purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Area Zoning
Map which may periodically be made or published, the Official Storey County Zoning Map and
Area Zoning Maps shall be kept in the Office of the Storey County Recorder. The Storey County

Page 14 of 32




Recorder shall be the final authority as to the current zoning status of the land and water area,
buildings, and other structures in the county.

53  Copies of official zoning map

Signed and sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and Area Zoning Maps must
be available for public viewing at the Offices of the Storey County Clerk and Storey County
Recorder.

54 General requirements

The zone map amendment must comply with and remain in conformance with all provisions set
forth by this zone map amendment and all applicable federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
codes and regulations.

6. Powers of the Board and Planning Commission

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

7. Planning Commission Action

At its November 13, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant
(Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center representing itself, and planning staff representing Nature
Conservancy and Union Pacific). Planning staff on behalf of the applicants and the county
provided textual information, maps, and aerial visuals showing the land, as well as past, current,
and proposed zoning conditions. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
compatibility concerns; access and traffic impacts for several allowed uses in the proposed I-C
zone; zoning and use entitlements; existing uses in and around the subject land in Storey and
Washoe Counties; and overall benefits and impacts that the proposed zones may have on the
area. There was no public comment for or against the proposal. Planning staff stated that the
proposed zoning was consistent with the master plan and current zoning, and that the proposed
zones in their proposed configuration were consistent with the surrounding environment,
including existing uses and the Truckee River. Staff read into the records its recommended
findings to be included with a motion for approval. Members of the planning commission who
were present voted unanimously (4 votes with 4 planning commissioners present) to approve the
zone map amendment in accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff.

Page 15 of 32




8. Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1; those findings should
be made part of that motion. Motion 2 for approval, as an alternative, may be made in
accordance with findings under Subsections 4.1 and/or 4.2; those findings should be made part of
that motion. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the
findings shown in Subsection 4.2, Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the body
should be made part of their motion.,

Motion I — Recommended motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation for approval by staff, I (commissioner} motion to approve Storey County Zone
Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official zoning map of Storey County
to include the Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and Industrial-Commercial zones as presented
by staff in this report.

Summary: Approve zone map amendments as proposed

Motion 2 — Alternative motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and/or 4.2 and the conditions of approval
shown in Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations,
but against the recommendation for approval by staff, I (commissioner) motion to approve
Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official zoning

map of Storey County to include the (describe zones or parcels) as presented
by staff, but to deny the {describe zones or parcels) as presented by staff in
this report.

Summary. Approve _x__ zones and deny x_zones

Motion 3 — Alternative motion (denial)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.2 of this staff report and/or other findings
deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and against the recommendation of staff, |
(commissioner) motion to deny Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021
modifying the official zoning map of Storey County as presented in this report. This is a denial
of all proposed zoning designations.

Summary: Deny all zone map amendments

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Letter and map submitted by applicants.
Exhibit B: Legal description (posting) of the subject area and properties
Exhibit C: Uses allowed in the I-C zone

Page 16 of 32




Exhibit A: Application No. 2014-021 (Zone Map Amendment)
The following application includes a request for both a zone text and zone map amendments. For
zone text amendment applicability, refer to Application and Staff Report No. 2014-020.

Storey County P!anning Department

26 South “B” Street, PO, Box 175, Virginia City, NV 88440
Phone: (776) 847-1144 Fas: {#75) 847-0048
planning@storeycounty.ory

Development Application

Submit this complated application and ali attschemants aloag with the application fee {sse W m or tyﬂe of
application arid foss) at loast 30 duys prior io the meeting you wish te bave your request scheduled, The application
will not be accepled unless cdmpists, Including allschmeanis {sppiicant wtll be nolified within 19 days If applieation is
nod ecgentabla and what ls still reculred). The spplication fes iz non-refimdells. Pleass meke thacks payshia i
Storey Sounty Flanning Development.

Project Murmber,

K T ramarem, rorani b eh oni Gk Sop g reabioey, Tyt e Jron ity i SAacs oF B Ik,
efo Robert M. Sedex, BAOO Tectmology Way, Suite R

Mailing Address:
City: Beno . State;_ BV Zip; 89521

Telephone (Home) { ) N/A Business (775 ) 329-8310

Applicant;___ SAME

A applkoes o by i of Bk e tion,
Maling Address; SAME

City:, State; Zipy

Tolsphotie (Hame) | b} Business { bl

Clsoid Hil {Ivirglnta City L1V Highlends [ ngh!md Ranches | Virgm;s Renches
{3 dezte} EH aras) F40 Bores)

[DOMark Twaln [Hafed Olodkwoad [ JPainted Rock BN Cloter,

Project Address; Waltham Way and 1-80 _

Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APNY:__D03-121-01.. 02,704, 04, apd 05

Lot N/a - Block: ... /A ALCTRAQE;, 219.852

iaf g

Page 17 of 32




Application Fee

Application Fee

Development (PUD) -
Tentativa

Development - Final

_ $200.00 p nia
{" | Condition nfa Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment _ Adjustment
] Development $1,000.00 ] Extension of Time | 50% of Qrlginal Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) Extension Only)
{1 Land Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | [_] Lot Consclidation nia
{40 acre minfmurm) lot _
L] Master Plan Map $2,900.00 K Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment " Amendment
[_J Matural Resources | $65.00 per hour [ ] Street Name nia
Exploration and Ratjuest
Regisiration
Parcal Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_] Farcel Map Final hia
Record of Survey
{1 Planned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 per lot | [_| Planned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 perlint

] *Special Use Permit | $250.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $450.00
—Mihaor - Routine
i | "Speclal Use Permit | $750.00 L1 *Spectal Use Permit | $2,500.00

— Major - Major Industrial L
[ ] Subdivision Map - | $500.00 + 1.00 per ot [{_] Subdivision Map - | $200.00 + 25.00 par Iol
Teniafive Final
[ TVarance ™ nfa [ Variance $100.00
Administrative
[T Wheless i ] Wiraless fa
Communication Facility Communication
i Facility, Modification
i Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 Zoning Text Change. | nfa

Note: Additional fees {o cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consuitation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additiona] fees will be charged without expressed writien permission by the applicant,

ks

Appiicants nitlals

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also io the Storey County Special Use
Fermit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit,

2ol

Page 18 of 32




Storey Caunty Development Applicaiiva

Deatail Description/dustification of Project

AMached addiicnal pages as necessary

SEE ATFACHED

KRS

Page 19 of 32




ORE TY DEVELOPMENT APPLICATOIN
= VTUSTIRICATION OF PROJECT

INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zosing map change, and zoning text change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™) which was formerly in Washos County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attached fo this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine {(9) parcels subject to this application. Their location van generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang,

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county's beard of comenissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Conunissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-

403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of

Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment.

The result of these actions was to transfer sighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County, Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TR] and are subject o
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center ¢*Center”). The
cwrrent northwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Truckee River. It is a logical extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Conter.

The basic entitlernent for the Center iz the Development Agreement datedd
Febroary 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer gervice by TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID™). Applications to annex
the Property to the Development Apreement are being mode concwrently with this
application. An application to expand the service teritory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement amexation.

The zoning for the Center is I-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land, This application seeks to add a porton of the Property

Page 20 of 32




INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zouing text change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Beno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™) which was formerly in Washoe County but
now hag been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning desipnations. The legal description
of the Property is attached to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are pine (9) parcels subject 1o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of I-80, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senaie Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustmend between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by sesclutions approved by each county’s board of commissioners,
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment.

The result of these actions was to transfer eiglieen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Sterey County. Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TRI and are subjsct to
this applteation,

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“Center™). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by (he
Truekes River. It is a logicad extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Center.

The basic entitlement for the Center is the Development Agreement dated
Febroary 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Tmprovement District (“TRIGID™). Applications 10 annex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service terdiory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is 1-2 Heavy Indusirial {1999 Siorey County Zoning

Code editfon), which allows light industtial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoping uses on 10% of the land. This application seeks to add a portien of the Property

Page 21 of 32




Storey Counly Development Application

Professlonal Consultant/Representative(s)

Mame: Robert M. Sader
Addrass: 8600 Technolpgy Way, Suite 10L

City: Teng State;_Nevada  Zipe 89521
Phone: VI3) 9e3masly EmalixmsaderCrobertmgaderitd.com. Cell: NJA
Appiicant's Affidavit:
I_ H/A . being duly swom, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described

{Printad name)
praject andfor request, and all the statements and answers hareln contatned and the information herewith submitted are in
all respects complete, frue and correct to the beat of my knowladge and belief. | understand that no assurance or gusrantee
can be ghven by members of the Storey County Planning Depariment Staff.

Signalufe o Fppicant Data

Hate of Navada,
County of Slorey

Slgned and swors to bafore me on by,

eterys Signature

My Commission Explres

Property Owner's Affidavit:

1, Tahoe-Reno Industrial, LIC heing duly sworn, depase and say that | sm an owner* In fee of the described

. (Printed name)
property Involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agres to, the fling of this application, and that the
statements and answers hersln contaimed and the Informetion hetew!th submitted are in all respecis complels, frus and
correct to the bost of my knowledge and bellef, | understand that no assurance or gusrantes an be given by members of

theyStorey Coupty Blenning Pepartment Staff, .
&m M Q,QC/\ Date i'ﬁ/g/;lf _

- .
b T .B%‘tader, Legal Counsel
Stete of Nevagls, —
County of hoox Washoe "
¥ , TINA FORD
Signed and sworn to befors me on 7 by, o EE NOTARY PUBLIC
2wy i?!;@gﬁ OF NEVADA
g, APPT NG, 0 ’
ﬁ.{é"f F /M 550’6#" . MY AP, acmnssiﬁi"’éém

4of8

Page 22 of 32




DEVELOPMENT APFLICATION SUBMITTAL REGUIREMENTS

Storey Covanty Development Application

Submittal Requirements| § = - M N
= o B J
o ] - G o
2l & =519 . -|BE
B o558 [E|2% gl |3 5155
B Z18| Z|sisSs | |Els|S|8|E|t 5|5k
E = clo| 2|85 = S|l 818la|la|l 2|2 1518 £ m
g BE i gia | w5 | ElalBio|lg3|xe|E Bl E
HE R AR TR FRRSE AL AR R 1 i
Application Type 2 =4 5121 2DITEIR 2| 2| 2 S| & |B 3o
o " |81 28|12 || 2|8 |8502 2|9 |8|5|3|¢8 2 |2362
O i Abandonment X} X (XX 1 X X L X | 4
L) [Amended Map X| X XX % 2.E X
[ | Condition Armendmant X} X X ] X
(9 [Boundary Line Adjustment Xl X | XX | x X XiX 1 X
Developmemnt Agreemeant T « ]
O | (Requiros Special Use Permity | X | X | X | X | X X | XX x| x| x| x{X]|x%x]|x| x
Extansion of Time Reguest (One
L3 | year Extension Only) X x 1 X X X
e TLang Division Map (40 aore
m minimurn XX X1 X% X x| X x
O |t Consolidation* X[ X X I X x X
[ |Master Plan Map Amendmaent | X X1 X X X
[ |Master Plan Text Amendment Xl X X
Natira! Resourcos Exploration
B | and Registration Review X| X [ x|xix X X
£3 | Parcel Map — Record of Survey . X
[T |Parcel Map LS. XXX X X X X
O |fianned Unit Developmant x| x [ x | x | x x| x XIx|[x]x|x{x X
O |Flanned Unit Development, Final | X | X X | X | X X | X X

*Administrative lot consolidation procedure

Hord

Note: Additional information and materlals may be required with the application.

Page 23 of 32



Stoney County Develupment dpofication

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittal Requirements

Agplication Type

Addilonal Information -

Laga! Degeription - Deed
s | boel me | > | vefne| ] x| 3¢| x|} Checkwith Planning

Desstigtion/Justification

Pakd Tax Recelpd
_ Farmat on Disk
Flaor Plan
Tille Reporl
Dralnags Report
Soils Report
Trafitc Reponrt
Waler Rights
Reclamation Plan
Department

Detalled
| Originat Map Mylar

#ap & Data in CAD

Special Use Parmit - Minar
Spedal Use Permit - Routine
Special Use Permit — Major

Special Use Parmil —
Major Indysfriat

Streaf Name Reguest
Subdivision Map - Tentative
Stibdlvision Map - Final
Vartlance - Administrative

| X | x| Reduced Map {11 x17)

Oioi0ne
.:ﬂ: D |

>
&Y
»
=
=24
»
®
k.

s lvefm| s | 3¢ )s¢ine| ProtPlan

4
E]
>
ES

Ojgo| o |oiguooo

Variance

Wireless Communication
Fasility

Wirsless Commurication
Facility, Modifination
Zoning Map Change
Zoning Text Change

Other

wWiw | R
=

[ ix xf:-c Rix x| seix] » | ||| Development Application

KIM|K] XKW R XM MM 2| M-
>

sl x| w |
] ve[3¢| % |
b1

Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.

Page 24 of 32



Exhibit B: Legal description of subject area and properties (public posting)

PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING FOR ZONE MAP AMENDMENT
Storey County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners Meetings
The Storey County Planning Commission will hold a public meeting on November 13, 2014, at
6:00 p.m. and the Board of Storey County Commissioners will hold a public meeting on
December 2, 2014, at 10:00 a.m. at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South
“B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada. The meetings will include discussion and possible action of
an amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map.

The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land located in
McCarran, Nevada (River District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in July of
2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by means of boundary line adjustment.

The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section 31 and 32, Township 20
North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20
North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and Section 1,
Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M).

The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a) F Forestry zoning will be applied
to land located at Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 004.161.98; (b) N-R Natural-Resources
zoning will be applied to land located at APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and
004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning will be applied to land located at APNs
004.161.99, 004.162.01, 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, 005.121.05, and
004.162.02; and (d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89,
004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all
within the approximate subject area described above.

The purpose of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey
County that is consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their
transfer into Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture,
Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure.

In addition to provisions of the NRS, any owner of land within or adjacent to the proposed zone
map amendment may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement
indicating his or her approval or opposition to the proposed amendment. Additional information
including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning Department at
775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

Lyndi Renaud

Sitting Secretary, Planning Commission
Storey County, Nevada

Date of publication: 10/31/14

Page 25 of 32




Exhibit C: Uses allowed in the I-C zone
(see 17.39 I-C zone for full zoning chapter)
Chapter 17.39

I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Sections:
17.39.010  Applicability.
17.39.015  Purpose and Intent
17.39.02¢ Allowed Uses
17.39.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
17.39.040  Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area
17.39.070 Loading Area
17.39.080 Setback Requirements

17.39.010 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in the C Commercial
Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and uses in the CR Commercial-Residential
zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-Residential zone.

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas with the county where certain
industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and maintained together to promote
efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy
commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic
arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed uses are
compatible. It is not intended for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial areas, such as
Gold Hill, Virginia City, Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are allowed in the I-C
Industrial-Commeicial Zone.
A. Commercial uses including:
1. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

a. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery stores,
neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and shopping centers, and super
regional stores and shopping centers.

b. Seasonal holiday sales and uses.

¢. Seasonal farmers markets.

2. Commiercial offices and financial institutions:
& Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants, insurance,

employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, associations and other similar office uses and activities.

Page 26 of 32




b. Building maintenance and services,
c. Business and professional offices and buildings.
d. Convention and meeting facilities.

3. Personal services:

a. Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons, tailors, massage
establishments, and similar type uses.

b. Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
¢. Childcare of any number of children.
d. Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.

4. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns, timeshares,
and vacation rentals.

5. Tourist and visitor services:
a. Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners, fast-food,
coffee shops and coffee houses, soda-fountains, saloons and taverns, and micro-breweries

with on-site and off-site sales.

b. Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on foot, gold
panning, and museums.

¢. Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony rides, and
carriage and stagecoach rides.

d. Theaters.

6. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming (when incidental to a
primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or video machines), golf driving ranges,
miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and
saunas, termis courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and other similar recreational uses and
activities.

7. Civic uses:

a. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff,

b. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.

¢. Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent,

d. Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and

courts of law.

Page 27 of 32




e. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies, colleges
and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice training, whether
public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is required for education institutions and
academies that include student residential accommodations.

£ Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks, walking and
bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

g Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-modal
transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail infrastructures, train
tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

h. Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals.

8. General services:

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general contractors offices, heavy
and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, manufactured home sales and service,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops, video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activities.

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

9. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges, recreational and
social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private ¢clubs,

10. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses.
Uses also include community gardens.

11. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area where slots
and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots and/or video machines,
and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

12. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission substations, and
ancillary uses.

13. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

14. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat, utility trailer,
horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

15. Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale, barter, or trade of items
associated with a business outside of a permanent building,

16. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other motorized
vehicles,

17. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses,

18. Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 28 of 32




19, Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

20. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use, placed

21

upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in conformance with section 17.12.048.

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses

permitted within the zone.

B. Light industrial uses including the following:

1.

10,

.
12.
13.
14,

15.

I6.

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process that uses already
manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic,
leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts.

. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops, carpet

cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.

. Agricultural use types including general agricuitural uses, agricultural animal production, custom

animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural
entertainment and commercial uses.

Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and refining,
upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment

associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

. Manufactured home and modular home sales lots.

Propane sales and storage.
Firewood sales and storage.
Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing, and
experimentation is prohibited.

Building material manufacturing.

Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale distribution.
Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and detailing (manual
hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(including painting and body repair), sales, and rental.

Truck stops.

Page 29 of 32




17. Solid waste recycling collection center.

18. Solid waste recycling center.

19. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing.

20. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game farms.

21. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing, treatment, or
storage.

22. Watchman’s dwelling, whether permanent or temporary.

23. Qutdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment
associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

24, Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uses including the following:

1. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already manufactured
components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood,
glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and manufacturing operations involving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section 17.39.030 as requiring
a special use permit,

2. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other similar chemicals
within a warehouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of petroleum and liquid petroleum products within a warehouse facility.

4. Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other such chemicals. Manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid
petroleum products are prohibited.

5. Paper manufacturing.
6. Bottling plants.

7. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

17.3%9.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

1. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses under this
subsection must comply with the regulations under Title 5 Business licenses, and be located no
closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school, religious institution, public building or
facility, or another permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and

Page 30 of 32




10.

L.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

18.

300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and similar

uses.

. Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and theme rides,

roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and production of

movies, film, television, and similar visual media,
Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.

Permanent outdoor theatres.

. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or possession of one

or more wild animals.

Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent care, clinics,
convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
senjors, and group care services.

Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These uses are only allowed
within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which is zoned I-2 Heavy Industrial,
I-C Industrial-Commercial, or C Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public
or private school or religious institution,

Retail establishments featuring the display, lease, or rental of “adult material” books,
merchandise, periedicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded video
devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia “adult” material. The
merchandise shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the purchaser or lessee off
the premises of the business,

Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to an on-site
construction project or when located within 2,500 feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

Milling and processing related to mining and extraction,

Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland creation, water restoration
and recycling,

The keeping of 7 or more dogs or potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A minimum of 10
acres is required.

. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with action by the planning
commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special use permit within the zone.

Page 31 of 32




17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten stories or 120 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not
apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers,
flagpoles, and commercial and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas, Wind energy
turbine support structures are regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel area requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on a parcel of no less
than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than one-half acre;
and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than 3 acres. The minimum area
requirement for uses requiring a special use permit shall be determined by the special use permit, except
that the area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet,

17.39.060 Loading Area
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.070 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located no closer than 50 feet
from any property line; (B) light-industrial uses may be located no closer than 20 feet from any property
line; and (C) commercial uses shall have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front
setback. Uses requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the granted
special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances shall be no less than 10 feet from

any property line.

Page 32 of 32




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 3 ’ 3 1 5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

3. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: A
x___ Departmen

Department Name: Community Development

County Mahager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[]
[]

Agenda Item No,




Storey County Communitp Bebelopment
TBuginess

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 » Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

ik N1

Licensging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office February 23, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the March 3, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda;

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS
A. EAGLE SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 1350 Geiger Grade ~ Reno (landscaping)
B. BEAR MOBILE SERVICE & REPAIR, LLC — General / 1525 Sharon Way ~ Reno (mobile equip repair)
C. WILD HORSE GALLERY — General / 145 South C Street (vetail store) vC
D. REEL CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 72 East Freeport ~ Sparks (Contractor)
E. LERO ENTEPRISES, INC, - Contractor / 1043 H Street ~ Sparks (Contractor)
F. SPENCER MEDIA PARTNERS, LLC — Home Business / 2187 Main Street ~ Gold Hill (Consultant)
G. DIAMOND CONCRETE CUTTING, LLC - Contractor / 80 Corporate Park Dr ~ Henderson (Contractor)
H. ASCENSION POWER ENGINEERING, LL.C - Professional / 55 North C Street (elect eng.) VC
I. MDB TRUCKING, LLC.. - Transportation / 905 East Mustang (trucking co.) MCC
J. 1ONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI
K. RICH DOSS, INC, - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC
Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




